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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFUHREE

(For the year ended 31 December) (BEZ+=A=+—HIFE)

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY A FHEHE
RMB’000 AREEFIT
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—TTF T —f% T -f T =% Z%-NF
Revenue ON 1,782,447 2,406,212 3,097,511 4,150,509 5,011,426
Gross profit EF 437,582 580,594 749,150 988,400 1,049,024
Profit before tax Bt AT A 281,474 371,533 420,102 626,506 698,913
Profit attributable to owners VN/NCIEZEDN
of the Company FEME R 216,419 290,850 328,644 490,587 584,269
Basic earnings per share (RMB)  SREAREF|(ARE) 0.363 0.472 0.521 0.752 0.842
Diluted earnings per share (RMB)  EREERF (ARYE)  NATEA 0471 0.521 0.737 0.687
Non-current assets EREBEE 359,432 1,440,111 1,697,359 2,834,179 3,792,168
Current assets MENEE 1,377,596 1,510,053 2,366,323 3,466,554 4,416,582
Non-current liabilities FEREAE 197,072 248,955 577,652 1,323,185 2,276,903
Current liabilities mEaE 476,856 1,173,010 1,634,118 2378436 2,791,255
Net assets BEFE 1,063,100 1,528,199 1,851,912 2,599,112 3,140,592
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EEHE

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Group’s annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2014,

The focus of the PRC photovoltaic application market had been shifting in
2014. The government gave strong support to distributed photovoltaic power
generation. 2014 was also called the first year of the great development
of distributed photovoltaic business in the PRC. Governments at all levels
continued to introduce and improve their industrial policies for distributed
photovoltaic development and attempted to drive the distributed photovoltaic
development as a key renewable energy industry. Leveraging its extensive
experience in the photovoltaic area, the Group followed closely government
policies and catered to market developments, which has produced desirable
results.

As of 31 December 2014, the Group’s overall business maintained
growth. The Group’s turnover recorded a year-on-year growth of 20.7% to
RMB5,011,426,000, while profit attributable to equity holders amounted to
RMB584,269,000, featuring a growth of 19.1% over last year. The Board
recommended distributing a final dividend of HK$0.09 per share.

1. CONTINUOUS GROWTH OF RENEWABLE
ENERGY BUSINESS

Renewable energy business segment with photovoltaic system
integration as its core contributed 61.9% of total revenue, which
has been over 60% for two consecutive years and indicated that
renewable energy business has become a pillar business of the
Group. By leveraging its listing company platform and market
resources accumulated over the years, fully consolidating resources
from the capital market, various links in the photovoltaic industry and
rooftop and actively taking part in regional photovoltaic development
planning, the Group was able to maintain its leading position in the
solar EPC area.

FAARRKREFE  MAREAKEBE_ZT
—E+—A=T—RIEZ2FEE -

—F-IEF - PEDCRERTSNEL EEH
F8ER  BREHIBOMAAREE - —F
—PETEE AT B MR RABRRITF -
BB TE L AT EERAMANNRNE
B oM IRNERIMEREREXER
HE) - REBBEELNEENEELR B
RBERER - BEMHEAR - BEAIEHE -

HE-Z-—MmME+-F=+—H81t  KREEE
REBEBRFILR - EEERLILR20.7%
= AR#5,011,426,0007C © #E#H A A
15 % I A A R # 584,269,000 7T © [k # &
19.1% - EFgRFRERARE 2T 0.09
PBTT

—  ITHARFEEGREER

NHARIREGEKABZ LN HE
BE R E TSR IR B U A R AG L E B
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EERE

For energy investment, the Group’s 170.8MW self-developed
distributed photovoltaic power stations and large ground power
stations had been connected to the grid in 2014, which has generated
considerable revenue from power generation. In addition, the Group
also invested in the construction of additional 103MW power stations
in 2014.

In addition to traditional power plant development, the Group also
explored new models for application of solar energy in view of local
conditions. In particular, in central and eastern China, the Group used
wasteland to explore comprehensive development and utilisation of
solar energy, agricultural and tourism resources, and in the wasteland
of western China, an ecological desertification prevention and control
model has formed which combines straw checkerboard, row cover
and steel-structured agricultural greenhouses in photovoltaic power
stations.

Furthermore, the Group’s industrial park in Gansu was formally put
into production in December 2014. With a presence in the vast
northwestern China with extensive resources, the industrial park
will play an important role by engaging in photovoltaic power station
development and equipment manufacturing.

BERBREFE  AEEUAFE®D
170.8 KELEBER ﬁt%ﬁ U AR A
WHABMER -Z—NFEWH - FBEW
Eﬂﬁ°%%’_§—@¢ﬁﬁﬁ&§
103K FL&E Ut o
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%NS EE MBS SR
EREADIER o
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EERE

2. OVERSEAS OPPORTUNITIES OF GREEN Z BeEREEBNRBIMER

BUILDING BUSINESS

With years of efforts put in market expansion, the Group has secured
certain sizeable overseas projects in 2014. We hope to gradually
establish our brand image in the overseas market as having a
comprehensive leading advantage in green building.

After becoming a member of United States Green Building Council,
the Group actively provided green building construction consulting
services and finished a number of green building consulting projects.
It continued to develop towards a professional institution on green
building consulting, design and research and development in order to
establish a model of driving design with consulting and driving project
development with design and improve the profitability of its green
building business.

3. NEW BREAKTHROUGHS IN NEW MATERIALS

AREA

Through two years of research and development, the new material
business has built a comprehensive product offering including smart
LCD light adjusting film, smart LCD light adjusting glass and smart
projection screen which can be widely applied in business and public
buildings. In view of positive market feedbacks, our new material
manufacturing facility located in Zhuhai is under expansion, which
will increase the size of new material business through introducing
equipment and expanding production capacity.

4. FUTURE PLANS ON ESTABLISHING BRAND

REPUTATION

The Group will continue to focus on renewable energy business
and strive to establish a pattern of orderly development and mutual
support of renewable energy, energy-saving and environment-
protection and new material business. It will adopt a research and
development model that takes into account specific conditions and
aims to serve production and strengthen influence, actively improve
its green building technology, develop distributed power generation
as a long-term steady market, and drive the market expansion for
and sales of new products through the research and development of
green buildings.

’

’
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERWME

OVERVIEW

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) recognise the importance of
incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the management
structures and internal control procedures of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) so as to achieve effective accountability. This
report outlines the principles and the code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Directors consider that, for the year
ended 31 December 2014, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the applicable code provisions set out in the Code, except
for the deviation from paragraph A.2.1 of the Code as described below in the
section “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” on page 13.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company
has established an audit committee in compliance with paragraph C.3
of the Code to oversee the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures of the Group so as to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules. It
has also established a nomination committee and a remuneration committee
with defined terms of reference.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate governance practices
of the Company to ensure formal and transparent procedures are in place to
protect and maximize the interests of the shareholders of the Company.

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the corporate governance practices
adopted and observed by the Company from the listing date up to the date of
this report (the “Review Period”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as the standard for securities transactions by Directors.
The Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors and all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions throughout the year.

]
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Q308 <7< RIPTE AT A B A ST RIS - HERT
NFEI3AM [ EFEITHAER ) &0 praist
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) takes responsibility to oversee all major
matters of the Company, including the formulation and approval of overall
business strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and
supervising and monitoring the performance of the senior management who
are delegated with the authority and responsibility for day-to-day management
and operation of the Company. The Directors have the responsibility to act
objectively in the interests of the Company.

Currently, the Board comprises eight Directors, including three executive
Directors, namely, Mr. LIU Hongwei, who is also the Chairman of the
Company, Mr. SUN Jilin and Mr. XIE Wen, two non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. LI Huizhong and Mr. CAO Zhirong and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon, Mr. WANG Ching,
and Mr. CHENG Jinshu.

The Board has a strong independent element in its composition with over half
of the board members are non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors to ensure that all decisions of the Board are made in the
best interest of the Group’s long-term development.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees
including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) (collectively, the “Board Committees”).
Further details of these committees are set out below on pages 15to 17.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director having
sound board level experience and expertise relevant to the business
operations and development of the Group. The Board is comprised of
members with extensive business, government, regulatory and policy
experience from a variety of backgrounds. There is diversity of nationality,
ethnicity, educational background, functional expertise and experience. A
Board Diversity Policy was adopted by the Board in 2013.

S
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EREREERS EBEMNEREREAEA
AREREENMEENGRERENRE - &
ERBMENARRANE AT REEEIREST
=o

I

BAl - EF2RN\GEFEAKX  BE=FHT
EXRUEEE(BAR/EARAELE) #E
BAEERBINEL - MAERITEEFTS L
EREEREE  UR=RBIIFNTEES
KESELE - EREEMESHKL

EFemEREREBILMETE  BYHES
ERERIFNTEERBUINITES - 5
REFSMELNAERERETEAEER
BBRARERN R

EXZgEh R RERZES(EREZE
gl) FHZBEE(FHEZEE)) RIERZ
B2 ((RRZEE)RESZEE(MEIE
ERBEEAINENRE - FHEZEEES
HE—FHE BN TXFEISAEEFITA
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TEERRE

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company will adopt the practice of holding board meetings regularly
for at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc
meetings will also be convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as
well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. Notice of board
meeting will be sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a regular board
meeting. Reasonable notices will also be given to the directors for ad-hoc
board meetings.

Directors may participate either in person or through electronic means of

communications.

The Company will adopt the practice to provide relevant materials to all
the Directors relating to the matters brought before the meetings. All the
Directors will be provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties,
and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses. All Directors will have the opportunity to include matters in the
agenda for Board meetings.

Prior notice convening the Board meeting was dispatched to the Directors
setting out the matters to be discussed. At the meeting, the Directors were
provided with relevant documents to be discussed and approved. The
company secretary of the Company is responsible for keeping minutes of the
Board meetings.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder of the
Company or a Director arise, the matter will be discussed in a physical Board
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by a written resolution. Independent
non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings
dealing with such conflict issues.

An updated list of the Directors identifying the independent non-executive
directors and the roles and functions of the Directors is maintained on the
website of the Company and the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the reporting period, the Board held a total of 4 board meetings. The
attendance of individual Directors at the board meetings and annual general
meeting are set out below:

EEEEHR
Z

AANEFEERTFROEHRTOR -
AROBFERT R - FEHGNEEHEREES
m'ﬁﬁmﬁﬁwuﬁﬁﬁgmﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ

c RREFENETEHESTS SRR
M%ﬁ%%%QQ%Lm mEREEEE
BEINTRAEREAELRETES -

EERIRERIRANE
A

BT AEEE

$“_@E REBNAMEEERMERH
WmERENER - TAEFHESREINE
7)%LAE%?EH§&§ CAHEAREMNERT - ATRTF
BEREEMSKBIEXER - BERALRAT
A - FTBEEHAREHEMINEBMA
EEERNHRREA

==

il

CHREFEERNBAKESMTETES
ERFIIBTIRNER - 8L EEHER
s T 5 Tam R ALE R ARREN M - ARRIHATR]
WERAEREEZTSERNGHLE -

WARBEBRRS LR ETELBENSE

x FEEEENERESSYR LW I
EFBEMARREE - TEFLAZEHRLN
BYURTESBSL L NWEEERS
T o

ARABREBUERERBBERSMERDF
(Fﬂﬁﬁxﬁﬁj)iﬂlﬁi SEEINErR RS Rl v
TEEZRMEFLE  LIIREAEME
Bt -

RBREHRE EFGHBTIRESTE S

EREEHFEFTSERLMBERBEAENE
IR -



ZF-MFEFR FRERAXKGERMZERER AR

11

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

Board Meetings

Name of Directors

Annual General Meeting

EFEEH

Attendance
HEER
Board Meeting

EENS BFRBEXE EEEER
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. LIU Hongwei DUATHE S 1/1 4/4
Mr. SUN Jinli FeksE 0/1 4/4
Mr. XIE Wen @OXkRE 0/1 4/4
Non-executive Directors ERITESE

Mr. LI Huizhong FEBELE 0/1 4/4
Mr. CAO Zhirong EELEE 0/1 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BEIIFHITES

Dr. WANG Ching T m=EL 1/1 4/4
Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon SIoKEES A 0/1 474
Mr. CHENG Jinshu e e 0/1 4/4

SKILLS, KNOWLEDGE, EXPERIENCE AND
ATTRIBUTES OF DIRECTORS

All Directors of the Board had served in office during the period under review.
Every Director commits to give sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Company. The Directors also demonstrate their understanding and
commit to high standards of corporate governance. The executive Director
brings his perspectives to the Board through his deep understanding of the
Group’s business. The non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors contribute their own skills and experience, understanding
of local and global economies, and knowledge of capital markets to the
Group’s business. The Company is responsible for arranging and funding
suitable continuous professional development programmes for all Directors to
hone and refresh their knowledge and skills.

INDUCTION AND TRAINING

Each newly appointed Director, executive or non-executive, is required
to undertake an induction program to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of his duties and responsibilities. The induction program
includes an overview of the Group’s business operation and governance
policies, the Board meetings’ procedures, matters reserved to the Board,
an introduction of the Board committees, the Directors’ responsibilities and
duties, relevant regulatory requirements, review(s) of minutes of the Board
and Board committees in the past 12 months, and briefings with senior
officers of the Group and site visits (if necessary).

BB - A - SRR

FEEEERBUNCEREAER - 8ES
B RHRESOTBENERNRANER L -
EEMMRAREER N AGRHERSKTINE
A BITERBBHARBERBNRAT #IL
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TEFARERSNRERESR  BXEE
BREENRH - REATSHAEEEBFHA
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EENREEREERE  UBRNEINEM
BRI e o

A ek % 3|

B ERITIFNTES RS B BRER
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E=genitr RETE=EARNER
EXRBEHN EFNEERES  ARE
BHER  BE+_HAEZEEREFEZE
EHNERCHRBEHNIARERERENHEM
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EREBHE

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. During the Year, all Directors had participated
in appropriate continuous professional development activities by ways
of attending training and/or reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

The company secretary of the Company maintains records of training
attended by the Directors. The training attended by each Director during the
Year is tabulated as follows:

RETAEXFEACLG  2REFEDES
BEXRY UBREEHREZANEB R
Bt o WL IRRESEBTABZEENRIS
FIRMERATHESSFLER - FR > 28
EEVE2HEGEIRETREREY £
HREBBARRER R E R B E R IE
RIER, LB EEREER o

RRABZARAIMERFERHFERIZCH -
RER - %i%ﬂjfiﬁﬂlz\ﬁﬁﬁkﬂﬁﬂ"lt :

Training Records bl ek

Name Type of trainings Training matters

2 EalER -] [
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(FfFE1) (PfFEE2)

Executive Directors BiTESE

Mr. LIU Hongwei (Chairman) BlaT s (/) a, b i, i, dii, iv

Mr. SUN Jinli FeisE a, b i, i, dii, iv

Mr. XIE Wen BOURE a,b i, i, i, iv

Non-Executive Directors FEMITES

Mr. LI Huizhong FTemiE a, b i i, i, v

Mr. CAO Zhirong ERRE a, b i, i, il iv

Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ JBIIFIERITEE

Dr. WANG Ching T REL a,b i, i, iii, iv

Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon VLS vt a,b i, i, dii, iv

Mr. CHENG Jinshu BBt a, b i, i, il iv

Note 1: BsET -

a attending seminar or training session a TR eSS

b self-development and updates relating to general economy, business b iEflk&E%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ BEE XBER -EF

development, director’s duties and responsibilities, etc.

Note 2:

i corporate governance

ii regulatory compliance

iii finance

iv management and operation

MaE2

[ ThEE

i ERE

ii s

iv BIR N EE
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Liu Hongwei, the Chairman of the Group, is responsible for the leadership
and effective running of the Board, ensuring that all material issues are
decided by the Board in a conducive manner. Mr. Liu Hongwei is also
responsible for running the Group’s business and effective implementation
of the strategies of the Group. The Company is aware of the requirement
under paragraph A.2.1 of the Code that the roles of chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. Nevertheless, the Board considers that the combination of
the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer will not impair the balance
of power and authority between the Board and the management of the
Company as the Board will meet regularly to consider major matters affecting
the operations of the Group. The Board is of the view that this structure
provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership, which can facilitate
the formulation and implementation of its strategies and decisions and enable
it to grasp business opportunities and react to changes efficiently. Moreover,
the Board considers that the sufficient measures have been taken and it will
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management. As such, it is beneficial to the business prospects of the Group.
Therefore Mr. Liu Hongwei is performing the roles of both Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All independent non-executive Directors of the Company possess a wealth
of professional and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. They have played a
significant role in the Board by virtue of their independent judgment and
their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision. In particular, they
bring an impartial view on issues of the Company’s strategy, performance and
control. The Board also considers that independent non-executive Directors
provide independent advice on the Company’s business strategy, results and
management so that all interests of shareholders of the Company are taken
into consideration, and the interests of the Company and its shareholders
are taken into account in all business decisions. The Company has received
the annual confirmation signed by each independent non-executive Director
to acknowledge their respective independence. After prudent enquiry, the
Board is of the view that each of Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon, Mr. WANG Ching,
and Mr. CHENG Jinshu maintains the independence as required by Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

F TR
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BRZME > TFRETRASNABESY - T
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ERRBEIFETRAINBEAMA—TE
FEERQHEANNRERBWE 2 HEH
BT - EEER/URBRARERHET
BAM—EHEE  BHERROHTRE
I SRR SR BT AR A A = R b B FE
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All independent non-executive Directors of the Company will review, on an
annual basis, any decisions in relation to new business opportunities referred
to the Company. As at the date of this report, there is no new business
opportunity introduced to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify
its Directors and officers in respect of legal actions against the Directors.
Throughout 2014, no claim had been made against the Directors and the
officers of the Company.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors of the Company has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a specific term of three years commencing
13 January 2012, and will be automatically renewed for another three years

upon expiry.

Mr. Cao Zhirong and Li Huizhong, the non-executive Directors of the
Company, had entered into service contracts with the Company for a specific
term of three years from 1 September 2012 and 1 July 2011, respectively.
Their service contracts will be automatically renewed for another three years

upon expiry.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a term
of three years from 19 December 2008. Their service contracts will be
automatically renewed for another three years upon expiry.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

ARRMABEBIFNITESHEBFEMME
AR T AR RROF ML ADRTE © IR
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to a resolution of
the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance with Rules 3.21 to
3.23 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the Code. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to oversee the financial reporting process and
internal control procedure of the Group, to review the financial information
of the Group and to consider issues relating to the external auditor. The
Audit Committee consists of the three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Dr. Wang Ching, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Mr. Cheng Jinshu,
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2014 and for the year ended 31 December
2014, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and the

system of internal control.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee held
2 meetings.

The following table shows the attendance of members of the Audit

Committee’s meetings:

RAFEF EHARRAE321 £3.23 6 K ~FA
FECIBMRE  BEEER_ZZN\F+=
RtHBBBHRERKIEZEEE - B
ZEENIERREAEBARAEENMHERER
BRANEZERT  SHASENMBELR -
AREEBERBINEZERINEE - BREEE]
H=%B I FNTEF (A EREL - HkE
SERBEEEE)EN  BEREZEENEE
RIS - %Vé/\maﬁﬁﬂﬁil%zi
—E-NEXAZTHLEANEARESR
*@EJr:ﬂ:Jr*EILtﬁEE’\JﬁEEM%#E
= ARERAETRRER R —EANRE

=t+—HILFE B

TRENEZZBEKELFEEEZNENR

No. of Audit Committee
meetings attended/held:

Directors: HE BITEZEET
BE: EEARE -
YICK Wing Fat, Simon (Chairman) S (FE) 2/2
WANG Ching F = 2/2
CHENG Jinshu | 2/2

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties. Latest terms of reference of the Audit Committee can be viewed on
the website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

ERLZEQRRHARERBITERE - X
RB g 2 AR EE AT R AR B R R 52
Frradut 2R o
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance
with paragraph B.1 of the Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy for remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages for all Directors.
The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, including three
independent non-executive Directors and the Chairman of the Board, namely,
Mr. Cheng Jinshu, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, Mr. Wang Ching and Mr. Liu
Hongwei. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Cheng Jinshu.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Remuneration Committee
held 1 meeting to assess individual performance of the Directors and review
the remuneration packages and overall benefit of the Directors.

The following table shows the attendance and members of the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2014

FNESE

AARESTTAIFEBLENRE  REEERN
R \F+ AT ARBBRRERK LS
MEEE - FHEZEENTERERMARA
EXNEREEABNFMBER - ARIHIE
RZEHBERRI ER S BERENIZRF K
BETEMEERNHMEN  AEESELES
BER-FMESEHRNUKE (BR=BY
FHTEERESTEIF)MANK - RSHE
£ BKEBELE  EREERBIAMSEL - H
WZEgmizeftERETE -

HE-_Z—NF+-_A=1+—HILFE M
ZEERTREH  MHEEFZEARR

REHNEZFMTRREEREN -

TRENBE-_FT-—OF+_A=1—HLF
EHMEE KB HESHANBER :

No. of Remuneration Committee
meetings attended/held:

Directors: HE BITHFMEEE
EE: BREARE :
CHENG Jinshu (Chairman) Bel(FE) 1/1
YICK Wing Fat, Simon ZKE 1/1
WANG Ching F X 1/1
LIU Hongwei AT 4 1/1

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform
its duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are more specifically set out in its latest terms of reference, details
of which can be viewed on the website of the Company and the website of
the Stock Exchange.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee pursuant to a resolution
of the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance with
Recommended Best Practices of paragraph A.5 of the Code. The primary
duties of the Nomination committee include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board on a regular basis and making recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed changes. The Nomination Committee
consists of five members, including three independent non-executive
Directors and two executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Hongwei, Mr. Xie
Wen, Mr. Wang Ching, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Mr. Cheng Jinshu. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Hongwei.

Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgement of
qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee and review and approval
of such nomination by the Board, The Nomination Committee will evaluate
potential candidates by considering factors such as professional expertise,
relevant experience, personal ethics and integrity.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Nomination Committee held
1 meeting. The following table shows the attendance and members of the
Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December 2014

REEEE

RNRBETTREASEHREREERAOR
T REBEEER-_ZTN\F+_A+NBEB
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o REZESRAMKE (BREZ(IBMIE
WITES MR HITES) HAK - BIZIAT 4%
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No. of Nomination Committee
meetings attended/held:

Directors: HE BITREEEE

55 BERAIRE -

LIU Hongwei (Chairman) BT (F/E) 11
XIE Wen # X 1/1
WANG Ching T = 1/1
YICK Wing Fat, Simon SoKEE 1/1
CHENG Jinshu | 11

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are more specifically set out in its latest terms of reference, details of which
can be viewed on the website of the Company and the website of the Stock
Exchange.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) is
responsible for keeping detailed minutes of each meeting of the Board or
the Board committees including any dissenting views expressed by the
Directors, which should be available to all Directors for inspection. He is also
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures comply with all applicable
laws, rules and regulations and advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. All agenda, relevant materials and document are required to be
sent out at least 3 days prior to the intended dates of the Board meetings or
meetings of the Board committees. It is the responsibility of the Company
Secretary to send the draft minutes of the meetings of the Board or the Board
committees to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the
aforesaid meetings. Final versions of minutes of meetings of the Board or the
Board committees are also required to be sent to all Directors for record. All
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to
ensure that the Board procedures and all applicable laws are followed.

Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on the Listing Rules, regulatory requirements, as well as internal
codes of conduct of the Company.

During the Year, the Company Secretary had confirmed that he had taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the Finance Department, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the Group. In
the preparation of financial statements, International Financial Reporting
Standards have been adopted and the appropriate accounting policies,
disclosure requirements under Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
Listing Rules have been consistently used and applied. The Board aims to
present a clear and balanced assessment of the Group’s performance in the
annual and interim reports to the shareholders of the Company, and make

appropriate disclosure and announcements in a timely manner.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The audit committee of the Board is responsible for making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
authorized external auditors and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors, and any questions of resignation or
dismissal of the external auditors. The Company engaged Ernst & Young as
its external auditors, and also engaged Ernst & Young in connection with the
comfort letters and other assistance in respect of the issue of senior notes
and convertible bonds. Details of the fees paid/payable to Ernst & Young
during the year ended 31 December 2014 are as follows:

ZEETEN &

EXgERZBSARNEE  ERLEEX
FESNEPIZERED - HLESMERAZBNED 2 B2 e HE
3R - AR RSN A B BHE SRR B R (T
AfEE - MEFEEFELHE - ARFRDRBR
IKEETEN B P ARIMNEFAZBIED - BB BT
BARERARRESNS BRI REMBEIER
BRI GHEMEB - BE—FT—NF+_H
=+ —HUEFEEN/ BRZKSARMELSH
WERMT

Audit service ZH AR RMB6,760,000
AE# 6,760,000 JT
Non-audit services IERZBRTS

— Professional services for: - UTEENEERE :
issue of convertible bonds BITAIRRES RMB655,000
AR # 655,000 7T
issue of senior notes BITBAEE RMB655,000
AR # 655,000 7T
— Tax service — T RS HK$104,000
104,00078 7T

Internal control

The Group appointed Shinewing Risk Services Limited to review the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system for the year ended
31 December 2014. The Group is also in the process of improving and
establishing the internal control manual to further enhance its internal control
system.

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for the
Group’s system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness, and,
in particular, considering the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and the training programmes and budget. The Board will conduct periodic
review on the progress of the improvement and endeavor to enhance the
internal control measures of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014, which were prepared in
accordance with applicable accounting standards.

BB 2

REBEZREEKTREREEGRAT - A
HHAEEBEE _Z-NOF+-_A=+—HIt
FENANBEIE RS H’M(/\ o AREB IR LR
%&EX_LW*B SPEHE S| SR E AE

E=MREAANEBARREE RGN H
MEHEE - LERZEBAKENEF &EMW
ERBESTHNER BT EERERE
% AR B TR, uaJI\a%sE&ﬁEQi‘EﬁE
BRR - EFSHTEMIRIRIIBE - BUIM
SRR B AR BRER IR I

EFHUBRRMEE

ERRRARASRRRERN ST ELRE
BE_ZT-WF+-A=1+—HLLFEHRB
BROEME -



20

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SEEREE

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 66 to 67.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of effective communications with
shareholders and continues to act in the best interests of the Company and
its shareholders. The Company keeps shareholders and investors informed of
its business performance and strategies by adopting a transparent and timely
disclosure policy which complies with the Listing Rules and provides all
shareholders equal access to such information. The Company also publishes
all documents on the Company’s website.

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) also provides a
forum for the Board to dialogue and interact with the Shareholders directly.
The Directors and the committee members are available to answer questions
during the AGM. Notice of AGM, annual report, financial statements and
related papers were posted to shareholders of the Company for their
consideration at least 20 clear business days prior to the AGM.

AGM proceedings of the Company are continually reviewed in the light of
corporate governance best practices.

Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of the
Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory disclosure
requirements under Paragraph O of the Code which is effective from 1 April
2012.

(a)  Convening of general meeting on requisition by shareholders

Members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Company’s registered
office in Bermuda at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton,
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(b)

EERHmE

HM11, Bermuda and its principal office in Hong Kong at Unit 3108,
31/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board or the Secretary
of the Company, to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within three (3) months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions
of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a Shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, either any number
of the shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders of the Company, or not less
than one hundred of such shareholders, can request the Company
in writing to (a) give to shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting any
statement of not more than one thousand words with respect to
the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business
to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition signed by all the
requisitionists must be deposited at the Company’s registered office
in Bermuda at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM11,
Bermuda and its principal office in Hong Kong at Unit 3108, 31/F,
China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board on the secretary of
the Company, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
relevant expenses and not less than six weeks before the meeting in
case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less than
one week before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Provided that if an annual general meeting is called for a date six
weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the requisition
though not deposited within the time required shall be deemed to have
been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

(b)
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(c)  Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board in writing to
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office
specifying the objects of the enquiries.

INVESTOR RELATION

During the period under review, there had been no significant change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.

GOING CONCERN

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

The Company has been introducing, and continues to introduce, measures to
comply with the former and revised Corporate Governance Code. Enhancing
corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying and complying with
the Corporate Governance Code of the Stock Exchange but about promoting
and developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture. During the period
under review, the Board considered the following corporate governance
matters:

(i) review of the compliance with the Code; and

(i) review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and risk management
systems of the Group through the Audit Committee.

We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve our current
practices on the basis of our experience, regulatory changes and
developments. Any views and suggestions from our shareholders to promote
and improve our transparency are also welcome.
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Since its inception, the Group has been committed to becoming a green
enterprise model leveraging its advantages and characteristics in the
development of renewable energy business, especially in the field of building
integrated photovoltaic/thermal system and intelligent micro-grid, the Group
also hopes that the advantage of solar energy as a clean energy can be
widely promoted among public. We have embraced our corporate philosophy
of “Giving back to the society” and actively participated in solar energy
related social responsibility projects as we develop our businesses, in order to
promote low-carbon life and harmonious concepts.

SOCIAL CARING

Organized by the labour union, Xiangtan Central Blood Station came to our
Group company in Hunan to receive blood donation in January 2014. Our
staff received medical examination and donated blood in accordance with
strict procedures. For healthy people, blood donation takes only courage and
love, but it means the continuation of life for patients. When the blood reserve
is in tight supply, every healthy one of us is obliged to donate blood so that
life can continue with our love. Our staff has interpreted what contribution is
with their actions and blood.

STAFF TRAINING AND EDUCATION

The Group has been actively practicing “Learning” of its “Singyes Culture”
by encouraging and supporting its staff in continuing education in the hope
that it will cultivate talents for the positions of the Company while providing a
platform for the study and growth of its staff.

In order to effectively improve the skills and comprehensive quality of our
employees, the Group held relevant academic credential education programs
together with universities and colleges across China. In addition, the
employee benefit program of the Group expressly provides that any employee
who enrolle on any on-the-job training organised by the Group will be entitled
to reimbursement by the Company for part or all of the tuition of the course;
and that any employee who enroll on and successfully finish at his own
cost any course organised by external educational institutions will entitled to
reimbursement by the Company for half of such cost.
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In April 2014, the 2014 Xidian University Online Education Class jointly held
by the Group and Zhuhai Training Centre formally commenced. A total of 29
employees of the Group passed the entrance test and received the admission
notice. The courses provided at the class cover subjects such as electric
power engineering management, mechanical and electrical integration and
project management. Furthermore, 6 employees at the research department
of the Group also received the admission notice issued by Hefei University of
Technology for electrical engineering master class.

COLLEGE-INDUSTRY COLLABORATION

The Group has been attaching great importance to its cooperation with
schools. In addition to actively facilitating the integration of production,
learning and research, we also give strong support to social practice and
teaching activities arranged by schools. Each year, we provide opportunities
for visits and practices and hold seminars on the use of renewable energy
for students from primary and secondary schools as well as universities and
colleges, which has played an important role in cultivating and expanding the
perspectives and practical skills of students.

Since February 2012, the Group started to build an internship base in
collaboration with BNU-HKBU United International College (hereinafter
referred to as “UIC”). In May 2014, the teachers and students of the
environmental science department of UIC came to the Company for visit
and study. The students watched on-site demonstrations of products,
technological achievements and project cases of the Group for green
building and renewable energy and obtained an initial understanding of solar
photovoltaic technologies, solar thermal technologies and green buildings.
Roof-top photovoltaic power stations, solar energy water-heating systems and
solar roasting rooms left the students strong impressions. Vivid cases have
enlightened the students of the environmental science department of UIC on
how to improve ecological environment and expand the uses of renewable

energy.

In addition, students of Buddhist Kok Kwong Secondary School visited the
Group on 22 May 2014. They got hands-on experience of electricity and hot
water generated by solar energy and developed great interest in the use of

solar energy.
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SPONSORSHIP OF PHOTOVOLTAIC STREET LAMP
PROJECT

Active participation in various public welfare and seeking the parallel
development of its economic performance and social benefits have been
a growth driver for the Group’s long-term development. The Company
will continue to actively participate in public welfare and strive to make

contributions to development in the western parts in mainland.

In early June this year, 100 sets of solar energy street lamps donated by the
Group to Jinggangshan, a red revolutionary area, had been fully installed and
put to use.

On 19 June 2014, representatives of the Group attended the lightening
donation project communication meeting organised by Jinggangshan
Municipal Government. Local government officials expressed their
appreciations for the Group’s donation to the Jinggangshan solar energy
street lamp project and welcomed the Group’s continuous participation in the
construction of a green Jinggangshan.

In August 2014, the photovoltaic street lamp project sponsored by the Group
was extended to Mengcun Township, Lantian County, Shaanxi Province. Mr.
Liu Hongwei, Chairman of the Group and some of the Group’s representatives
came to Bailuyuan Mengcun, a renowned demonstration township for the
development of small townships, in the company of local government officials.
They visited construction projects and an agricultural technology park in the
area, received a briefing on the development plan and status of Bailuyuan
Mengcun, and inspected the Mengcun photovoltaic street lamp project
sponsored by the Group. Upon completion of the project, street appearance
of the township has improved and energy-saving and environment protection
has been achieved as expected.

At a subsequent solar energy lightening project results exchange meeting,
government officials of Lantian County spoke highly of such model of “industry
supporting agriculture development and enterprises driving township
development” and expressed appreciation for the Group’s support for the
infrastructure development of Mengcun Township by giving the Group a
copper appreciation plague on behalf of local residents.
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PROTECT ENVIRONMENT AND CARE FOR THE
EARTH

In July 2014, the Group launched an environment protection activity for
Banzhang Mountain named “Protect the Environment and Care for the
Earth”. Participating employees of the Group, divided into small groups,
collected and sorted garbage on driveways, sidewalks and mountain
paths, and promoted related environment protection knowledge and the
concept that nothing is trivial when it comes to environment protection to
mountaineers.

The initiative aims to promote and spread environment protection knowledge,
to disseminate environment protection philosophy, to improve the awareness
of environment protection, and to encourage everyone to contribute to the
environment protection cause by starting with daily life and trivial matters.

The Group’s enthusiastic efforts and promotion received attention of the
people in the area. Many expressed their support for environment protection
with their own behaviours and the results were better than expected. Learning
that we organised such activity on our own, cleaners said that Banzhang
Mountain would be cleaner had there been more of such activities.

The activity successfully concluded after four large bags of garbage were
collected and sorted out. It did not last long, but we were able to pass on
our belief to “Protect the Environment and Care for the Earth” to every
participant, and positive results have been produced through interaction and
motivation of more people.

RESOURCES EFFICIENCY

Total consumptions of electricity of our Group in 2014 was 17,044,136
kWh, which implies a total CO2 emission of approximately 1,699 tones and
SOz emission of 201 tones. As a responsible company, the Group is taking
every measures to reduce the negative impact to the environment. We have
installed 14MW roof-top solar power generation systems on the roof of our
building and plant, the annual electricity output is approximately 14,600,000
KWh, under full operation, it helps to save around 3,797 liters of fuel or 5,258
tones of coal usages, which implies a reduction of 14,561 tones of COz,
172 tones of SOz and 63 tones of nitrogen oxides emission. It also reduced
emission of 3,973 tones of dust from coal-fired power generation and saved
58,420 liters of water.
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Regarding energy conservation, the Group has actively implemented an
accountability system. The management staff has implemented sufficient
procedures to remind employees of the need for switching off lights and
power sources after work and adopting sensor faucets in some of the office
areas. The Company also employs dedicated support staff to patrol the
company regularly every night in order to make sure that all power sources
are switched off after work.

The Group also encourage electricity communication in order to save paper
usage. The Group has developed its own OA system for company internal

news announcement and staff communication.

ENERGY CONSERVATION AND EMISSION
REDUCTION

As at the end of December 2014, the Group had constructed over 280
domestic and overseas photovoltaic projects with an accumulative power
output exceeding 800MW and an annual electricity output of approximately
842,600,000 kwh. These projects have helped to save 219,076 liters of
fuels or 303,336 tones of standard coals. In other words, it means that the
emission of COz, SOz, and nitrogen oxides will be cut by 840,072 tones, 9,943
tones and 3,623 tones, respectively. Meanwhile, 229,187 tones of dust will
be reduced during the thermal power generation, thus saving about 3,370,400
liters of water.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We are a professional renewable energy solution provider and building
contractor. Our main businesses are design, fabrication and installation
of conventional curtain walls and solar projects. Solar projects included
Building Integrated Photovoltaic System (“BIPV”) system, roof top solar
system and ground mounted solar system (collectively “Solar EPC”); we also
engaged in the manufacturing and sale of renewable energy goods. Our
BIPV system involves (i) the integration of photovoltaic technology into the
architectural design of buildings and structures and (ii) conversion of solar
energy into electricity for use. Our system allows the electricity generated
from solar panels to be connected to the power grid of a building and the
electricity generated from sun power will be consumed simultaneously.
No extra electricity storage cost is required. In addition, we also engage in
the production and sale of renewable energy goods, including smart grid
system and solar thermal system. In 2011, we also started a new business
called Indium Tin Oxide (“ITO”) business or “New material” business for
the development of high-end curtain wall in future. Leveraging on our track
record and extensive experience in our curtain wall business, we will further
strengthen and develop our renewable energy business in respect of BIPV
systems and renewable energy goods. Apart from the above, we also provide
engineering design services and engage in the sale of curtain wall materials.
Our Group will endeavour to continue our focus on solar business. In the
long run, we will aspire and strive to grow into an enterprise with a focus on
renewable energy business.

FUTURE PLAN AND STRATEGIES
Curtain wall and green building business

Despite the unfavourable market environment in the construction industry
in China, the Group still recorded a 21.9% growth in curtain wall and green
building business. The Chinese government implemented various supporting
programs on green buildings. We therefore are strategically shifting our focus
in to green building area so as to explore new business opportunity.

Solar EPC business

The Group has firstly entered into the Solar EPC market in China in 2007,
because of the strong support by the Golden Sun Program, our Solar EPC
business recorded a significant growth over the past few years. In 2013, the
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Chinese Government also launched National-wide Feed-in-Tariff Program
(“FIT™) and Distributive Power Program (“DG”). In 2015, the aggregate target
from FIT and DG would be 17.8GW. The Mainland China is currently the
largest solar user in the World and we are confident to maintain the leading
position in Solar EPC area.

Development of renewable energy goods and new materials

Apart from Solar EPC, we also produce different kind of renewable energy
goods.

Renewable energy goods include solar photovoltaic materials and solar
thermal products. Solar thermal products include air-source heat pump, solar
heat collectors and solar heating system. Our long-term strategy is, through
our innovative research and development team, to diversify the application of
solar, and to widen the solar application in different area, like rural application
and irrigation.

Self-Develop solar projects

Apart from being Solar EPC, the Group also develops (to invest and to build)
its own solar projects. In 2014, the Group has developed approximately
103MW of self-developed projects. The Group sold 25MW of solar projects
to an independent third party inside Mainland China for a consideration
of RMB8&9.7 million, net gain on disposal was RMB35.3 million, and sold
5MW of income right to an independent third party in Hong Kong for a
consideration of RMB19 million.

As at the end of 2014, the Group had 80MW of ground-mounted solar farms
and 90.8MW of roof-top solar power station under Golder Sun in operation.
Total electricity income, including government subsidy, was approximately
RMB51.6 million. The Group had approximately 274MW of solar projects on
hand as at 31 December 2014.

Up to the date of this report, the Group has approximately 100MW of solar
projects under development and we plan to build not less than 300MW in
this year.
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Overseas business opportunities

Revenue outside Mainland China accounted for approximately 0.8% of
our total revenue in 2014. The Group has already secured certain sizable
projects in Hong Kong, Macau and some Southeast Asia regions, a significant

increase in overseas business is expected in 2015.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The following table set out the breakdown of revenue:

B R FELASMBE B AE A B — T — U
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—HILEE

2014 2013
—®-mF —F-=%
RMB million RMB million

ARBEET ARBBEET

Curtain walls and green buildings e AR R
— Public work — AETE 335.7 381.3
— Commercial and industrial — I 1,076.9 900.5
— High-end residential — SEF=E 258.2 88.9
1,670.8 1,370.7
Solar EPC KF58E EPC
— Public work — AHETRE 49.7 85.6
— Commercial and industrial — I 2,014.7 1,803.3
2,064.4 1,888.9
Total Construction Contracts RS RIEET 3,735.2 3,259.6
Sale of goods BEmiEeE
— Conventional materials — EHME 186.3 220.9
— Renewable energy goods — A EARERER 1,015.6 622.6
— New materials — ¥R 44.8 359
Total sale of goods EREEA 1,246.7 879.4
Sale of electricity BHEE 19.7 5.4
Rendering of design and other services R RET R A AR TS 9.8 6.1
Total revenue A 5,011.4 4,150.5
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Gross profit and gross profit margin EFREFFE
2014 2013
—T—QmE —E-=4F
RMB million %  RMB million %
AREEST AREBEET

Construction contracts EEER
— Curtain walls and green buildings — BN EREE 255.5 15.3 220.2 16.1
— Solar EPC — KFZ8EEPC 550.3 26.7 556.7 29.5
805.8 21.6 776.9 23.8

Sale of goods EmigE
— Conventional materials — EE 31.3 16.8 44.6 20.2
— Renewable energy goods — A EAREIRE M 191.6 18.9 154.6 24.8
— New materials — ¥tE 14.5 324 95 26.5
237.4 19.0 208.7 23.7
Sale of electricity BHHEE (1.7) (8.6) 0.2 3.7
Rendering of design and other services R AT R E M ARTS 7.5 76.5 2.6 42.6
Total gross profit and gross profit margin BERN REF = 1,049.0 20.9 988.4 23.8
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The Group’s revenue increased by RMB860.9 million or 20.7%, from
RMB4,150.5 million in 2013 to RMB5,011.4 million in 2014. Gross profit of
the Group increased by RMB60.6 million or 6.1%, from RMB988.4 million in
2013 to RMB1,049.0 million in 2014.

The Group’s curtain wall and green building business recorded a
growth of RMB300.1 million or 21.9%; gross profit increased by
RMB35.3 million or 16.0%. Gross profit margin dropped slightly to
15.6%. The increase in curtain wall business and green building was
mainly driven by the commercial and residential sector.

Looking forward to 2015, the Group will put more emphasis on
government or infrastructure related projects.

The Group’s Solar EPC business grew by RMB175.5 million or 9.3%,
gross profit slightly dropped by RMB6.4 million or 1.1%. Gross profit
margin was 26.7%.

Strong demand is noted in Commercial and industrial sector and
revenue grew by 11.7%. The Mainland China government continue to
give strong support to both Distributed Power (“DG”) and feed-in-tariff
(“FIT"), also because of the cheaper material supply, investment return
in solar system is more attractive than before and hence demand from
commercial and industrial are strong.
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Sale of goods comprise sale of conventional materials; sale of
renewable energy goods and sale of new materials. Sale of goods
increased by RMB367.3 million or 41.8%, the main driver was the sale
of renewable energy goods and new materials.

Sale of conventional materials dropped by RMB34.6 million or
15.7% during the year, the Group is shifting focus to more profitable
renewable energy goods and solar related business and hence sale
from curtain wall business drop.

For sale of renewable energy goods, nearly 63.1% of revenue growth
is noted because of the significant increase in demand. On the other
hand, gross profit increased by RMB37.0 million or 23.9%, gross profit
margin in 2014 was 18.9% (2013: 24.8%). The government has just
finalized the DG policy in September 2014, majority of our products
sale during the year were targeted to solar farm and therefore lower
margin was noted.

Outlook for new material business remains positive, revenue grew by
RMB8.9 million or 24.8%, gross profit margin during the year was
32.4% (2013: 26.5%).
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Revenue and profit contribution from different business sectors: KB AR EFEES U Rt F]
Revenue split WA 57
2014 2013
—E—MF ZE—=%F
RMB million %  RMB million %
ARBEERT AREBHET
Conventional business! B ER! 1,866.9 37.2 1,597.7 38.5
Renewable energy business? A A RLRER? 3,099.7 61.9 2,516.9 60.6
New material business R R 44.8 0.9 35.9 0.9
5,011.4 100 4,150.5 100
Profit split B
2014 2013
—F—MNF —T—=F
RMB million %  RMB million %
ARBESET AREBHET
Conventional business! (EEES 294.3 28.0 267.4 27.1
Renewable energy business? Al B AEREIREETS? 740.2 70.6 711.5 72.0
New material business IR R 14.5 1.4 9.5 0.9
1,049.0 100.0 988.4 100.0
L Included curtain wall and green building construction contracts, sale of s PEBEBRGZCEESH  HEERMER
conventional materials and rendering of design and other services. RS RE MR ©

e Included Solar EPC construction contracts, sale of renewable energy goods and

sale of electricity.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains mainly represented recognition of deferred income,

receipt of government subsidy and interest income from banks. The increase
was mainly because RMB131.2 million (2013: RMB48.1 million) of deferred
income was recognised in respect of the selling of solar assets.

2 BIEAGREEPCREAR - HEMERER
RHEES -

H A\ B i

HWARKEFZABRETKA - I8
B BT M B KR 1T A BRA o EZHMEE
EHRLEAGREEERRELT RE A

¥ 131,200,000 c( = —=F: AR %
48,100,000 7T) °
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Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by RMB13.3 million or 17.6%.
The increase in selling and distribution expense was mainly caused by the
increase in staff costs, and other business related expenses. The increase
in staff costs was because of the increase in salary and bonus. The levels of
changes in other items were consistent with our business growth.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by RMB51.8 million or 23.7%. The
increase in administrative expenses was again mainly driven by the increase
in staff costs, depreciation, research expense and other business related
expenses.

Other expenses

Other expenses increased by RMB67.9 million comparing with 2013. The
increase was mainly because of the RMB72.7 million (2013: RMB28.5
million) loss on selling of 256MW (2013: 15MW) solar systems, RMB10.1
million of issue expenses of convertible bonds and RMB3.0 million of fair
value loss on derivative financial instruments.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs increased by RMB127.0 million. The increase in
finance costs was because of the increase in bank and other loans (including
bank advances for discounted bills), interest incurred on convertible bonds
and senior notes issued in Hong Kong, and the penalty on early repayment of
a syndication loan.

HERSHMAX

55 Ko o0 3K B I8 0 A R % 13,300,000 7T 3%
17.6% @ T EMRNE TAA N E M X748 B 5
BN o B TRCAIE AT i T & RAEAT I
o BARIE B R BB /KT B R [ TR e —
B o

1TBRX

THHAX EHA AR ¥51,800,0007T 3
23.7%  TTHASX EANEZERHEARE K
A PE - RERREMAEEERERA G
FEK »

HAthBAZ

RO-TF—=—FHhE HMOAXBNARR
67,900,0007C ° sZ B MER R BN L ES H
BRE(=F—=%F : 16JkR) KF5RE Ak
BERARE 72,700,000 T (ZT—=4F: A
E#28,500,0007T) * AIARMEZFHITHIA
K #10,100,0007C * RITEGBT AN AT
&R A K% 3,000,000 7T

RAERAE

ZNER [ BB R AN I A R #5 127,000,000 7T °
BERAENZHRIRITREMER (BHER
RRBRITEF) B - IRBARITHA R
&5 RBERBEENF S AR EE—
FREERNE S -



36

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& D

Income tax

Income tax included RMB125.1 million of taxation charge and RMB11.0
million of deferred tax credit.

Deferred tax credit of RMB11.0 million (2013: RMB3.2 million) has been
recorded mainly in respect of tax loss, fair value adjustment on retention
receivables and government grants. In 2013, deferred tax also included
RMB28.4 million deferred tax charge on provision for dividend withholding
tax based on 5% of net profits on operating subsidiaries of the Group located
inside Mainland China.

Strong current ratio

The current ratio being current assets over current liabilities, was 1.58 as at
31 December 2014 (2013: 1.46).

Trade and bills receivables/trade and bills payables turnover
days

Frig®i

FTS#i B8 f 8 S AR # 125,100,000 7T &
PEIEFR B Y s A R 11,000,000 7T °

HHIEEE BERERSHAFEFRER
BN #B M EnECHEBEREZSARYE
11,000,00070( = — =4 : ARK¥3,200,000
L) o ZE—=F BB ENBRIEERAEE
7 FA FR B K B A 5 8 BT B A R A 4T 1 5% T
ENREENMBENEERIBESL L ARKE
28,400,000 7T, °

SRR ENEL 2
RELR(AREBEERARBEENLR)
R-ZE—NF+-_A=+—HA18(=ZZ

—=%F:146)-

FEWEE B IA R BRI R B
IHREMERESR

At 31 December At 31 December

2014 2013

R-F—NE RZZT—=%F

+-A=+—H +=—A=+—H

Turnover days Days Days
AR H H
Trade and bills receivables FE W 5 08 I R W R B 143 134
Trade and bills payables BB SFEREMNRE 117 103

Trade and bills receivables turnover days is calculated based on the average
of the beginning and ending balance of trade and bills receivables, net
of impairment, for the year divided by the revenue during the year and
multiplied by the number of days during the year. Trade and bills receivables
turnover days at 31 December 2014 was 143 days. Trade and bills payables
turnover days is calculated based on the average of the beginning and ending
balance of trade and bills payables for the year divided by the cost of sales
during the year. Trade and bills payables turnover days at 31 December 2014
was 117 days, an improvement is noted when comparing with 2013.

FEUE 558 Ik RN AR EEE A YRR F e
W Z 55718 R FEWE IR B F 9 R F R AR
ﬁ@méﬁﬁ'@u¢WWA'ﬁﬁu¢WH
HEE - BNESRERERRERERN =
%-m¢+—ﬁ—+—aﬁmsaorﬁé%
FIE RN ZIEEE R IREF AR E SR
E&Eﬁ%ﬁmimﬁﬁx SRR TIIE - BR
NEFRHERARTE - BNESRBRENE
BEAEAR= %—m¢+ =t Elp 1T
Ho BT —=FA - ERNEZHIERER
SRAEABSRE ©
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Liquidity and financial resources

The Group’s primary source of funding included receivables from
construction contracts and material sale, as well as revenue from electricity
sale. In order to meet the expanding plan, the Group has completed a few
rounds of fund raising activities during the year.

In August 2014, the Group has issued a RMB930 million USD settled
convertible bonds (the “CB”) which have been listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 5790). The CB bears interest at 5% per annum and convertible
into the shares of the Company, details of which has been set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 17 July 2014 and 8 August 2014.
The net proceeds of the CB was approximately RMB903 million (USD146
million), as at the date of this report, approximately USD92 miillion or 63% of
the net proceeds has been used to repay existing banking obligations and the
rest of the proceeds were mainly used in capital expenditure.

In November 2014, The Group has issued a RMB560 million 3 years senior
notes which have been listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 85704).
The senior notes bear interest at 7.875% per annum, details of which has
been set out in the announcements of the Company dated 11 November
2014 and 17 November 2014. The net proceeds of the senior notes were
approximately RMB542 million, of which RMB398 million or 73% has been
used as capital expenditure and the rest was mainly used as operating
expenses as at the date of this report.

The Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a healthy level in
order to support the growth of our business. Gearing ratio, represented by
consolidated net borrowings (being bank and other loans, bank advances
for discounted bills, senior notes and liability component of the Convertible
Bonds, less cash and cash equivalents) to total equity at 31 December 2014
was 64.4% (2013: 25.2%).

RBEERUBER

AEEESNERRBBERERESR R
KR EMEKEIE - LRKREE N HENHK
A e RmRERE . FAREEE TR —
WEEE RS

RZZB—MENA AEEEHTARE
930,000,000 7T #) 35 7T 45 & 7T #2 i & 25 ([ 7]
BRES ) ZEFCRBRA LT (EHR
5% : 5790) - AR ESFFN K RE% LA HE
BARRBRD - FEHRARRRHA-E
—FELA+EARZZE—NENANANA
oA - AR ES A ERIBFRN/ARE
903,000,000 7T (146,000,000 7T ) © A A =R
& B H7 - £992,000,000 2 7T, 3% 63% K AT 15 3K
IHFREARNEERARITEERBTAENR
BT EMEERMX -

RZT—WF+—A AEEDHITARE
560,000,000 TTH) = FHIB L 24 - B A ZE
BE R AT LT (B HRIE - 85704) « 185
ZRIRFERN KT 875% 18 FIBHNARAA]
HEA—ZT—NF+—A+—BR=ZZ—NF
+—A+EBENAHA - BEZRBENAMEHIE
SRR B AR 542,000,0007 © RAIRE B
HA - A R 398,000,000 7T 8 73% Y FT 18 3K
BFHECAREAMZ RSB TEREXER
EEIERX °

RNEE MRS R G A B A B R RIFNIRRIK
T AR EBER - BAABLEERRIEEE
BEFRE (BRI REMER - BREEIRTT
BN BEERRAIMRESNA GBI R
RS FEY) RAEREE  RZF—MN
=g we =t b ey AN LN e e
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Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditure of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
RMB1,055.1 million, major investment during the year included roof top or
ground mounted solar systems; a new factory premises and a new office and
R&D centre in Zhuhai. Capital expenditure in 2013 was RMB1,292.3 million
and was mainly for construction of self owned solar systems.

Borrowings and bank facilities

The outstanding borrowings comprised bank and other loans of RMB1,379.2
million with effective interest rates ranging from Hong Kong Inter Bank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) + 0.95% to HIBOR + 4% for property mortgage loan
and revolving loans in Hong Kong and London Inter Bank Offered Rate + 2.5%
for a short term loan in Hong Kong. Interest rates for domestic loans inside
Mainland China were ranging from 5.04%-9.07%.

Apart from the bank and other borrowings, the Group also raised RMB930
million of CB with coupon rate of 5% per annum and RMB560 million of
senior notes with coupon rate of 7.875% per annum, both of them are

unsecured.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s principle businesses are located in the PRC and most of the
transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB, except for that of the overseas subsidiaries which
functional currencies are currencies other than the RMB and certain items
of cash and cash equivalents that are denominated in HK$, US$ and other

currencies.

The Group does not consider that it has any significant exposure to the
risk of fluctuation in the exchange rate between HK$, US$ and RMB as
a reasonable possible change of 5% in RMB against US$ would have no
significant financial impact to the Group’s profit.

BXx

HE-_EZ-—WNE+_A=+—RHILFE"
REEMEARZ H R/ AR1,055100,000
T FANEERERFEREESMERE AL
BERET  FREHH T E R A E R
B cRZTE—=ZFHNELARIABARE
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ESs
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BE([EBRITEAEFEXDINOBRESR
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M2.5% o PEIKBEE KK FENF5.04% 2
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BRIBITREMEEN  AEBACEEER
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Credit risk

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade
and other receivables, and other financial assets represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. Substantially
all of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held in major financial
institutions located in Mainland China and Hong Kong, which management
believes are of high credit quality.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is
the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

As at the end of the report period, the Group had certain concentration of
credit risk as 12.8% and 42.9% (2013: 22.6% and 41.4%) of the Group’s
trade and bills receivables were due from the Group’s largest customer and
five largest customers, respectively. All of these customers have good credit
quality by taking into account of their credit history, a long-term business
relationship has been established by both parties. The Group has delegated
a team which is responsible for determination of credit limits and monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up actions will be implemented to recover
overdue debts.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity
planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial instruments
and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the settlement
from customers and the payment to vendors.
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Dividend

The Directors of the Company proposed a final dividend of HK$0.09 per
share (2013: HK$0.09 per share). The Company is in rapid expansion stage,
the actual dividend payout ratio in each year will depend on the actual
performance of the Group, the general industry and economic environment.

Closure of register of members

The register of members will be closed from Thursday, 21 May 2015 to
Wednesday, 27 May 2015, both days inclusive. In order to entitle to the
attendance of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, all
share transfers documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, namely Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 20 May 2015.

The Company’s register of members will be closed from Tuesday, 2 June
2015 to Wednesday, 3 June 2015 (both days inclusive), during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to qualify for
the proposed final dividend, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrars and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 22 Hopewell Centre 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 1 June 2015.

Cheques for final dividend (subject to approval in the annual general meeting
mentioned above) will be dispatched to the shareholders of the Company on
or before Friday, 10 July 2015.

B
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HUMAN RESOURCES ANER

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had about 2,700 employees. Employee RZZE—NF+=ZA=+—H ' A&EEHE
salary and other benefit expenses increased to approximately RMB190.0 2700%EE - BETITERHEMBEFAXH

million in 2014 from approximately RMB162.4 million in 2013, which —E-=FHARY162,400,000 T E =
represented an increase of 17.0%. The Group’s remuneration policies T — I F 4 A R%190,000,0007C * 18 A
are formulated on the performance of individual employees, which will 17.0% - AEENFWECR YiZEEE RE

be reviewed regularly every year. Apart from provident fund scheme FIE - BBFECHTURE BRABEE2TE
(according to the provisions of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes for Hong (RBERREBEERNEHERED R
Kong employees) or the state-managed retirement pension scheme (for BGHR)KEREBRERRESHECGERRFREK
Mainland China employees) and medical insurance, discretionary bonus befe B ) REZERRIN - MEREERES R
are also awarded to employees according to the assessment of individual BAFHE R B R HBIBTEA -
performance.
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The table below sets forth information regarding our Directors:

TRENBEEENER

Name Age Position 2 Fih 52

Liu Hongwei 51 Chairman and executive Director 24THE 5l FERPTES
Sun Jinli 51 Deputy Chairman, and executive Director FaeE 5l BIERERNITES
Xie Wen 49 Executive Director ;W OX 498 WITES

Li Huizhong 65 Non-executive Director Teh 658 EHITESE

Cao Zhirong 41 Non-executive Director BEE  41® EMITES

Wang Ching 60 Independent non-executive Director T ®m 60B% B IEITES
Yick Wing Fat, Simon 57 Independent non-executive Director Sx%E  57H B IERNITES
Cheng Jinshu 62 Independent non-executive Director 2ol 625 BUEITES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Liu Hongwei aged 51, is the Chairman and an executive Director of our
Company.

He joined our Group since August 1995. He is responsible for the formulation
and execution of our Group’s overall business strategies and policies as well
as the overall management of our Group. Mr. Liu has more than 12 years’
experience in the glass manufacturing sector and more than 16 years’
experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. After obtaining a bachelor’s
degree in engineering in July 1986 from Wuhan Industrial University, now
known as Wuhan University of Technology, majoring in inorganic materials
engineering, Mr. Liu worked at a state-owned glass manufacturing enterprise,
Shaanxi Glass Factory, as a technician until 1989. From 1989 to 1991, Mr.
Liu was the director of production department at another glass manufacturing
enterprise, Zhuhai Glass Factory. From 1991 to 1995, Mr. Liu Hongwei was
the manager of the operation department of Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass.
In 1995, Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass jointly established Zhuhai Singyes
Green Building Technology Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai Singyes”, formerly known as
Zhuhai Singyes Curtain Wall Engineering Co., Ltd) with Zhuhai City Township
Enterprise. Since November 2003, Mr. Liu has been an executive Director
of our Company. From August 1995 to October 2007, Mr. Liu was appointed
as Zhuhai Singyes’s general manager, taking charge of general supervising
and controlling on technologies. In December 2000, Mr. Liu was certified as
a Level 1 Project Manager by the Guangdong Province Construction Bureau.
In January 2001, Mr. Liu was certified as a Senior Engineer in respect of
construction materials by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau.
In 2003, Mr. Liu became an adjunct professor of Wuhan University of

B4L4E - 5157 BAQBEBRYITES -

BE—AAAFAARMBRER - REIEH
B AR B B8 ST SRR S BRI TE ST
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Technology. In August 2004, Mr. Liu was appointed as one of the experts to
the Standardisation Technical Committee of the PRC Ministry of Construction
for Curtain Walls, Doors and Windows. Mr. Liu is currently a member of the
Standing Committee of the Zhuhai Municipal People’s Congress of the PRC
Mr. Liu is also a director of Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. which is the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Sun Jinli aged 51, is our Deputy Chairman and an executive Director.

He joined our Group in August 1995. He is responsible for formulating the
overall sales and marketing strategies of our Group. Mr. Sun has more than
nine years’ experience in the glass manufacturing sector and more than
16 years’ experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. After obtaining
a bachelor’s degree in engineering in July 1986 from Wuhan Industrial
University, now known as Wuhan University of Technology, majoring in
inorganic materials engineering, Mr. Sun worked at Beijing Electronics
Factory as a technician until 1989. From 1989 to 1995, Mr. Sun was the
manager of the production department of Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass. From
August 1995 to January 2001, Mr. Sun was a project manager of Zhuhai
Singyes, responsible for the development and management of business
projects. From January 2001 to October 2007, Mr. Sun was the deputy
general manager of Zhuhai Singyes, responsible for planning the overall sales
and marketing strategy of Zhuhai Singyes and our Group. Since March 2005,
Mr. Sun has been an executive Director of our Company. Since 2007, Mr. Sun
has also been working as the general manager of Singyes Renewable Energy.
In December 1994, Mr. Sun was certified as an engineer by the Guangdong
Province Zhuhai Designation Reform Committee In March 2002, Mr. Sun was
certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of Construction. In
December 2007, Mr. Sun was registered as a constructor by the Ministry of
Construction. Mr. Sun is also a director of Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. which is
the controlling shareholder of the Company.
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Xie Wen aged 49, is our executive Director.

He joined our Group in August 1995. He is responsible for supervision at
our work-sites and research and development of BIPV technologies. Mr.
Xie has more than 16 years’ experience in curtain wall engineering sector.
Mr. Xie graduated from Zhengzhou Textile Engineering College majoring in
mechanical engineering (textile machinery) in 1987. From 1987 to 1994,
Mr. Xie worked at the Equipment Energy Team in Hunan Shaoyang No. 2
Textile Machinery Factory. Mr. Xie joined Zhuhai Singyes in August 1995
as a project manager, responsible for the development and management
of business projects of Zhuhai Singyes. From January 2003 to September
2007, Mr. Xie was the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes, in charge
of technical guidance and supervision at various worksites. In October 2007,
Mr. Xie became the general manager of Zhuhai Singyes. In December 2002,
Mr. Xie was certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of
Construction. In June 2004, Mr. Xie was certified as a senior engineer in
respect of machinery by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau. In
February 2008, Mr. Xie was registered as a constructor by the PRC Ministry
of Construction. Mr. Xie is also a director of Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. which
is the controlling shareholder of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Li Huizhong, aged 65, was appointed as non-executive director of our
Company on 1 July 2011. Prior to this appointment, he was a vice general
manager of Zhuhai Singyes Green Building Technology Co., Ltd (“Zhuhai
Singyes”), a subsidiary of the Company and retired from his position
in Zhuhai Singyes in year 2010. Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Economics from Heilongjiang Radio and Television University in July 1986.
Prior to joining the Group in year 2000, Mr. Li was the general manager of the
Zhuhai office of Daging Petroleum Administrative Bureau.

Cao Zhirong aged 41, is our non-executive Director. He joined our group
in September 2009. Currently Mr. Cao is Director of BNP Paribas Equities
(Asia) Limited Shanghai Representative Office. Previously he worked at ICEA
Capital Limited and Wing Lung Finance Limited and has approximately 15
years of experience in investment bank. Mr. Cao obtained a master degree in
business administration from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wang Ching, aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of our Company in December 2008. Dr. Wang has near 20 years’
managerial experience in investment banking, securities, treasury and asset
management in the United States, Hong Kong, Taiwan and the PRC. He
was the president of Investment and Proprietary Trading Group for Jih Sun
Financial Holding Co. Ltd. in Taiwan, the managing director of JS Cresvale
Securities International Limited, the managing director of SinoPac Securities
Asia Ltd. in Hong Kong, SEVP of SinoPac Securities Co. Ltd. in Taiwan, the
director of Investment Banking Department at Standard Chartered Bank
Hong Kong and the associate director of Bear Stearns & Co. Inc., New York
and Hong Kong. Dr. Wang currently is the managing director of Shanghai
International Asset Management (HK) Co. Ltd., a licensed corporation
registered with Honk Kong Securities and Futures Commission. He is also
the executive director of Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment
Limited, an investment fund company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 770). Dr. Wang obtained his master degree in business administration
from the University of Houston and Ph.D. in finance from Columbia University
in the city of New York.

Yick Wing Fat, Simon, aged 57, is our independent non-executive director
and chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Yick holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, majoring
in Accounting. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants in
England. Mr. Yick has over 30 years of experience in audit, direct investment,
investment banking and corporate advisory services.

Mr. Yick also serves as an independent non-executive director and chairman
of the audit committee of Shenzhen Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Co.,
Ltd. and Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment Limited (both
are listed on the Stock Exchange).
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Cheng lJinshu, aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of our Company in December 2008. Mr. Cheng is the professor
director of Science and Technology Division and director of the Green
Construction Material & Manufacture Project Research Institute of Ministry
of Education of Wuhan University of Technology. He was the vice-dean
of Material Project Department, vice-dean of Material College and vice-
director of Silicate Material Project, key laboratory of the Ministry of
Education of Wuhan University of Technology. Mr. Cheng graduated from
the Hubei Construction Industry College, now known as Wuhan University
of Technology, majoring in glass fiber in September 1976. Mr. Cheng has 34
years’ education and academic research experience relating to construction
materials.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Xiong Shi, aged 51, is the Chief Engineer of our Group. He is responsible
for the research and development of technology. He has more than 12
years’ experience in the glass manufacturing sector and more then 16 years’
experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. Mr. Xiong joined our Group
as a project manager in August 1995. From November 2001, Mr. Xiong
assumed the position of Chief Engineer of Zhuhai Singyes until August 2007.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Xiong was the manager of the quality testing
department at Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass from 1988 to 1995. Mr. Xiong
also worked as a technical officer at a state-owned glass manufacturing
enterprise, Xiangfan City Glass Factory, from 1986 to 1988. Mr. Xiong was
certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of Construction
in December 2000. Mr. Xiong was certified as a senior engineer in respect
of construction materials by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau in
December 2001. Mr. Xiong obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering from
Wuhan Industrial University, now known as Wuhan University of Technology,
majoring in inorganic materials engineering in July 1986. In December
2007, Mr. Xiong was registered as a constructor by the PRC Ministry of
Construction.
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Zhuo Jianming, aged 54, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes.
He has approximately 14 years’ experience in the curtain wall engineering
sector. He joined our Group as project manager in February 2000. From
January 2001, Mr. Zhuo assumed the position of deputy general manager
of production of Zhuhai Singyes. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhuo was
certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of Construction
in March 2002. Mr. Zhuo obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering and
construction from Xi’an Jiaotong University in 1983.

Zhao Feng, aged 49, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes since
August 2007. He is also a director of Zhuhai Singyes. He joined our Group
as a sales and marketing manager in December 2002. He has approximately
12 years of experience in the construction sector and approximately 11
years’ experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Zhao worked as an engineer of Hubei Province Shashi
Construction Materials Scientific Research Institute from 1987 to 1995. Mr.
Zhao was certified as a Senior Engineer in respect of construction materials
by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau in December 2004. Mr.
Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree in Engineering from Wuhan Industrial
University, now known as Wuhan University of Technology, majoring in
materials science in July 1987. Mr. Zhao became the general manager of
Zhuhai Singyes Renewable Energy Co., Ltd, and responsible for managing its
daily operation.

Wang Zhijun, aged 39, is the chief financial officer of our Company since
May 2008. He has 15 years of experience in financial accounting. He joined
Zhuhai Singyes as a financial accountant in September 1998 immediately
after he graduated from Qingdao University. From 2002 to 2006, Mr. Wang
acted as the chief accountant of the accounting department of Zhuhai
Singyes and became the financial manager of Zhuhai Singyes in June 2006.
Mr. Wang qualified as a registered assistant accountant in the PRC in August
1999.
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Zhang Chao, aged 42, is the operating general manager of Zhuhai Singyes.
Mr. Zhang joined our Group in December 2002 as the manager of the
business department of Zhuhai Singyes. He has approximately 12 years of
experience in the construction sector and approximately 11 years’ experience
in the curtain wall engineering sector. Mr. Zhang graduated from Qigihaer
Railway Transportation Employee University majoring in industry and civil
construction in July 1995. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhang worked as a
construction budgeteer at Heilongjiang Province Hei He City Railway (Group)
Company from 1995 to 2002. In January 2006, Mr. Zhang was certified as
a constructor by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau. Mr. Zhang
was also certified as a National Construction Appraiser by the Construction
Department in 2003 and construction engineer by Zhuhai Personnel Bureau
in 2005. In December 2007, Mr. Zhong was registered as a constructor by
the PRC Ministry of Construction.

Luo Duo, aged 36, is the chief engineer of Zhuhai Singyes. She joined
our Group as a designer in July 2001. She has approximately 12 years of
experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. Ms. Luo worked as the
vice-director of design institute of Zhuhai Singyes from November 2004 to
December 2006 and the director of design institute from January 2007 to
January 2008. In February 2008 she was appointed as the chief engineer
of Zhuhai Singyes. Ms. Luo was certified as a Class 2 Registered Structural
Engineer by the PRC Ministry of Construction in January 2005. Ms. Luo
was certified as a Plan-Design Engineer by the Zhuhai Personnel Bureau
in February 2008. Ms. Luo obtained a bachelor’s degree in Construction
Engineering from Qingdao Construction Engineery College in July 2001.
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Liang Bingqiang, aged 37, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes
and responsible for the development of the overseas market. He has more
than 13 years of experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. He joined
our Group as a designer in April 2002. Mr. Liang worked as the director
of design department of Zhuhai Singyes Beijing representative office from
July 2004 to July 2006 and he worked for Zhongshan Shengxing Curtain
Wall Company Ltd from August 2000 to March 2002. In August 2006, he
was appointed as the manager of the photo-electricity business department
of Zhuhai Singyes. In April 2008, he was appointed as the deputy general
manager of Singyes Renewable Energy. Mr. Liang was certified as an
Assistant Engineer by the Zhongshan Personnel Bureau in October 2001.
Mr. Liang was certified as a Construction Design Engineer by the Zhuhai
Personnel Bureau in January 2006. Mr. Liang obtained a bachelor’'s degree
in construction engineering from Tianjin Institute of Urban Construction in
July 2000.

YU Chon Man, aged 37, was appointed as the financial controller, qualified
accountant and company secretary of our Company in June 2008. He
is responsible for financial reporting and general investor affairs of our
Company. He has approximately 16 years of experience in financial
accounting. Mr. Yu is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Prior to joining us, he had approximately seven years of working
experience with international audit firms and was mainly responsible for
financial auditing, internal control reporting and compliance advisory. He
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor’s
degree (Hons) in accountancy in 2001.

Mr. Yu also serves as an independent non-executive director and chairman of
audit committee of Time2U International Holding Limited (stock code: 1327),
and the independent non-executive director of Winto Group (Holding) Limited
(stock code: 8238). Mr. Yu was an independent non-executive director of Sky
Forever Supply Chain Management Group Limited (stock code: 8047) from
June 2014 to July 2014.

COMPANY SECRETARY

YU Chon Man, is our company secretary. For further details regarding Mr.
Yu, please see the paragraph headed “Senior Management” above.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) have pleasure to present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 24 October 2003 as an
exempted company with limited liability. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.
The Company has established a principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Unit 3108, 31st Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, and was registered with the
Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong as an oversea company under Part
Xl of the Companies Ordinance on 29 August 2008. Mr. Yu Chon Man has
been appointed as the authorised representative of the Company for the
acceptance of service of process and notices on behalf of the Company in
Hong Kong.

As the Company is incorporated in the Bermuda, the operation of the
Company is subject to the Companies Law and to its constitution comprising

a memorandum of association and the bye-laws.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is a
professional renewable energy system integrator and building contractor, it is
principally engaged in the design, fabrication and installation of conventional
curtain walls and solar projects. Solar projects included building integrated
photovoltaic (“BIPV”) system, roof top solar system and ground mounted
solar system (collectively “Solar EPC”). The BIPV system involves (i) the
integration of photovoltaic technology into the architectural design of buildings
and structures and (ii) conversion of solar energy into electricity for use. In
addition, the Group also engages in the production and sale of renewable
energy goods, including smart grid system, and solar thermal system. The
Group’s principal operating market is in Mainland China.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 17 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s top five customers are the main contractors of various public
or commercial BIPV or curtain wall or solar form investors. In aggregate, the
largest and top five customers contributed approximately 20.7% and 44.8%
of the Group’s total revenue in 2014 respectively.

The Group currently outsources part of the construction works for various
sub-contractors in the PRC, as well as sourcing PV penal, aluminium and
glass from suppliers inside the PRC. In 2014, the top five suppliers include
material suppliers and sub-contractors, sub-contracting fees paid or material
purchase to its largest and five largest suppliers were about 21.1% and
41.8% of the Group’s total cost of sale in 2014 respectively.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major suppliers and/or customers.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries which principally affect
the results as at 31 December 2014 are set out in note 17 to the financial
statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profits of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the
Company'’s and the Group’s financial positions as at the same date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 68 to 200. The Directors recommend
the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 of
HK$0.09 per share (2013: HK$0.09 per share).

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserve of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 73 of the annual report and in note 35 to the financial statements
respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Final dividend amounting to RMB49,374,000 was declared by reduction
in distributable reserve. As at 31 December 2014, the Company's reserves
available for distribution calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
applicable law of Bermuda, amounting to RMB10,480,000. An resolution will
be proposed in the forthcoming annual general meeting for the reduction of
share premium of RMB60,000,000 to the distribution reserve for distribution
of final dividends.

INTEREST BEARING BANK LOANS

Particulars of interest bearing bank loans of the Group as at 31 December
2014 are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of acquisitions and other movements in property, plant and equipment
are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 33 to the financial statements. Save for the issue of RMB930
million USD settled convertible bonds and RMB560 million senior notes,
both are listed on the Stock Exchange, during the year, the Company and
its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any listed securities of the
Company. The said convertible bonds will be convertible approximately into
72,070,061 shares in the Company at a conversion price of HK$16.11 per
conversion shares. For details of the convertible bonds and senior notes,
please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 16 July 2014, 8 August
2014, 11 November 2014 and 17 November 2014. The Company also
issued 2,821,000 shares at the exercising price of HK$3.58 per share and
750,000 shares at the exercising price of HK$2.78 per share on exercise of
share options.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last 5 financial years is set out on page 3 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. LIU Hongwei
Mr. SUN Jinli

Mr. XIE Wen

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LI Huizhong
Mr. CAO Zhirong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. WANG Ching

Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon

Mr. CHENG Jinshu

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Sun Jinli,
Mr. Cao Zhirong and Dr. Wang Ching are required to retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Each of the above Directors will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior management members
of the Group was based on their individual performance as well as market
trends and practices. Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out
in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The emoluments paid to the senior management (excluding the Directors)
during the year ended 31 December 2014 were within the following bands:

REBE-ZT-—WF+_A=+—HILFE - X
NERERE(BRES) ZHMNFRIAT
#E -

Number of
Senior Management

Bands HE EREEEHE
RMB300,001 to RMB600,000 AERH 300,001 7T E AR 600,000 7T 7
RMB600,001 to RMB1,000,000 AR#600,001 ;TE AR 1,000,000 7T

Total: GELEE 10

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of 3 years, which is renewable automatically for
successive terms of 3 years each commencing from the day immediately
after the expiry of the then current term of the appointment unless terminated
by not less than 3 months’ notice in writing served by either party. Each of
the non-executive Directors were appointed for a term of three years, which
is renewable automatically for successive terms of 1 year each commencing
from the day next after the expiry of the then current term of the appointment
unless terminated by not less than 2 months’ notice in writing served by either
party. Each of the independent non-executive Directors were appointed for
a term of three years which is terminable by either party by giving the other
party not less than 2 months’ prior notice in writing. None of the Directors
has a service agreement with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

The remuneration of directors are determined by the remuneration committee
of the Company and by reference to the remuneration policies of other
companies in similar capacity and the experience of the directors.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 19 December 2008, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”). Under the Share Option Scheme, the board of
Directors (the “Board”) may at its discretion, offer eligible persons (being any
Director or employee (whether full-time or part-time), consultant or advisors
of the Group who in the sole discretion of the Board has contributed or will
contribute to the Group) (the “Eligible Persons”) who the Board may in its
absolute discretion select to subscribe for such number of Shares as the
Board may determine at a subscription price determined in accordance with
the Share Option Scheme.

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or reward
to Eligible Persons for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote
the interests of, the Group and for such other purposes as the Board may
approve from time to time.

Total number of Shares available under the Share Option
Scheme

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 15,754,000 shares,
representing 2.27% of the Company’s issued share capital as at the date of
this report. The Company granted 30,816,000 options with exercise price of
HK$3.58 per share on 23 July 2009, 7,200,000 options with exercise price
of HK$2.78 per share on 27 May 2010 and 7,200,000 options with exercise
price of HK$2.68 on 11 October 2011, respectively. Options quantity and
exercise prices were adjusted pursuant to an announcement of the Company
dated 27 July 2012. Please refer to note 34 of the financial statement, for the
year ended 31 December 2014 for details of the options granted.
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Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) to each Eligible Person in any 12-month period up
to the date of grant shall not exceed 1.0% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this 1.0% limit shall
be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and the approval of our
Shareholders in general meeting with such Eligible Persons and his associate
(as defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting and the number and
terms (including the subscription price) of such options being fixed before
such general meeting and other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time.

Time of exercise of option

There is no general requirement that an option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised but the Board is empowered to
impose at its discretion any such minimum period at the time of grant of any
particular option. The Board is currently unable to determine such minimum
period. The date of grant of any particular option is the date on which the
offer relating to such option is duly accepted by the grantee in accordance
with the Share Option Scheme. An option may be exercised according to the
terms of the Share Option Scheme and the offer in whole or in part by the
grantee (or his personal representatives) before its expiry by giving notice
in writing to our Company stating that the option is to be exercised and the
number of Shares in respect of which it is exercised provided that the number
of Shares shall be equal to the size of a board lot for dealing in Shares on
the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple thereof. Such notice must be
accompanied by a remittance for the full amount of the subscription price for
the Shares in respect of which the notice is given. The period during which
an option may be exercised will be determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years from
the date of grant. No option may be granted more than 10 years after the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme. Subject to earlier termination
by the Company in general meeting, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme by Shareholders by resolution at a general meeting.
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Price of Shares

The subscription price for a share in respect of any particular option granted
under the Share Option Scheme (which shall be payable upon exercise of
the option) shall be such price as the Board shall determine, save that such
price must not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer
to grant option, which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer to grant
option (provided that the new issue price shall be used as the closing price
for any business day falling within the period before the listing of the shares
where our Company has been listed for less than five business days as at
the date of offer to grant option); and (iii) the nominal value of a Share. A
consideration of RMB1.00 is payable on acceptance of an offer of the grant
of an option.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Company, by resolution in general meeting, or the Board may at any
time terminate the operation of the Share Option Scheme and in such event
no further option will be offered but in all other respects the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect and options
granted prior to such termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

During the year, 2,821,000 shares were issued at HK$3.58 each on exercise
of share options granted on 23 July 2009 and 750,000 shares were issued at
HK$2.78 each on exercise of share options granted on 27 May 2010. Save
as disclosed above, there was no exercise of any conversion or subscription
rights under any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights
issued or granted at any time by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 8 August 2014, the Company issued 9,300,000 5% convertible bonds
due 8 August 2019 with a nominal value of RMB930,000,000. There was no
movement in the number of these CB during the year.

Rz (B 4&

IRIBRB AT 819K A e B P 31T Y
Betr R EB(E (BRITERRER M) B E
FEET - EZERTHERTIZENRD
FOORBRERDBEH(BAREER)H
R EBEREXRMIIBBRDKTE : () Bk
BRER ) A HIAT AEE X AR P E A RE
RETFIA 7 80 F 4 B (HEfi AR X B B AR
BRHBHE FMTNRREEEE - A
TTEERARR EMATEAE X RO KT
B): RGDBMHEE - ZR—DBRENE
W ENHREASARK 1007 -

RERHEST BIRER T 1A

ARBARERASBERAARIHEESN
Rk ERERERT BIMENF - HRTEBRLE
Btk - B BB REMRENAZEA
MR AERR o BB Bl AT eV BB AR R AT
AEfE R AL B R AR IR RE AR AT 8] T AT

MAEE - 2,821,000 KN EEAR TN
FLAZ+T=ARENBREETEMIZEM
3.58 8 T 81T 750,000 AR E AR —F—
TERA T LARHOBRERETEMNR
BR278ETEIT - BE_ZE—NF+_H
=+—HILFE  ARRSHEEAHB LR
ARBEFARRES - BE - REEER
R B B ITRE R Z BRI TR E
IR o

RE it

IS =N BN Hlle AU N RIEE T
ZE-NAFENANBEHHAEERARE
930,000,000 7T #99,300,000 15 5% Al #2 A% f&
7o £ ZFAMRESHE L EEE) -



58

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

The salient terms and conditions of the CB are as follows:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest rate

The Company shall pay an interest on the CB at 5.0% per annum.

Conversion price

The CB will be convertible into the Company’s ordinary shares at the
initial conversion price of HK$16.11 per share, subject to adjustments.
Amongst others, consolidation, subdivision or reclassification of shares,
capitalisation of profits or reserves, capital distribution, rights issues of
shares or options over shares, rights issues of other securities, issues at
less than the current market price, other issues at less than the current
market price, modification of rights of conversion etc., other offers to
shareholders, change of control and other usual adjustment events.
The conversion price may not be reduced so that the conversion
shares would fall to be issued at a discount to their par value.

Maturity

Unless previously redeemed, converted, or purchased and cancelled,
the Company will redeem each of the CB at the US Dollar equivalent of
the RMB principal amount on 8 August 2019.

Redemption at the option of the Company
The Company may:

(1) Upon giving not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice to
the bondholders, at any time after 8 August 2017 but not less
than 14 days prior to the maturity date redeem the bonds in
whole but not in part at a redemption price at the US Dollar
equivalent of the RMB principal amount plus accrued and
unpaid interest to such date; provided that no such redemption
may be made unless the closing price of the shares (translated
into RMB at the RMB:HKS$ fixed rate as set out in the terms and
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(v)

(vi)

conditions of the CB) for 20 out of 30 consecutive trading days
ending on a date which is no more than three stock exchange
business immediately prior to the date upon which notice of
such redemption is given, was at least 130%. of the conversion
price then in effect (translated into RMB at the RMB:HK$ fixed
rate as set out in the terms and conditions of the CB); or

(2)  Upon giving not less than 30 nor more than 90 days’ notice
to the bondholders and the Trustee (which notice will be
irrevocable), the Company may at any time redeem all, but not
some only, of the bonds for the time being outstanding at the US
Dollar equivalent of the RMB principal amount plus accrued and
unpaid interest to such date provided that prior to the date of
such notice at least 90%. in RMB principal amount of the bonds
originally issued have already been converted, redeemed or
purchased and cancelled.

Redemption at the option of the holders

The Company will, at the option of the holder of any CB, redeem all
or some only of such holder's CB on 8 August 2017 at the US Dollar
equivalent of the RMB principal amount.

Redemption of delisting or change of control

Following the occurrence of a change of control (means when Mr.
Liu Hongwei cease for any reason to be the majority shareholder of
the Company or any other events lead to the significant change of
the ownership structure of that the Company, “Change of Control”)
or delisting of the Company (including suspension of trading of the
Shares on the stock exchange for a period equal to or more than
20 consecutive trading days) (the “Relevant Event”), the holder will
have the right to require the Company to redeem all, or but not some
only, of such holder’s CB at the US Dollar equivalent of the RMB
principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date fixed for
redemption.

(v)

(vi)
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

None of the Directors or their respective associate (as defined under the
Listing Rules) was granted by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, any
rights or options to acquire Shares or debentures during the year ended
31 December 2014.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Save for the issue of RMB930 million USD settled convertible bonds and
RMB560 million senior notes, both are listed on the Stock Exchange, the
Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any listed
securities of the Company during the year.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2014, so far as the Directors are aware, the Directors
and chief executives of the Company and their associates had the following
interests in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)) which (i) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (iii) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange:

EEREIRGHREFHER

HE_Z-—NE+-A=+—HILFE  #E
EEYRERABBEALT(EER LTRA)
FEAR D B o E AR AT 2 R T AR A ki
PR RBR M S fE S o

gﬁ~&§ﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ

3517 AR 930,000,000 TT LA E TTAE E HY A
% Z & & A R % 560,000,000 70 8 % Z &
(IRBZATE™) N RARBIREREA
ARAFEEMERE - DEEDAQ TR
FHES -

EERAAFEETHAENE
AT REBEEE ARG « HE
I REBEHFHERRER

RZZE—MF+=—RA=+—0  BESHE -
EZRARAETETRABRBENBEAL
RARBREBEEE (EERBFRPEK
I (TEF R ARG L)) Mkt - HEERD &
BEHFPHEE ) REZSFMPE RIS XV RS
7 REBDEAMEARR M FrEER (2
EIRIEE 7 R G GRDI SRR S E EX
BREBNERSORR) © (i) RIBES R
B 16D 352 A FCE N G AT IR A B AT MEY
R i RIB EMBETAEFETESR
SHIRESTRI([HREFRI ) BAHNEARRE] R
B PrHO SR T -



ZF-MFEFR FRERAXKGERMZERER AR

61

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

5 =IR L E
EE%EE3¥&EJEa
Company/name
of associated
corporation Number of Approximate %
Name AT HEE Capacity Type of interest shares of shareholding
i EEZE St R R BRZEE RERAE 9L
Mr. Liu Hongwei Company Interest of a controlled Long 245,308,078 35.28%
AT HESTHE ViN/NE] corporation ! A
RimEE !
Company Beneficial interest ? Long 1,380,000 0.20%
RAT] fay ok RE
Sub-total: Long 246,688,078 35.48%
NEE RE
Mr. Sun Jinli Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 1,380,000 0.20%
BReldiat ZN/NG| B 2 RAE
Mr. Xie Wen Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 1,380,000 0.20%
# Xk ZAN/NG| Bt ? rA
Mr. Li Huizhong Company Beneficial interest 2 Long Nil Nil
FeRkE ZN/NG| ey ok RAE i el
Mr. Wang Ching Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 120,000 0.02%
T RE&E ZA/NG| Bt ? rA
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, ~ Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 240,000 0.03%
Simon iN/NC]! B 2 &E
SxEEE
Mr. Cheng Jinshu Company Beneficial interest ? Long 240,000 0.03%
X bt /NG| Bt 2 rAE
Notes: FE

1k These 245,380,078 Shares are held by Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. whose share 1
capital is 53% owned by Mr. Liu Hongwei. Mr. Liu Hongwei is deemed to be
interested in these Shares by virtue of the SFO.

2 Such interests represent the options of the Company held by the relevant 2

%245,380,078 B %17 £ Strong Eagle Holdings
Ltd. 55 & + ifn I 4T # 5t 4 % B Strong Eagle
Holdings Ltd. B 78 2 53% + RIEEH K&
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R o
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, so far as the Directors are aware, save as disclosed
above, the persons or corporations (not being a Director or a chief executive
of the Company) who have interest or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO or have otherwise notified to the Company
pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who
were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other member of the Group and the amount of each
of such persons’ interest in such securities, together with any options in
respect of such capital, were as follows:

Capacity/nature
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Approximate %

Long/short of interest Number of shareholding
Shareholder position g4 of shares BRAERE LY
B%E REE R BRiZEE Bt
Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. ! Long position Beneficial owner 245,308,078 35.28%
RE BREAA
JP Morgan Chase & Co. Long position Beneficial owner 38,528,502 5.54%
&R BERERAA
Short position Beneficial owner 2,157,000 0.31%

wKR BESEAA

1. Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. is owned by Mr. Liu Hongwei, Mr. Sun Jinli, Mr. Xie
Wen, Mr. Xiong Shi, Mr. Zhuo Jianming and Mr. Li Huizhong, as to 53%, 15%,
11%, 8%, 9% and 4% respectively.
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NON-COMPETITION

The Directors confirm that they have no interest in any business (apart from
the Group’s business) which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the Group’s business.

The interested Director shall abstain from the meeting where there is actual
or potential conflict in interest.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company, or
any of its fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2014.

No contract of significance in which a Director is or was materially interested,
either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

No contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries by our controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2014.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No transactions as set out in the “Related party transactions” in note 39 to
the financial statements are subject to the reporting, announcement and/or
independent shareholders’ approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Byelaws,
or the law of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is
incorporated.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXEEREE

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listing Issuer as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Upon
the enquiry made by the Company all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 19 December 2008 with
terms of references adopted on 19 December 2008 in compliance with the
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The members of the audit
committee are the three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Yick
Wing Fat, Simon, an independent non-executive Director, is the Chairman
of the audit committee. The audit committee is to serve as a focal point for
communication between other directors, the external auditor and the internal
auditor (where an internal audit function exists) of the Company as regards
their duties relating to financial and other reporting, internal controls, external
and internal audits and such other financial and accounting matters as the
Board determines from time to time. The audit committee is to assist the
Board in providing an independent review of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management system of the Group,
overseeing the audit process and performing other duties and responsibilities
as may be assigned by the Board from time to time. The audit committee has
reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014, including the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group. For further details of the audit committee and other
committees of the Board, please refer to the section headed “Corporate

Governance Report” from pages 8 to 22.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float of not less than 25% of the issued share capital of the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules and as agreed with the Stock Exchange, based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors
to be independent.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year have been audited by
Ernst & Young which will retire, and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board
LIU Hongwei

Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B A2 EN RS

Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2846 9888
Fax: +852 2868 4432
www.ey.com

EY =x

To the shareholders of China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Singyes Solar
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 68 to 200, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B AZHEN RS

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GrelEmRkHEMEERER

Year ended 31 December 2014 HEZE =T —NF+=-A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—ET—QmE —E—=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AREFT ARETT
REVENUE 9N 4 5,011,426 4,150,509
Cost of sales SHE AR (3,962,402) (3,162,109)
Gross profit E7 1,049,024 988,400
Other income and gains E U A Rz 5 233,621 77,481
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERAX (88,988) (75,664)
Administrative expenses ITHAX (270,689) (218,905)
Other expenses EY (101,851) (33,902)
Finance costs B E R AN 6 (237,923) (110,904)
Fair value gains on conversion AR G5 R
rights of convertible bonds B A E MR 29 115,719 =
PROFIT BEFORE TAX Be# R F] 7 698,913 626,506
Income tax expense FI8Fi 10 (114,074) (135,915)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR i F 584,839 490,591
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hih 2 HEE5E
Other comprehensive loss not to be TERERFEEN
reclassified to profit or loss in DEEEENEM
subsequent years: 2HEEIE
Exchange differences on translation of HME I IERERH
financial statements MEHZERR (4,388) (334)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEEEEWESEE
FOR THE YEAR 580,451 490,257
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

relEmRkAEMEERGER

Year ended 31 December 2014 HE =T —NF+=-A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—F—MNE T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AREBTR ARETTT
Profit attributable to: AR AT ER
Owners of the Company PANNCIE 2SN 11 584,269 490,587
Non-controlling interests FEPEAR M = 570 4
584,839 490,591
Total comprehensive income attributable to: AT~ A L& 2 MUK S 4858 ¢
Owners of the Company RAREB A 579,881 490,253
Non-controlling interests FEIZERR A A 570 4
580,451 490,257
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE AT E#EK
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF ERHAA
THE COMPANY eGSR T
Basic HA 13 RMB0.842 RMBO0.752
AR¥0.842T AR®0.7527C
Diluted e 13 RMBO0.687 RMBO0.737

AR®0.687L AR¥O0.7377T

Details of the dividends proposed for the year are disclosed in note 12 to the AEEEZRRN 2R BFIBEHR M B HRERM T
financial statements. 12 -
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e BRI R

31 December 2014 —Z—MF+=A=+—H

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2014 2013
—F—ME —E—=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AREFT ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERENE E
Property, plant and equipment WM - BENEE 14 3,455,071 2,680,214
Prepaid land lease payments A T AR E IR 15 97,513 94,608
Intangible assets EREE 16 1,594 1,672
Payments in advance FEfFIAE 18 193,224 6,769
Deferred tax assets RIERIBE E 31 32,508 21,498
Available-for-sale equity investments AHEHERAEE 19 12,258 29,418
Total non-current assets FERBEERE 3,792,168 2,834,179
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Inventories FE 20 114,586 76,629
Construction contracts BEAR 21 284,485 117,870
Trade and bills receivables RUE 5708 KW ERIE 22 2,192,235 1,801,263
Prepayments, deposits and TENFIE - 5l Rk
other receivables H b MRS 23 423,532 229,538
Pledged deposits IIFFR 24 500,327 346,522
Cash and cash equivalents Be MREEEY 24 901,417 894,732
Total current assets MEEERE 4,416,582 3,466,554
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Trade and bills payables JERTE S RIE RIERNRE 25 1,284,332 1,292,961
Other payables and accruals H A e 58 K FE R T FOE 26 314,354 182,571
Derivative financial instruments PTESRT A 27 3,042 =
Bank advances for discounted bills BHIR R 2 IR1TE R 41(a) 184,378 =
Interest-bearing bank and other loans B S ERIT M EME R 28 987,521 869,628
Tax payable ERPTSR 17,628 33,276
Total current liabilities mENBERTE 2,791,255 2,378,436
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 1,625,327 1,088,118
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEEERREAER
LIABILITIES 5,417,495 3,922,297
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

31 December 2014 —=ZF—NF+=A=+—H

2014 2013
—T—QE —E—=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AREFT ARETTT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREEHE
Convertible bonds AR &S 29 816,269 =
Senior notes BREE 30 542,822 =
Interest-bearing bank and other loans W BIRITREMERK 28 391,679 681,281
Deferred tax liabilities BEEREARE 31 86,860 86,860
Deferred income IRIE Wz 32 439,273 555,044
Total non-current liabilities IERB A ELEE 2,276,903 1,323,185
Net assets BEZHE 3,140,592 2,599,112
EQUITY W
Equity attributable to owners EATHEAN
of the Company FE{bHELR
Issued capital BEITIRA 33 46,466 46,247
Reserves B4 35 3,044,146 2,503,875
Proposed final dividend ¥R EIRR B 12 49,374 48,954
3,139,986 2,599,076
Non-controlling interests FEFERRHELS 36 606 36
Total equity B 3,140,592 2,599,112
Liu Hongwei Sun Jinli
4T 4 BeE
Director Director
o 2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

GAEREBHE

Year ended 31 December 2014 HEZE =T —NF+=-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRTERARRE
Difference
arising from
acquistion
Safety of non-
fund controllng
Share Statutory  Enterprise Share surplus— Bxchange interests*  Proposed Non-
Issued  premium fesene  expansion option resene  fluctuation Wi final controling
captal  account*  Contributed fund* fund*  reserve® 22 resene’ Refained AR diidend inferests Total

B B surplust iy % BRE EfEB EY  opoft  EREE il Tl R equiy
REOREE SRR BREES BRES  HE BE REEE REENC  2E RERE 3 B EagE
RMBIOO0  RMBO0O ~ RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'OO0  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMB0O0  RMBOO0  RMBI00O  RMB'OOO
ARETT ARMTT ARETT ARETT ARMTT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARMTT ARETn ARETT ARMTR ARETR

(note 33) (nofe 35(a)) ~ (note 35(b)) ~ (note 3a(c)) ~ (note 35(d)
(i) (i) (W) (HEme) (ki)
At 1 January 2013 W=5-=%-A-A 42606 399615 703% 70,983 81719 854 - 3472 1206614 2,100 3BR1 1845070 6802 181912
Profitfor the year FERER S = = o - - - - 490587 - - 49587 4 49051
Other comprehensiv loss REREMRE
forthe year: FE:
Exchange differences on: IWTHERZS:

Transhton offnancielsetements ~ AEEHRR - - - - - - - (33) - . - (33) . (33)
Total comprehensive income for the year  FER2ENEEE S = S 5 5 - - (334) 490587 5 - 4023 4 19027
Issue of shares Bl 2450 253900 = S = 5 S = = s R X
Share issu expenses BUEGET - (789 s 5 = s 5 S = S - (7809 - (189
Exercise of share opfons fEEkiE 1187 49870 = S s = S S = = - 5108 - BL0H
Transterof share opton resenve upon 1B RIEREH

the exercise of shere opfions ERiEsE Y S S - (248 - - - - - - - -
Equiy-seted share option lusertivre s
anangements (note 34) (K34) 5 S S S S 2112 5 = S 5 = 2112 5 2112
Transfer from refained profts BYEREER 5 = S 1,198 59 5 5 -1 - - - - -
Capial contbution rom non-controling - MEARHARER
shareholders of subsiciaries gfin = = = = = = = S = = S = 116 116
Change in ownership inerests n REXBHIRONELA
subsidary without loss of conrol EHiEEY - - 5 = = = S = = = = 5 () -
Aequistion of non-controling nterests KRB ARA
of a subsidiary SRR S = 5 S = 5 5 - - (10 - 109 (6% (8000)
Transfer to confributed surplus** BUTEARR - (400000 40000 S = = S = = S s £ = =
Etablishment for safetyfund RURRECRAGE
Surplus reserve - - - - - - 63,002 - (63,002) - - - - -
Utisaton of safety fund surplus eserve. - SRR 2 E2 RBREE S = S 5 - - (6300 - B S 5 2 5 g
Final 2012 dvidend decleredinote 12~ BER=F-ZFRHRE
(Mi12) - & (36,847) - - - - - 35,91 - (35921)  (36847) 2 (36,847)
Proposed final 2013 dividend note 12) ~ E=E-=5RERE
(H12) - - - - - - - - (48954) - 48954 - - -
At 31 December 2013 nE-zf

I dod7 678024 10194 7218 8778 8168 = 318 168371 1021 - 259076 % 259112
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

l‘l

SERBDE

Year ended 31 December 2014 HE =T —NF+=-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATHAARE
Difference
arising
from
acquisition
Safety of non-
fund controlling
Share Statutory ~ Enterprise Share surplus — Exchange interests*  Proposed Non-
Issued ~ premium reserve  expansion option reserve  fluctuation [l final controlling
capital  account*  Contributed fund* fund*  resenet R resenet  Retaned  FEER  dividend interests Total

gif BB suplust £ b ERE  EeER
Rx  BER SARR GRS HRES R il
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTE ARRIL ARETT ARMTR ARETR ARETR

ERopofi  fEE4 & Tl EER equily
BORE REEN 228 FHRR ot BE  BheE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFL ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR

(note 33) (note 35(a)) ~ (note 35(b)) ~ (note 35(c)) ~ (note 35(d)

(i 33) (M8 35(a)) (Mg 350b)) (BRE3s(c)) (Mak3s(d)
At 1 January 2014 WZ5-BE-A-A 46,247 678,024 10,194 72,181 28,778 28,168 - 3138 1,682,371 1,021 48954 2,599,076 36 2,599,112
Proft forthe year TER&T g e g g g g g - 584,269 g - 584,269 570 584,839
Other compreensive loss TEREMEEEE:
forthe year:
Exchange diferences on: HTHESER:

Translation of financial statements RERRER S = s S s - - (4388) - - - (4388) - (4389)
Total comprehensive income for the year A5 2ENALEE 5 S 5 S S s - (4388) 584269 5 - 579881 570 580,451
Exercise of share opfions i 219 9415 5 5 5 = 5 5 = 5 5 9,634 = 9,634
Transterof share opton resenve upon 7R RIER

the exercise of share opfions EiEsE - 480 s 5 - (4430 - - - - - - - -
Equity-setled share option FrEERRERE
anangements (note 34) (FE3s) = e = = S A (] = = g = B A ] = 1,109
Transfer from retained profits SUEREER 5 = -G 31,0% 5 = - (9367) - - - - -
Transfer to confrbuted surplus** g DN - (50,0000 50,000 5 = 5 5 5 = 5 5 = 5 5
Establishment for safety fund RURRESRHGE
surplus reserve - - - - - - 73,448 - (13448) - - - - -
Utlisation of safety fund surplus resene. - BRZ2EERHRER s = 5 s - - (13448 - 13448 5 = s = s
Final 2013 dividend declaredinote 12 BER=F-=%
RERE(HE12) . - (9714 = z = . - 3954 - (48954 (49714) - (49714)
Proposed final 2014 dividend (note 12) ~ #IE=F-T&
Fiks (it 12) E - - - - - = - (49314) - 49314 & g -
At 31 December 2014 WZE-IE
+=A=1-H 46,466 641,869 10,480 134292 59,834 24,847 - (1,250) 2,173,053 1,021 49,374 3,139,986 606 3,140,592

* %

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of *

RMB3,044,146,000 (31 December 2013: RMB2,503,875,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the general meeting held on 28 May 2014, an
amount of RMB50,000,000 was transferred from the share premium account
to the contributed surplus. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a
company may make distributions to its shareholders out of the contributed
surplus under certain circumstances.

* %

ZERFERE SESAVBRARAZES
EBARK3,044,146000T( Z T — =4
T=ZA=+—8 : AR%2,503,875,0007T) °

BRER-_Z-—NEFRA -+ NBETZR
%K@@@Z—Iﬁixkﬁ%%' ERARK
50,000,000t B I 7% EREBR ZH AR
%o RE-NN\—FARERRE » RAIA
EETERATREBEARBRTAERRIELD
K °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

an\ IE%UH:E%

Year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—MF+_-_A=+—HILtFE

2014 2013
—F—-mE —T-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
=3 ARETT AREFTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING EETEHELED
ACTIVITIES ReERE
Profit before tax (G szyznpiawl 698,913 626,506
Adjustments for: FATIEB fELFAE
Depreciation e 14 110,910 64,299
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEAT AR & R 5
payments 15 2,183 2,014
Amortisation of intangible assets EmILEESE 16 687 797
Impairment loss on intangible assets EEERERE 16 - 1,063
Impairment loss on property, ME - WE &
plant and equipment REREETE 14 6,747 =
Impairment loss on trade receivables JEUR & 55 E R E 18 22 278 =
Impairment loss on other receivables H b R R TE B & 18 23 1,693 =
Fair value loss on derivative PTHESRT AN
financial instruments N EEE 27 3,042 =
Fair value gains on conversion rights of AR B A E RN
convertible bonds NEEWREE 29 (115,719) -
Equity-settled share option expense A& A 4 B BB AR A A S 34 1,109 2,112
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME - BE&
plant and equipment RAEEB MEE 7 72,747 28,505
Gain on disposal of an available-for-sale HEAHEERARE
equity investment Eollirgas 5 (1,315) -
Unrealised foreign exchange R IR INE
(gains)/losses, net (Yez) /BB T4 447 2,318
Interest income FEWA 5 (23,713) (6,669)
Issue expenses of convertible bonds B I0RRAY AT AR
charged to profit or loss BHEITHAX 7 10,102 =
Deferred income released to profit or loss ~ BEZEIBIRAVPELERA 5 (155,685) (53,169)
Finance costs BEKAK 6 237,923 110,904
850,349 778,680
Increase in inventories FEEm (37,957) (13,245)
Increase in construction contracts AR (166,615) (69,030)
Increase in trade and bills receivables FEUR B 5 51 TH K FE R IR hn (378,634) (519,819)
Increase in prepayments, deposits ERRE  FTek
and other receivables Ho A SR IEIE N (205,537) (125,688)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and FERTE 5 RIE RERNRIR
bills payables CRA) /4 (8,629) 777,596
Increase in other payables and accruals Ho At FE A FE K BT RCRLE N 31,351 25,779
Income tax paid BB (140,732) (103,624)
Net cash flows (used in)/from BEEEDHES (L) RA
operating activities FRE (56,404) 750,649
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
an\ IE%/}ILE%

Year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—MF+_-_A=+—HILFE
2014 2013
—E—MFE —T-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BitEE ARETT AREFTT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES & ESELEMNRETE
Purchase of items of property, BEME -
plant and equipment WE MEEEE (1,184,040) (1,331,803)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFLEE (609) (400)
Proceeds from disposal of o AT AR
an available-for-sale equity investment WEBHIE 18,475 =
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, &% - WE k&
plant and equipment FrS s 99,711 20,000
Receipt from maturity of pledged deposits #3175 I BIFT1S 5/ 18 1,341,101 634,120
Placement of pledged deposits T AEIRER (1,494,906) (765,822)
Interest received BT E 11,097 6,669
Receipt of government grants U HR B2 EE AR R Y
related to assets B 39,914 378,138
Net cash flows used in investing activities & /EBIR 7 HIFEE (1,169,257) (1,059,098)
Net cash flows before financing activities BEEESAIMRES R FE (1,225,661) (308,449)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Eﬂ%‘iiﬂgimﬁﬁﬁii
Proceeds from issue of shares BTN TS 508 S 256,354
Share issue expenses R EEFTRSE = (7,849)
Net proceeds from issue of convertible bonds %17 A] # I% (& % FT 15 708 % 48 902,597
Net proceeds from issue of senior notes BITRAERBERRFE 542,327 =
Capital contribution from non-controlling M A RIEERIRAHE
shareholders of subsidiaries - 116
Increase in an amount due to e —EK B A A
a non-controlling shareholder of FEF2E AR AR BR SRIBIE AN
a subsidiary 176153 9,828
Proceeds from exercise of share options TTEIE AR TS 3 E 9,634 51,057
Proceeds from bank and other loans RITREMEFRETERIE 1,252,620 1,577,653
Repayment of bank and other loans RITREMERZER (1,464,614) (1,233,178)
Proceeds from bank advances BhIRRIRRITE KNS IR
for discounted bills 234,378 -
Repayment of bank advances BRIRERIRITERZ(EE
for discounted bills (50,000) -
Payment of other financing costs T E BB R A (6,845) (11,658)
Dividends paid BEIRE (49,714) (36,847)
Interest paid ERFLE (159,031) (98,898)
Net cash flows from financing activities BB EERERAFEE 1,228,505 506,578
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

an\ IE%/)ILE%

Year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—MF+_-_A=+—HILtFE

2014 2013
—F—MNFE —E—=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AREFT ARETT
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRRSEFEYIENEH
CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,844 198,129
Cash and cash equivalents at FUzReRREEEY
beginning of year 894,732 698,088
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EXRE L - FEE (103) (1,485)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END EXRZIRERIRNEEFEY
OF YEAR 897,473 894,732
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND R&RIR&ZFEWMEL I
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHE R 24 901,417 894,732
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in B RTIR S
the statement of financial position kB EED 901,417 894,732
Bank overdrafts RITEX 28 (3,944) -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in RemeaRmlRe

the statement of cash flows MIREEEY 897,473 894,732
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BREAR R

31 December 2014 —=ZF—NF+=A=+—H

2014 2013
—E—MF —E—ZF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE ARETT AREET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 14 14,878 15,287
Investments in subsidiaries RHE QR E 17 1,900,333 1,120,039
Prepayment in advance TEfF0E 789 =
An available-for-sale equity investment A ERARE 19 11,878 11,838
Total non-current assets IERBEERE 1,927,878 1,147,164
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Prepayments, deposits and FERFIE Bk
other receivables HAth fE SR IE 13 =
Pledged deposits EREFR 24 - 27,035
Cash and cash equivalents ReRASEEY 24 88,244 6,631
Total current assets REEERE 88,257 33,666
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Other payables and accruals H b & < 5K N B AT FRIE 26 37,112 16,129
Due to subsidiaries FERTI B A BI5RIE 17 74,808 44,348
Interest-bearing bank loans B BERITE K 28 959 945
Total current liabilities mEAERTE 112,879 61,422
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBARTFE (24,622) (27,756)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #&EERAHERE 1,903,256 1,119,408
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREEE
Convertible bonds ARk ES 29 816,269 =
Senior notes BEERE 30 542,822 =
Interest-bearing bank loans Mt BERITE R 28 4,202 522,681
Total non-current liabilities ERBEELERE 1,363,293 522,681
Net assets FEE 539,963 596,727
EQUITY R
Issued capital BB TR A 33 46,466 46,247
Reserves (Gt 35 444,123 501,526
Proposed final dividend PR AR HARR B 12 49,374 48 954
Total equity e B 539,963 596,727
Liu Hongwei Sun Jinli
24T 4 HEi8
Director Director
E2 EE3
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2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
Bermuda on 24 October 2003. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is located at
Unit 3108, 31st Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Center, 168-
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in the design,
manufacture, supply and installation of conventional curtain walls and
building integrated photovoltaic systems, as well as the manufacture
and sale of solar power products. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

In the opinion of the directors, the parent and the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Strong Eagle Holdings Limited, which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which comprise
standards and interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and International Accounting Standards
(“IASs”) and Standing Interpretations Committee interpretations
approved by the International Accounting Standards Committee that
remain in effect. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance relating to the preparation of financial statements, which
for this financial year and the comparative period continue to be those
of the predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance
with transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are
set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. The
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for derivative financial instruments and conversion
rights of convertible bonds which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

2.1

ATEH

BB R KIS s TR B BR A 7 ([ 7R
AR NRZZEZ=F+A=+mARE
REFMK L AEREERETAR -
AN A] ) FE AT 9% 35 B 3 4k 7% Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda ° AR Al B4 iy
MBS T 58P 168-20057 (2 1= 0 FF
ERAE31#3108F °

FA - AREIREMBAR (FREA [
B T BN EERERIOLREE—
BERGR  BE HERRE U
RAGEEMBEREE - FA - A%
BIEXBHOEELEREAEE -

BEERR ARAMNE QR REEE
RARAREBRELES MK LA
Strong Eagle Holdings Limited
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KRB HREOEREE BRI RS
R ([BERE RS LER ) - HPeE
KRR ENEEe ([ER e ER
BEe DN E KRR REER S
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA TSR R MY 5

31 December 2014 —Z—PUF+=-A=+—8H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2014. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between

members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the
fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.1 WBEE(E)

FAVBRREBEARTREKBAR
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards and new
interpretation for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10, Investment Entities
IFRS 12 and IAS 27

Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets
Amendments to IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting
IFRIC 21 Levies
Amendment to IFRS 2 Definition of Vesting Condition*
included in Annual
Improvements 2010-2012
Cycle
Amendment to IFRS 3 Accounting for Contingent Consideration in
included in Annual a Business Combination
Improvements 2010-2012
Cycle

e Effective from 1 July 2014

Other than explained below regarding the impact of amendments
to IAS 36, the adoption of the above revised standards and new
interpretation has had no significant financial effect on these financial
statements.

2.2 ERTBRE B RILE
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

The IAS 36 Amendments remove the unintended disclosure
requirement made by IFRS 13 on the recoverable amount of a cash-
generating unit which is not impaired. In addition, the amendments
require the disclosure of the recoverable amounts for the assets
or cash-generating units for which an impairment loss has been
recognised or reversed during the reporting period, and expand the
disclosure requirements regarding the fair value measurement for
these assets or units if their recoverable amounts are based on fair
value less costs of disposal. Disclosures of the recoverable amounts for
the Group'’s impaired cash-generating units are included in note 14 to
the financial statements.

2.3 NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND NEW
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT
YET ADOPTED

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
which have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

IFRS9 Financial Instruments*

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
and IAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to IFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
IFRS 12 and IAS 27 Exceptior?

Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint

Operations®
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers®

2.2 BHERRE RN
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2.3 NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND NEW
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT
YET ADOPTED (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative?
Amendments to IAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
and IAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation’
Amendments to IAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants®
and IAS 41
Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions
Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements®
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSs!
2010-2012 Cycle
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of [FRSs!
2011-2013 Cycle
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSs?
2012-2014 Cycle
. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014
e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
2 Effective for an entity that first adopts IFRSs for its annual financial

statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and therefore is not
applicable to the Group

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) will
affect the presentation and disclosure of certain information in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 December
2015. The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these changes.

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:
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2.3 NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND NEW 2.3 B RFRAIFET R EETE

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT
YET ADOPTED (Continued)

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9, bringing
together all phases of the financial instruments project to replace IAS
39 and all previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment and
hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January
2018. The Group expects that the adoption of IFRS 9 will have an
impact on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial
assets. Further information about the impact will be available nearer
the implementation date of the standard.

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key judgements
and estimates. The standard will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under IFRSs. The Group expects to adopt
IFRS 15 on 1 January 2017 and is currently assessing the impact of
IFRS 15 upon adoption.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 clarify the principle in IAS 16
and IAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits that
are generated from operating business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through the
use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be
used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be
used in very limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The amendments are not
expected to have any impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group upon adoption on 1 January 2016 as the Group has not
used a revenue-based method for the calculation of depreciation of its
non-current assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit or loss
to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and conversion
rights of convertible bonds at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 TEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant

to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, construction
contract assets and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset

belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those

expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is

credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TEEBERBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties FRER
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: FEUATERT - — AR AEAEER
REs
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family (@) BEAFA—RBZALTEZALZE
and that person FEEYREKE » Mz AL :

(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (i) sk EEIEHAER ¢

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAEEBEEAFE =t

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the (i) AEAEEIAEETARN
Group or of a parent of the Group; FEEBABMER—FK

g8
or B4
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions (b) ZABREBMMTE TIEMR—IA
applies: &4 -

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group; () ZEREASEBR—5E

pdpd=VN=]

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (il ZEBRE —REBAEE
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the AEIHEERE(HE K
other entity): ERNSNGE) - HBARH

BREHBAR])

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same (i) HEBEASHEHYAR—F
third party; ZHMAEDRE

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other (iv) ZEBRBAF-FEEMNAE
entity is an associate of the third entity; ¥ ME—KEBRRZ

F=F BB E AR
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies: (Continued)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced as intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 TEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value (nil
to 5% of cost) over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives
of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Land and buildings 50 years
Plant and machinery 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Office equipment and furniture 3-5 years
Photovoltaic power station 25 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowing
funds during the period of construction. Construction in progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at

each financial year end.

Software purchased is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of five

years.

Operating rights represent rights to operate solar power water heating
systems granted by certain schools and are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over

their estimated useful lives of 7 to 10 years

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria

is expensed when incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases,
net of any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in
the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant
and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial investments, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income and gains in profit
or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in profit or loss

in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in unlisted equity investments. Equity investments classified
as available for sale are those which are neither classified as held for
trading nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
in other income, or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to profit or loss in other
expenses. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-
for-sale financial investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBHRME (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such investments are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still appropriate.
When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount
is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the assets. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to pay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 TEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and
is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has
been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in
profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair
value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a
derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these
assets are not reversed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBHRME (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and loans and borrowings,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction
Costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities included trade and other payables,
derivative financial instruments, bank advances for discounted bills,
convertible bonds, senior notes and interest-bearing bank and other
loans.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain both a
liability and embedded derivatives are classified separately into these
respective items on initial recognition. Conversion rights that will
be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
other financial assets for a fixed number of the Company’s shares
are derivative financial liabilities, which are bifurcated from the
host contract and are accounted for separately. Redemption rights,
conditional call options and put options which are closely related to the
host contract are accounted for together with the host contract as a
liability component.

At the date of issue of the convertible bonds, the derivative component
of the convertible bonds is measured at fair value and presented as
part of derivative financial instruments. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the derivative component is recognised
as the liability component. Transaction costs are apportioned between
the liability and derivative components of the convertible bonds based
on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and derivative components
when the instruments are initially recognised. The portion of the
transaction costs relating to the liability component is recognised
initially as part of the liability. The portion relating to the derivative
component is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
bonds is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Conversion options accounted for as derivative financial liabilities are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 TEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Convertible bonds (Continued)

The liability component and the related embedded derivative of the
convertible bonds are presented as a separate line item on the face of
the statement of financial position under non-current liabilities, unless
the convertible bonds become mature or redeemable by the holder in
the next twelve months.

If the bonds are converted, the respective conversion options
accounted for as derivative financial liabilities, together with the
carrying value of the liability component at the time of conversion, are
transferred to share capital and share premium as consideration for
the shares issued.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as interest
rate swaps, to hedge its interest rate risk. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is

positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to

be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand

and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term

deposits, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 TEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 TEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and

the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESBHREME (8)

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits

will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,

on the following bases:

(a)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

from construction contracts, on the percentage of completion
basis, as further explained in the accounting policy for
“Construction contracts” below;

from the rendering of services, the percentage of completion
basis, as further explained in the accounting policy for “Contracts
for services” below;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and

appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive

payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct materials, the

costs of subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of

variable and fixed construction overheads.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Construction contracts (Continued)

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised on
the percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated total cost of the
relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated
by management. Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is
treated as an amount due from contract customers. Where progress
billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an amount due to
contract customers.

Contracts for services

Contract revenue on the rendering of services comprises the agreed
contract amount. Costs of rendering services comprise labour and
other costs of personnel directly engaged in providing the services and
attributable overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised based on the
percentage of completion of the transaction, provided that the revenue,
the costs incurred and the estimated costs to completion can be
measured reliably. The percentage of completion is established by
reference to the costs incurred to date as compared to the total costs
to be incurred under the transaction. Where the outcome of a contract
cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent
that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated
by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is treated as an
amount due from contract customers. Where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses, the surplus is treated as an amount due to contract customers.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration
for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The
fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefit
expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions
are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair
value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 TEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local government. These subsidiaries and their employees are
required to make monthly contributions calculated as a percentage
of the employees’ wages and salaries, subject to certain ceilings and
local practices set by the relevant local governments, to the central
pension scheme. Other than the central pension scheme, the Group’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China have no legal obligation for retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made. Contributions to these plans
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits (Continued)

Pension scheme (Continued)

In addition to the above, the Group also participates in a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independent administered

fund.

Contributions to an accommodation fund administered by the Public
Accumulation Funds Administration Centre are charged to profit or loss

as incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an

entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the statement
of financial position, until they have been approved by the shareholders
in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by
the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB. The functional
currency of the Company is HK$. The Company’s presentation
currency is RMB because the Group’s principle operations are carried
out in Mainland China. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions.

2.4 TEEFTBOREE (/8)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain companies within the Group
are currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their profit or loss are translated
into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of these entities, the component of other comprehensive

income relating to that particular entity is recognised in profit or loss.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected

in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Percentage of completion of construction contract works

The Group recognises revenue according to the percentage of
completion of individual contracts of construction works, which
requires estimation to be made by management. The stage of
completion is estimated by reference to the actual costs incurred over
the total budgeted costs, and the corresponding contract revenue
is also estimated by management. Due to the nature of the activity
undertaken in construction contracts, the date at which the activity
is entered into and the date at which the activity is completed usually
fall into different accounting periods. Hence, the Group reviews and
revises the estimates of both contract revenue and contract costs in the
budget prepared for each contract as the contract progresses. Where
the actual contract revenue is less than expected or actual contract

costs are more than expected, an impairment loss may arise.
Corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Group’s operating subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) CIT. As a result of the
fact that certain matters relating to PRC CIT have not been confirmed
by the relevant local tax authorities, objective estimates based on
currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other related policies are
required in determining the provision of PRC CIT to be made. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
originally recorded, the differences will impact the income tax and
tax provision in the period in which the final outcome is determined.
The carrying amount of PRC CIT payable at 31 December 2014 was
RMB17,628,000 (2013: RMB33,276,000).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of receivables

The provision policy for impairment of receivables of the Group is based
on ongoing assessment of the recoverability and the aged analysis
of the outstanding receivables and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of those receivables, including the creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each customer. If the financial conditions
of the customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances
might be required. At 31 December 2014, impairment provision for
trade receivables and other receivables amounted to approximately
RMB2,833,000 and RMB2,093,000 (2013: RMB2,555,000 and
RMB400,000) respectively. Further details are given in notes 22 and
23 to the financial statements.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such
as technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in production, or from a change in the market demand
for the product or service output of the asset, expected usage of the
asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance
of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The
estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the experience
of the Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way. The
depreciation amount will be adjusted if the estimated useful lives
and/or the residual values of items of property, plant and equipment
are different from the previous estimation. Useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each financial year end date taking into account

changes in circumstances.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Definite
lives non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of sell and its value in use. The calculation of
the fair value less costs of sell is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling products of a
similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customers’ interests or competitor actions. Management reassesses
these estimates at the end of each reporting period. There was no
impairment provision for inventories as at 31 December 2014.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets should be recognised when it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deferred tax assets
can be utilised. Significant management judgment is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred
tax assets at 31 December 2014 was RMB32,508,000 (2013:
RMB21,498,000). Further details are given in note 31 to the financial
statements.

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities should be recognised for all taxable differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries except (a) when the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of such temporary
differences and it is probable that such temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Significant management estimation is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax liabilities associated
with the Company’s investments in subsidiaries, based upon the likely
timing of the reversal of such temporary differences. The carrying value
of deferred tax liabilities associated with investments in subsidiaries at
31 December 2014 were RMB86,860,000 (2013: RMB8&6,860,000).
Further details are given in note 31 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Valuation of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Where fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities cannot be
derived directly from active markets, it is determined using valuation
techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
estimation is required in establishing fair values. The estimations
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments.

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain both a
liability and embedded derivatives are classified separately into these
respective items on initial recognition. The derivatives are accounted
for an initial recognition as fair value through profit or loss and re-
measured to fair value through profit or loss in subsequent reporting
periods. The Group engaged an independent professional valuer
to assist in determining the fair value of the conversion rights of
convertible bonds. The fair value of the conversion rights of convertible
bonds was estimated by the independent professional valuer using
the binomial option pricing model and the estimation included some
assumptions not supported by observable market prices or rates
such as the discount rate, volatility, credit risk, and expected future
cash flows, and hence they are subject to uncertainty. Favourable
or unfavourable changes to these assumptions would result in
significant changes in the fair value of conversion rights contained
in the convertible bonds and the corresponding adjustments to the
amount of gain or loss reported in profit or loss. The fair value of the
conversion rights of convertible bonds at 31 December 2014 was
RMB277,138,000 (2013: Nil). Further details are given in note 29 to
the financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Valuation of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(Continued)

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as interest
rate swaps, to hedge its interest rate risk. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
at fair value. The Group engaged an independent professional valuer
to assist in determining the fair value of the interest rate swaps. The
fair value of the interest rate swaps was estimated by the independent
professional valuer using the discounted cash flow method and the
estimation included some assumptions not supported by observable
market rates such as credit risk, discount rate and expected future
cash flows, and hence they are subject to uncertainty. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to these assumptions would result in significant
changes in the fair value of the interest rate swaps. The fair value of the
interest rate swaps at 31 December 2014 was RMB3,042,000 (2013:

Nil). Further details are given in note 27 to the financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND 4, BEDEEFERICAN
REVENUE
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents an appropriate WA AREEME X)) BEESR
proportion of contract revenue of construction contracts; the value of BELLMERA  FTRERSHE
services rendered, net of business tax and government surcharges; B MBRLER KBNS REE
and the invoiced value of goods and electricity sold, and net of value- ERRENNEREE  WEHRIEE
added tax and government surcharges. fR&IBZHTTM‘ﬂJD%R o
The Group’s revenue and contribution to profit for the year were AEERNRARFREFEMEERE
mainly derived from curtain wall (including solar power products) and I%%&E’fkﬁi“‘( 6 3E ¢ IR B Uk M K5
photovoltaic power station supply and installation service, which is Eom) B R ERE E?Ei%ﬁzt’j
regarded as a single reportable segment in a manner consistent with ——Jziﬁ"*ﬁ HRAEESRERE
the way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s senior R @Eé?ﬁ&%%ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ’ﬂw-ﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬂ
management for the purpose of resources allocation and performance BB o AN AEBFEANEE
assessment. In addition, the principal assets employed by the Group BEMPRPBARE - ALt - BRUABBEA
are located in Mainland China. Accordingly, no segment analysis is AR AR EIN - BEZ|D I -
presented other than entity-wide disclosures.
Information about products and services FHAERRRBER
The following table sets forth the total revenue from external customers TREIIRE R KRB E D 8K BN
by product and service and the percentage of total revenue by product BB BURA A RN FEIRE G R RTE
and service during the year: ElomBIAB DL
2014 2013
—E—MFE T
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARETT ARET T
Construction contracts EEAR 3,735,211 74.6 3,259,641 78.6
Sale of goods EmiEE 1,246,727 24.9 879,355 2152
Rendering of design services RHEE R 9,810 0.2 6,131 0.1
Sale of electricity BHHE 19,678 0.3 5,382 Q!
5,011,426 100.0 4,150,509 100.0
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND 4.

REVENUE (CONTINUED)

Geographical information

(a)  Revenue from external customers

EESMER RN ()

@ FKESIEBEFAILA

2014 2013
—E—ME =5
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AREFT AREFIT
Domestic — Mainland China*  BIR — FEIRREE* 4,969,965 99.2 4,117,016 99.2
Overseas N 41,461 0.8 33,493 0.8
5,011,426 100.0 4,150,509 100.0

*

The place of domicile of the Group’s principal operating

subsidiaries is Mainland China. The principal revenues of the

Group are generated in Mainland China.

(b)  Non-current assets

* REBETRLEMBARNM
i B BARE - REEME
BRAELETREKAKE -

b) FERBEE

2014 2013
—E—ME —E—=%F
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AREFT ANEREEFIT
Mainland China AR 3 K B 3,730,973 99.6 2,767,956 99.5
Hong Kong &5 16,429 0.4 15,307 0.5
3,747,402 100.0 2,783,263 100.0

The non-current asset information above is based on the locations of

the assets and excludes financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

Information about a major customer

Revenue of approximately RMB1,038,109,000 (2013:
RMB657,717,000) which accounted for more than 10% of the Group’s
revenue during the year was derived from sales to a single customer,

including sales to a group of entities which are known to be under

common control with that customer.

EIERBAE AR TEAENELE
85 AYTEESRIARBILHE
A% -
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5. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

5. HAbg A R ras

Hitp AR EAHTAT -

2014 2013
—T—mE —T—=%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFIT
Deferred income released to profit BEBERMECWES
or loss (note 32): (MisE32) -
Over the expected useful lives of LI EETEEA T
the related assets S RFH 24,459 5,039
Upon disposal of the related assets ~ (H & FHRAE ERF 131,226 48,130
Total deferred income released to BEERNRLT
profit or loss s iagm 155,685 53,169
Bank interest income RITHBUA 11,097 6,669
Interest income on retention money  EREF EUA 12,616 =
Government grants* BATHEE) * 51,426 16,644
Gain on disposal of an available-for-sale & It H E AR AL E
equity investment Eofliogas 1,315 =
Others Hitb 1,482 999
233,621 77,481
¥ There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these i 18E 4 75 B 5% S5 4 B A SR AR MR sl sk

grants.

REM -
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FINANCE COSTS 6. EIERE
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: RERRADHTAT :
2014 2013
—E—lE ZE—=%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE AREFT AREFTT
Interest on overdrafts, bank B RITR
and other loans: HiERHF LS
Wholly repayable within five years ERRFAEHEER 112,469 74,446
Wholly repayable over five years ARAFREBEER 14,132 =
126,601 74,446
Interest on discounted FEURBAIRZIEF B
bills receivable 36,508 24,800
Interest on convertible bonds Al AR E AT B 29 37,762 =
Interest on senior notes BEZEERNE 30 5,328 =
Imputed interest accelerated R EEHMERE
amortisation on an early B E T BNRE 5
redemption of other loans 24,879 -
Others Hih 6,845 11,658
237,923 110,904
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging:

7. BR¥imnEF

BRI ATEF TS

HIRRIA T BIA

2014 2013
—E—ME —T—=fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
gz ARETT AREEFIT
Cost of construction contracts and AR RERFT RS A
design services 2,931,638 2,486,337
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKA 1,009,354 670,634
Cost of electricity sold BEEBEKAE 21,410 5,138
Depreciation e 14 110,910 64,299
Amortisation of prepaid land lease AT L SRR
payments 15 2,183 2,014
Amortisation of intangible assets mILEESE 16 687 797
Minimum lease payments under KEHE TR
operating leases HERK 5,599 4,648
Research costs T FER A 20,016 23,703
Auditors’ remuneration % EREM BN & 7,001 5,998
Staff costs (including directors’ and B IR A(BIEEE K
chief executive’s remuneration TR (FIEES)) -
(note 8)):
Wages and salaries and TITE& - e kiaEEs
relevant benefits 182,204 154,614
Pension scheme contributions RIRESETEIERR 6,693 5,697
Equity-settled share option expense ~ AR ANAEE 2 BRI 34 1,109 2,112
190,006 162,423
Impairment loss on intangible assets & & E R (ERE 16 - 1,063
Impairment loss on property, Y% - WE REERE
plant and equipment E518 14 6,747 E
Impairment loss on trade receivables EURE 5 FIEREEE 22 278 =
Impairment loss on other receivables - th fE UL R IE R (B B 18 23 1,693 L
Loss on settlement of derivative HEEITESRT ANEE
financial instruments 3,551 -
Fair value loss on derivative financial ~ $T4E & & T H &Y
instruments NEEEE 27 3,042 B
Issue expenses of convertible bonds ~ FEIBzFAKRAY
charged to profit or loss AR E ST 10,102 =
Loss on disposal of items of property, L&  FE &
plant and equipment RAHIEE EE 72,747 28,505
Exchange losses, net [ H 518 - JF58 3,017 2,318
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKSE”) and section 78 of
Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with
reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

EERTHESRME

BRIBEBHERBARA R ([ BB
AT BHEETMAREBERQBEH
CEBIEE22E) KR 11 E781KEL L E
RIS BB A EMEA CERIE 32 %) & 161
BEBEOFNES RITHREHINE
™

2014 2013

—E—MFE —ZE—=%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARBFT

Fees [k 4,573 4,558

Other emoluments: EAE -

Salaries, allowances and e R REYF =S

benefits in kind 1,886 1,503

Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIHK 36 36

6,495 6,097
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. ESRITHBUAEM: (&)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind contributions Total
Fees & - 284 iR{A€ remuneration
weE REDAE IR FrofaBst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETRT ARETRT ARETR
2014 —E—MmE
Executive directors: HITES -
Mr. Liu Hongwei* BIAT 4 S 1,420 706 12 2,138
Mr. Sun Jinli Redrs 1,183 551 12 1,746
Mr. Xie Wen HEE 1,183 629 12 1,824
3,786 1,886 36 5,708
Non-executive directors: EMITES :
Mr. Cao Zhirong BEESRE 107 = = 107
Mr. Li Huizhong TERiLE 107 s = 107
214 - - 214
Independent non-executive directors: I FEATTES :
Mr. Wang Ching TREE 158 = = 158
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon ST E 237 = = 237
Mr. Cheng Jinshu A ptad 178 et = 178
573 - - 573
4,573 1,886 36 6,495
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EBERTHAHNE(E)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind  contributions Total
Fees %r& - 28L iEfK€  remuneration

e REYME® BE [ FrMaast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBTT ARBTIT ARETT

2013 —E—=F
Executive directors: BITES -
Mr. Liu Hongwei AT HE 1,415 578 12 2,005
Mr. Sun Jinli ReBhE 1,179 434 12 1,625
Mr. Xie Wen B 1,179 491 12 1,682
3,773 1,503 36 5312
Non-executive directors: EHITES -
Mr. Cao Zhirong BEREE 107 = = 107
Mr. Li Huizhong TEREE 107 = = 107
214 - - 214
Independent non-executive directors: B IEHITES :
Mr. Wang Ching TREE 157 = = 157
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon SIKESE 236 = = 236
Mr. Cheng Jinshu i vl 178 = = 178
571 - - 571
4,558 1,503 36 6,097
g Mr. Liu Hongwei who acts as an executive director of the Company is also g BIATHE S EEEARARRIRITES - /1
the chief executive officer of the Company. RADRITHAEH,
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief FRIETMEERITRETHNESR
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year ERETMAFNZZH(ZE—=

(2013: Nil). ) o
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two directors
and the chief executive (2013: two directors and the chief executive),
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2013: two) highest
paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of the

AfimEHES

FAN - AUGaHEEREEMLUES
PABEH (—CE—=ZF MUESER
THER)  BENFIFBER EX
MizE8 - A TRAL (Z T — =4 : MfiL)
FARNREBERFTHEHSTSFHEE

Company are as follows: FAMFMFBOT -

2014 2013
—T—QE —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETFT

Salaries, allowances and e ERLREYAE
benefits in kind 1,987 1,703
Pension scheme contributions RSB 18 22
2,005 1,725

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following band is as

follows:

THFHHEBENIFE R RIFTRAE R
BHEENHEBNT

Number of employees

EE%H
2014 2013
—F—MNF e
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T E 1,500,000 7T 2 2
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10. INCOME TAX

10. Fr8#

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the respective jurisdictions in which members of the
Group are domiciled and operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda, Samoa and the
British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
Bermuda, Samoa and the British Virgin Islands.

No provision for Hong Kong, Macao, Singapore and Nigeria profits tax
has been made as the Group had no assessable profit derived from or
earned in Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore and Nigeria during the year.

Mainland China profits tax has been provided at the respective CIT
rates applicable to the subsidiaries located in Mainland China as
determined in accordance with the relevant income tax rules and
regulations of the PRC for the year.

The major components of income tax expense for the year are as
follows:

AEEERLRKEATHEREENE
A R A A SR -
IR RS -

REBRE BEIMNEBRLESE
RER  AEEEABMNBRE  BEE
D RRBRLESHEAIPTEH

REAREEWEREE - BFT - #0000
% N JE B M a5 2 A ok SR ER o] FE AR B b
A WA EGLEE R - FINRRIE
B A S THAHR R -

FEAEMSRIERPEREMNER

FIERNBREEMBHRE - HEATP
B2 BRI BURR RARBIE L B4 -

AERASHAXEZHIWT

2014 2013
—E—MF TE—ZF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT

Current — Mainland China BHIFTSI — RBIARE
— Charge for the year — FAMX 125,084 110,760
Deferred (note 31) RIE (FF3E31) (11,010) 25,155
Total tax charge for the year FRRRIEF T BT 114,074 135,915
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the
applicable tax rates for the jurisdictions in which companies within the
Group are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as

follows:

10. FT8H (/&)

X EHEROT ¢

AEERBRBADERN - REEAS AR
EZREEERNERMEFTEN
BB - RIZBRB R E R IER

2014 2013
—T—mE =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFIT
Profit before tax FREE R 3= A 698,913 626,506
At the applicable tax rates HEAMETE 108,637 98,625
Income not subject to tax BARBRIA (7,933) =
Expenses not deductible for tax ARIHURB IR 7,533 6,858
Tax losses utilised from VAR R IERERR A
previous periods HEsBEnER (2,296) (897)
Tax losses not recognised RIEBERNTIBEE 8,133 2,966
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on REB N B AREK B AT
the distributable profits 79 ] 7 B FIHRTE R 5%
of the Group’s STERE (MEE31)
subsidiaries in Mainland China
(note 31) - 28,363
Tax charge at the Group’s REBERHE
effective tax rate RFRIBFA X 114,074 135,915

Except for Zhuhai Singyes Green Building Technology Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai
Singyes”), Zhuhai Singyes Renewable Energy Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Singyes Renewable Energy”), Hunan Singyes Solar Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Hunan Singyes”), Xinjiang Singyes Renewable Energy
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Xinjiang Singyes”) and Wuwei DongRun Solar
Energy Development Co., Ltd. (“Wuwei Dongrun”), which are further
mentioned below, the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are

subject to CIT at a rate of 25%.

BRIBREZEREMBZARRA (2
BEE])  WERFERHRAERA
A (TEERBER ) - HrEEAGRER
BRAERAB(AREE]) - FEEEHN
EERARAR] ([FBEX ) REERE
ARG RBEARAR ([HRERE]) (1

TCE— Pt ) PASN - AREE R B

RPEEHIBT I A R BB 25% TR EFTTS

7 °



128

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2014 —Z—MF+=A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (Continued) 10. FifE#i (48)
In 2014, Zhuhai Singyes, Singyes Renewable Energy and Hunan ZE-F - FBHEE  BEFERK
Singyes are entitled to a preferential PRC CIT rate of 15% as Hunan MR ZZRBECEMEHERTE
Singyes was accredited as “High and New Technology Enterprise” 15%  WIHHNBEEEERELS S
(“HNTE”) while Zhuhai Singyes and Singyes Renewable Energy Fir | ((SFEMmez]) - Mk
renewed their certificates of HNTE. T ELZE T B R RS R A T O = AT R
EEE -
In accordance with the “List of Public Infrastructure Projects Enjoying RIBFEE - IRBMEBRERBERERE
Enterprise Income Tax Preference” (the “List”) promulgated by the MNERESEMAOCAELERRMEIA
Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and the EXEMEHERBS) ([Béx])) 1
National Development and Reform Commission, profit generated EEHAIGREEEBENDE - BHE
by enterprises engaging in the approved projects of solar power NEBE—FLEELEWAFBATFE
construction will be exempted from PRC CIT for their first three years BB FEE=FRBHPECEMNE
and is entitled to a 50% tax reduction for the subsequent three years B EB=ZFRFBRECERSH(=
(“=%=JH¥") since their first revenue-generating year. First revenue- B=RF]D) c BRSERAEEFER
generating year refers to the year during which the first revenue is BARIGEELEBEEESE —ERANT
derived from the solar power construction project. As Xinjiang Singyes - ARFERERRBERBRELRSG
and Wuwei Dongrun are engaging in the solar power construction BEEEBRYNR T NFELEFE—F
project and generated its first revenue in 2014, they will not be liable WA ZERRARZZE—NFE=ZT
for PRC CIT for 2014 to 2016 and will be subject to PRC CIT at a rate —NFRBTBEEEMRSEH AR -F
of 12.5% from 2017 to 2019. —tFEZT-NFIR12.5% B R
MBI ZEFTSH o
11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 11. K AS A AEGRF

COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2014 includes a loss of RMB19,924,000
(2013: loss of RMB15,968,000), which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 35).

HE-_Z—MNE+-_A=+—HILF
& ARARA ANEILRE & B IEE
BARY19924000T(ZE— =4
B8 A R#15,968,0007T) - DERA
NEIB IR (MIEE35) -
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12.

13.

DIVIDENDS 12. g2
2014 2013
—E—MFE TE—ZF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREEFIT
Proposed final — HK9 cents ERARARS — SREEROBNL
(2013: HK9 cents) (ZZT—=4%: 98l
per ordinary share 49,374 48,954
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval AEFHR 2 KPR B BERARRE
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general REEREBEFRE LHE -
meeting.
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. RATLERESITFHAE

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
694,193,675 (2013: 652,800,351) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, adjusted
to reflect the interest on the convertible bonds and fair value gains on
the conversion rights of the convertible bonds, where applicable (see
below). The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year,
as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

i F

BREREFTIREARR B E BRI
BEARGEREFNRENEEITER
& 89 hn#E S 15 £1694,193,6 75 ( = F
— =% : 652,800,351 f&) 5t & -

SREERNHREF ESREAAF
RERANAR R SRR ESA ARG
FRENE - WIEHAR - URERA]
B ESFH N S K AT R (B A E R
AHEWE(ER) (RTX) - 5t &
BFER AR TR P BARNF R E
TEBERAE (AR ESRERE
M) ARBRRAE#HTEEL B
RAR BT RS ERAR | ERT
BB B DT I 8
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

13. XA B BIERFTAAE
iEEiEF ()

BREAREERN N E TR -

2014 2013
—F—lE —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT
Earnings &F
Profit attributable to ordinary FTESRERATK
equity holders of the Company RAREBRER
used in the basic earnings FH AEEEF
per share calculation: 584,269 490,587
Interest on convertible bonds AR &S 37,762 =
Less: fair value gains on B TR E R
the conversion rights B A EWE
of the convertible bonds (115,719) -
Profit attributable to ordinary B AT AR ESF B &
equity holders of the Company AR (B H e e
before interest on convertible bonds AP ERE
and fair value gains on RAEEBARE
the conversion rights of #HFFE AR
the convertible bonds 506,312 490,587
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. XA LiBERERIEEAE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE EERERN (E)
COMPANY (Continued)

Number of shares

8 E
2014 2013
—E—MNE —ZE—=F
Shares %45
Weighted average number of FTEERERBFEFA
ordinary shares in issue B BT mAR A I8
during the year used in the basic
earnings per share calculation 694,193,675 652,800,351
Effect of dilution — weighted average EEBERE — LBAR
number of ordinary shares: TR -
Share options R AR A 14,101,924 13,226,556
Convertible bonds AR ES 28,828,025 -

737,123,624 666,026,907
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. %% - BERRE

Group FEE
Office
equipment
Land and Plant and Motor and fumiture Photovoltaic Construction
buildings machinery vehicles HAE power station in progress Total
ThREF ek RE HRERER p RV ERIR Lh)
31 December 2014 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
“E-mE+-A=1+-H ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETTR ARETT  ARETR
Cost: B
M1lanuary 2014  RZZ-TE
—-A-H 1,062,507 275,734 12,576 23,767 1,454,144 18,118 2,846,846
Additions e 2,637 14,528 1,803 3,427 126,429 906,247 1,055,071
Transfers fe 64,008 3,466 = S 414,312 (481,786) -
Disposals hE - - (118) - (168,967) - (169,085)
Exchange realignment & 4% 58 - - 1 - = 59
At 31 December 2014 MZF—ME
TZA=+-H 1,129,210 293,728 14,261 27,195 1,825,918 442,579 3,732,891
Accumulated BHITERRE:
depreciation
and impairment:
M1lanuary 2014 RZF-WE
—-A-H 47,207 71,875 8,268 15,716 17,566 - 166,632
Depreciation provided AFEHTE
for the year EE 21,617 26,398 1,748 3,165 57,982 - 110,910
Impairment provided A ERE
for the year %E 2,243 4,504 = S S = 6,747
Disposals hE - - - - (6,477) - (6,477)
Exchange realignment 3 33% 7 - - 1 - = 8
At31 December 2014 R=F—MF
+-A=t+-H 71,074 108,777 10,016 18,882 69,071 - 277,820
Net carrying amount: FREH{E :
M1lanary 2014 RZE-ME
—-A-H 1,015,300 197,859 4,308 8,051 1,436,578 18,118 2,680,214
At31 December 2014 R=F-ME
TZA=+-B 1,058,136 184,951 4,245 8,313 1,756,847 442,579 3,455,071
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERRE (&)
(Continued)
Group (Continued) AEE(8)
Office
equipment
Land and Plant and Motor and furniture Phatovoltaic Construction
buildings machinery vehicles N power station in progress Total
T REF BRE i RERGA FIRE IR )
31 December 2013 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
“E-=F+-fA=1-H ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETR
Cost: BE:
M1lanuary2013 RZT-=F
= 1,050,218 268,230 11,569 22822 272,823 21,999 1,647 661
Additions e - 6,894 1,007 739 620,668 663,031 1,292,329
Transfers EiL 12,820 610 - 211 653,271 (666,912) =
Disposals HE - - - - (92,608) - (92,608)
Exchange realignment EX % (531) S = (5) S = (536)

At 31 December 2013 R=F—=5
+

TZAZT-B 1062507 275,734 12,576 23,767 1,454,144 18118 2346846

Accumulated EHE R

depreciation:
M1lanuary2013 RZZT-=F
—A-H 25873 b5,707 6,380 7430 6,992 - 102,382
Provided for the year TEERE 21,378 22,168 1,888 8291 10,574 - 64,29
Disposals e s s L s = 2 s
Exchange realignment E X% (44) = = (5) S = (49)

At 31 December 2013 R=5—=5
+

e 47,207 71815 8,268 15,716 17,566 - 166,632

Net carrying amount: FREIF{E :
M1lanuary2013 RZE-=F
=i 1,024,345 212,523 5,189 15,392 265,831 21999 1,545,279

At 31 December 2013 R=5—=%
S =il 1,015,300 197,859 4,308 8051 1,436,578 18,118 2,680,214
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Group (Continued)

Note:

(a)

At 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s land and buildings with
a net carrying amount of approximately RMB315,170,000 (2013:
RMB318,655,000) were pledged to secure bank and other loans granted
to the Group (note 28(a)).

As at 31 December 2014, the application for the property ownership
certificates of certain buildings with a net carrying amount of
approximately RMB275,844,000 (2013: RMB283,905,000) was in
progress. Those buildings can only be sold, transferred or mortgaged
when their relevant ownership certificates have been obtained.

As at 31 December 2014, the rights on the annual return generated
from the photovoltaic power station with a net carrying amount of
approximately RMB32,498,000 (2013: Nil) were assigned to an
independent third party for twenty years for a loan obtained by the Group
(note 28).

An impairment loss of RMB3,290,000 (2013: Nil) was recognised during
the year to write down the carrying amount of the buildings and power
plant of Zhuhai Singyes Xinye Electricity Technology Co., Ltd. (“Singyes
Xinye”) (“Power Plant CGU"), which is regarded as a separate cash
generating unit for impairment assessment purpose, to its recoverable
amount as the economic performance of it was worse than expected.

The recoverable amount of the Power Plant CGU was determined based
on the value in use calculation with a discount rate of 11.6%. The
recoverable amounts of the Power Plant CGU is RMB20,642,000.

14. 2 - FERRE (E)

*&E(E)

BfeE

R-B—WE+=-—A=+—R  &&
B AR FE 4 A R 315,170,000 7T
(Z=—=% : AR¥318,655,0007T)
BWET T REFEEFEARETA
EEMNRITREMER 2 BR (K
28(a)) °

RZZE—NF+_RA=+—8 KA
SFEL /AR 275,844,000 (ZF
—=% : AR¥283,905,0007T) 25
TRFZYEEREE LA BIE
B ZERFENREEEMNE
BEERFAHE SRS -

RZE—NMFE+ZA=+—8 %
RERELENREFEOARE
32,498,000 (=T —=F: T) 2 F
ERHEFNERAEHRGH—FF
Ho+FNERERT - EBUE=
75 (Kfaz28) »

MREERBBNTAS - FRERE
BEEBARK3,290,000T(ZE—=
F:F) UHBKEBEENNEE
RAR(EBXENDNEFREER
(TBERREELSEM ] pUBEN G
MERRSBULNREELEM) 2B
EEMREERRESHE -

BEMRCELEMNAIRESRTD
ERERBEAREXR1L6%E -
BREMRCELEMNARETSES
AE# 20,642,000 7T ©
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

An impairment loss of RMB3,457,000 (2013: Nil) was recognised during
the year to write down the carrying amount of the production machine
of Zhuhai Singyes Applicable Materials Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai Singyes
Applicable Materials”) to its disposal value which was estimated to be
zero as the machine was becoming idle and did not meet the condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by

14. W - FERRE (E)

FARRREEEARY3457,000

T(ZF—=F F) UEREEE
ERAMBRERAR ([ FREHERE
MR B A E 2 BREE R E
HEEEE AR RSRHEATTA
RERERE T ERNDBEESE

management. A EHEEEHT AT -
Company V. /N
Office
equipment
Land and and furniture
buildings WAERIE Total
T RiEF RixH #ast
31 December 2014 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—EF-NFE+=-H=+—H ARETR ARETR AREBTRT
Cost: R :
At 1 January 2014 R-ZZE—WF—-HA—H 16,994 160 17,154
Exchange realignment P& H R 58 1 59
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—NF+=A=+—H 17,052 161 17,213
Accumulated depreciation: RitinE .
At 1 January 2014 RZE—NF—HA—HR 1,709 158 1,867
Provided for the year RNEERE 458 2 460
Exchange realignment bE A% 7 1 8
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—NFE+=ZA=+—H 2,174 161 2,335
Net carrying amount: AROERE :
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—WF—HA—H 15,285 2 15,287
At 31 December 2014 e 2 — DU e e =] 14,878 = 14,878
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Company (Continued)

31 December 2013
—FT=%1+-A=1+—AH

14. 2 - FERRE (E)

AAT (58)
Office
equipment
Land and and furniture
buildings EYNEE ] Total
T RIEF AR E #EEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBETTT ARETTT

Cost: R :

At 1 January 2013 R-TE—=%—HF—H 17,525 165 17,690
Exchange realignment & H AR (531) (5) (536)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=-A=+—H 16,994 160 17,154
Accumulated depreciation: E-Hgii-

At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=%—HF—H 1,280 162 1,442
Provided for the year INEFERAE 473 1 474
Exchange realignment bE A% (44) (5) (49)
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=ZF+=-_A=+—H 1,709 158 1,867
Net carrying amount: ARERE :

At 1 January 2013 R-E—=F—HF—H 16,245 3 16,248
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=5+=-A=+—H 15,285 2 15,287

At 31 December 2014, the Company’s land and buildings with
a net carrying amount of approximately RMB14,878,000 (2013:
RMB15,285,000) were pledged to secure bank loans granted to the
Group (note 28).

RZE—MOF+ZA=+—H ' AR7A
RESFEOARE 14,878,000 (=&
—=f: AR 15,285,0007T) # t i
REFEEREARTAEENRITE
2R (M5 28) -
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31 December 2014 —=ZF—NF+=A=+—H

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. fEft T HERKIE
Group
FEE
2014 2013
—E—lE —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBETFTT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HZEmEE 94,608 92,697
Additions wE 5,088 3,925
Amortisation charged for the year ANEFEEE (M)

(note 7) (2,183) (2,014)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HZEHEE 97,513 94,608
At 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s prepaid land RZZE—MOF+ZA=+—H ' £5E
lease payments with a net carrying amount of approximately BREFELN AR 1,555,000 (==
RMB91,555,000 (2013: RMB93,542,000) were pledged to secure —=4%: AR#¥93,542,0007C) & T
bank loans granted to the Group (note 28 (b)). BT HHERBEEREAR TAE

BEVIRTTE R 2 PR (M 28(b)) °

The leasehold land is held under a medium term lease and is situated HETHREPEBANFE - Ui
in Mainland China. B A BE o
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B EE
Group AEE
Operating
Software rights Total
B T “ast
31 December 2014 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—F—-NFE+=-H=+—H ARETT ARETRT ARETT
Cost: 5%
At 1 January 2014 RZE—NF—H—H 1,664 4,107 5,771
Additions A= 609 - 609
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—NF+=A=+—H 2,273 4,107 6,380
Accumulated amortisation Rt RIRIE -
and impairment:
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—mHF—A—H 808 3,291 4,099
Amortisation provided during FNEHEERE (FIE7)
the year (note 7) 343 344 687
At 31 December 2014 RZE—mWF+=ZA=+—H 1,151 3,635 4,786
Net carrying amount: BRTEF{E :
At 1 January 2014 R-ZZE—NF—H—H 856 816 1,672
At 31 December 2014 RZE-—WF+=A=+—H 1,122 472 1,594
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

16. R EE (/&)

Group (Continued) XEE (&)
Operating
Software rights Total
CIEs K 45T
31 December 2013 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E—=F+=ZA=+—H AREEFIT AREF T ARETT
Cost: 5% -
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=F—A—H 1,264 4,107 5371
Additions NE 400 = 400
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=-A=+—H 1,664 4,107 5,771
Accumulated amortisation RiHEHERRIE
and impairment:

At 1 January 2013 R-E—=F—HA—H 506 1,733 2,239
Amortisation provided for the year F N5 & 302 495 797
Impairment provided for the year AR E R = 1,063 1,063
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+=-A=+—H 808 3,291 4,099
Net carrying amount: RTEE(E :
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=%—HF—H 758 2,374 S 32
At 31 December 2013 T St i [ = S e [ 856 816 1,672
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. R BATHRE
Company
AAT

2014 2013

—F-—-F —T-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREFTT

Unlisted shares, at cost* JE TR - IRAOAS * = =

Loans to subsidiaries” BERTHERR" 1,900,333 1,120,039

1,900,333 1,120,039
* As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, total costs of investments of the * RZZE—NER-_FT—=+=A4
Company’s directly owned subsidiaries are RMB17. =t+—B  AREEERENBAR

MR ERABARK 17T -

" In the opinion of the directors, these loans to subsidiaries are considered " BERE ZERETHEBARNE
as part of the Company’s investments in its subsidiaries FHRARRRRZEWNB AR

BH—&D -

Amounts due to subsidiaries included in the Company’s liabilities as at RZE—NERZZTE—=F+=A
31 December 2014 and 2013 were unsecured, interest-free and were —+—H8  B8ERARQFEEANNEN
repayable within one year. WEARREAEER 2B RAR—

FREE -
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out below:

Place of
incorporation/

Nominal value

17. RHBASIRRE (8)

HIB AR FHITHIIMT

Equity interests

registration of paid-up attributable to
Company name and business share capital the Company Principal activities
ML EATIRE
AT &R ZEEREEME HEREEE ERENL EEER
('000) (%)
(F7T)

Directly held:

EEFH

Singyes Engineering Hong Kong —@ 100.0 Design, manufacture,
(H.K.) Co., Ltd. BE supply and installation
(“Singyes Engineering”) of curtain walls

BAHEETEARAT JEt - 8hE - HER
([HExTE]) LRI

Indirectly held:

[T -

Zhuhai Singyes Green Mainland China US$49,000 100.0 Design, manufacture,
Building Technology e lETp N7 49,000 7T supply and installation
Co., Ltd. of curtain walls and
(“Zhuhai Singyes”)® © photovoltaic power station

WG EE B a2 HER
BHERAERAT LREIE RN IRE
(THRgHE |) O

Singyes Renewable Mainland China Us$18,125 100.0 Research, development
Energy® @ AR 18,1253 ¢ manufacture and sale of

B FTREIR © @ photovoltaic products

e - FE - BliER
SHE N IREm
Singyes Xinye® Mainland China RMB20,000 100.0 Development of new
BXTHO AR B ARE energy materials,
20,000 7T and development

of marine biology

technology
TR MR R

G288 L kAT



142

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

Place of
incorporation/

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out below: (Continued)

Nominal value

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2014 —Z—MF+=A=+—H

17. REBAEIMIRE ()

MEBARZFERIINT - (8)

Equity interests

registration of paid-up attributable to
Company name and business share capital the Company Principal activities
ML EATIREN
AT &E B REEME HERFEE ERESL EEEH
('000) (%)
(F7)
Indirectly held: (Continued)
[EEHE - (&)
Zhuhai Singyes Applicable Mainland China RMB50,000 100.0 Research, manufacture
Materials® R B R B AR and sale of photovoltaic
R EEERE AR © 50,000 7T film
R - RERHE R KNER
Hunan Singyes® Mainland China RMB411,403 100.0 Research, development,
W LS © R B ARHE manufacture and sale of
411,403 7T solar products
7 - FE - BliER
HE KSR Em
Singyes Energy-saving Mainland China US$65,000 100.0 Research and development
Technologies Co., Ltd. A A 65,000 % 7T of energy-saving
(“Singyes Energy-saving”)®d products
RGBSR R AR A A 7 K B BT RE EE m
([EZEnRE |) 0@
Xinjiang Singyes® Mainland China RMB438,274 77.5 Research, design and
i o AR B ARHE investment of
438,274 7T solar power projects

B3t - AR
R AREER
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31 December 2014 —Z—PUF+=-A=+—8H

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. PMBASIMRE (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out below: (Continued) B AR ZFFEEHIT « (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value  Equity interests
registration of paid-up attributable to
Company name and business share capital the Company Principal activities
MR, AT EL
AT)&HE B REEME HERFEE ERENL EEEH
('000) (%)
(F7T)

Indirectly held: (Continued)
EHEHE © (B)

Hunan Singyes Green Energy Mainland China US$113,569 77.5 Research and develop of
Technologies Co., Ltd.© AR B g i, 113,569%7T electricity and
(“Hunan Green Energy”) new energy

I B S A B REIR R 7T K R E I RFEER
BRAR©
(MHAmsREREIR])

Gansu Singyes Green Energy Mainland China RMB20,000 77.5 Research, construction
Technology Co., Ltd.® R A3 AR# 20,0007t and operation of solar
(“Gansu Singyes”) power station

HEREEEERREH if5e - ER
BRLORO([HEREZE]) KE KI5 T

Wuwei DongRun® Mainland China RMB1,000 69.8 Research, construction

HEEREO AR A AR 1,0007T and operation of solar

power station
% - @k

$E K R[5 BE Tk
Gansu Singyes Solar Mainland China RMB20,000 100.0 Research, development,
Technologies Co., Ltd.® R A 3 AR# 20,0007 manufacture and sale of
(“Gansu Technologies”) solar products
HAREE ARG RH e - FE - BER
BRATO([HERBHE]) SHE KFZEEE M
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the ERINTESTRAEETEFXEASEHT
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or EEERERAEREEFEENTD
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give NARRINBAR - EFRA - RHEHE
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result B AR ZFIEHERFBBRIT

in particulars of excessive length. Ko
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The paid-up capital of Singyes Engineering is HK$1.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s equity interests in these
companies were pledged as collateral for the Company’s bank loan with a
principal of US$90,000,000. Such bank loan was repaid by the Company
in August 2014 and the register of pledge only released subsequently in
January 2015.

Zhuhai Singyes, Hunan Green Energy and Hunan Singyes were registered
as Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises under PRC law.

Singyes Renewable Energy, Singyes Xinye and Zhuhai Singyes Energy-
saving were registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law.

Zhuhai Singyes Applicable Materials was registered as a foreign
investment enterprise under PRC law.

Xinjiang Singyes, Gunsu Singyes, Wuwei DongRun and Gansu
Technologies were registered as limited liability companies under PRC
law.

None of the subsidiaries has material non-controlling interests.

18. PAYMENTS IN ADVANCE

17. RMBASINIRE (2)

GEE

]

WETRRNBERAR LB

RZZE—WF+_A=+—8 K&
ERZEARNBRAESRD KR - 1F
AR X B 24 90,000,000 E TTHY R AT
ERMERR - ZMTERERAR
AR—T-HFENAEE  BREL
ERBE%R T —RAF— ARk -

WBEE B GRIRKAREE
REBEFEEREMRTINEERE -

HEFEER  BEENRIKEHED
BERIEREVAREM AN EEDRE -

TR B3 FE A A RHR R BUE 2 R
RONEREDRZE -

BE  HREE  KERERE
BERRETEZEIMAEREE

AR

BUEM B R R A EAIHE R o

18. FARRRIA

Group

S 1L
2014 2013
—E—ME ZE—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT

Advance payments in respect of: LATRIE B MTE50A -

Land use rights T fsh A 2,486 2,486
Construction of fixed assets Eilrak==3= 170,642 =
Purchase of machinery IEE SRR 19,307 4,283
Others HAfth 789 =
193,224 6,769
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31 December 2014 —=ZF—NF+=A=+—H

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE EQUITY INVESTMENTS

19. A#tH Elx KR E

Group Company
AEHE FAT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—ES-NFE —T—=F CZE-AF =—T-—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETT ARBTRT AREBTT
Unlisted equity investments, EEMRAKE
at cost: B

Weihai China BRI 11,878 29,038 11,878 11,838
Jiuhua New Energy NEFREIR 380 380 = =
12,258 29,418 11,878 11,838

As at 31 December 2014, the equity investment in Weihai China
Glass Solar Co., Ltd. (“Weihai China”) amounted to RMB11,878,000
(aggregate investment of US$1,938,000) and the equity investment in
Jiuhua New Energy Management Co., Ltd. amounted to RMB380,000
were stated at cost as the Group has no significant influence or control
over the entities. The unlisted equity investments represent the Group’s
investments in enterprises domiciled in Mainland China. They are
stated at cost less impairment because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the directors are of the opinion
that their fair value cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not
intend to dispose of them in the near future.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s investment in Weihai China
amounted to RMB11,878,000 was pledged as collateral for the
Company’s bank loan with a principal of US$90,000,000. Such
bank loan was repaid in August 2014 and the register of pledge only
released subsequently in January 2015.

RZZE—NF+=—A=+—8  REE
REAEBRAB(EERE]) 2K
AIREANRBE11,878,0007T( BIEE
1,938,000 7T) KM NEFHEREERR
PR B 2 BRANIRE A R 380,000 T2
BASIME - W ERAEEHZEER
WS K52 ) R o 3 EARA
BEEAEENFBEADENRE
BRABREEKANRERET - BHE
EEAFEGTZHEEER EFR
%'H“¥ﬁﬁ%7%ﬁ§o$%ﬁﬁ
ERITEHERRIRE -

FE e T e e e e
EEREBRRIBRESCEARE
11,878,000 T EEIFIERE T AR A
8 17 & X AN 4 90,000,000 3 7t #9 K 48
Mo ZRITERER=_Z—NHFEN\AE
EREREREE_E—RF—A
% o

0

A

puz: )
i)
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20. INVENTORIES 20. &
Group
FEE
2014 2013
—E—MFE ZE—=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETTT
Raw materials JRAT R 73,669 54,504
Finished goods EX S 40,917 22,125
114,586 76,629
21. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 21. B S
Group
FEE
2014 2013
—E—MFE —ZE—=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSBTRT AREETFTT
Gross amount due from Bl A RBRFRFIERE
contract customers 284,485 117,870
Contract costs incurred plus S FTA RAN L
recognised profits to date 2 AR 5 ) 1,347,162 846,498
Less: progress billings B REEAEHE (1,062,677) (728,628)

284,485 117,870
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31 December 2014 —=ZF—NF+=A=+—H

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

22. FEWEE SRIE R B EHE

Group
X EE
2014 2013
—T—ME —ET—=4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETTT
Trade and bills receivables FEUE B 30E M IR IE 2,195,068 1,803,818
Less: impairment o ORE (2,833) (2,555)
2,192,235 1,801,263

As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables contained retention money
receivables of RMB299,731,000 (2013: RMB232,452,000). Retention
money receivables are normally collected within one to five years after
the completion of the relevant construction works.

Credit terms granted to the Group’s major customers are as follows:

Construction contracts

The maijority of the Group’s revenues are generated from construction
contracts and are settled in accordance with the terms specified in
the contracts governing the relevant construction works. The Group
does not have a standardised and universal credit period granted to
its construction contract customers. The credit period of individual
construction contract customers is considered on a case-by-case basis
and set out in the construction contracts, as appropriate. In the event
that a project contract does not specify the credit period, the usual
practice of the Group is to allow a credit period of 30 to 150 days.

RZZE—WHF+-_A=+—H" &
WESHRBEEBREERERE AR
299,731,000t (ZFE—=F: AR¥
232,452,0007T) » Y E RS —ARTHE
WREETRTKRE - ERFAMKER

BTAEEIBEZFPONEEHMT

REBHAGFIWABBEZESRE
g WiRREEEBRZETENA RS
BEMRREE - AEBR AR THE
RRBEPBERG—HEEH - @5
ERREEFPHNEERRBERME - A
FIARZEEARS (WEE) - fH—IHRA
BEHRFIAGEES  BIARKENED
RATNF0BEZEIS0BRIEEE -
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. FEYG B S RIE R B EE

&)
Sale of materials HEEE
For the sale of materials, the Group normally grants a credit period HEMEHEEMS - ASEE—BRETRE
ranging from three to six months to large customers. Trade receivables EENF=2~EAEER - KB
from small and new customers are normally expected to be settled RIRFEREFHENKE ZFIE®E T EH
shortly after the provision of services or delivery of goods. No credit EEERERGIRNTEm BN
period is set by the Group for small and new customers. o REBARG/ N RINEEF R ER
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements REBENEREWE SHRIBRBIHFET
over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest- AHER @A EE SR IEE o BUCE
bearing. SHRBRRE °
An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end of the RS AR - R RERE B H R BRIRE
reporting period, based on the billing date and net of impairment, is as AEEHENEKE 5B RERERE
follows: BT
Group
AEHE
2014 2013
—E—lE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT
Within 3 months =EAA 1,397,064 1,137,479
3 to 6 months =Z=R @A 527,268 452,994
6 to 12 months NETZ@A 135,496 141,781
1to 2 years —EWF 118,257 66,813
2 to 3 years ME=1F 14,080 1,053
Over 3 years =FHE 70 1,143

2,192,235 1,801,263
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. [EYG B S RIE R B EE

(&)
The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are as FEWE SRIERERE 2 EEnT
follows:
Group
AEHEH
2014 2013
—T—QE —ET-=4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
At 1 January n—A—H 2,555 2,555
Impairment loss recognised (note 7) B MR (EEE (FiFE7) 278 958
Impairment losses reversed (note 7)  JREEIEE R (FIFE7) = (958)
2,833 2,555
The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers that B RIE AR FEIE 5 708 Th A B SR
were in financial difficulties and the receivables are not expected to $HMEFAR  BESTAAKEZERE
be recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit WE SFIE - AEBEWERZELEHT

enhancements over these balances. BEAER RS EEE NS EE -
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and bills receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

22. FEWEE SRIE R FEWEHE

==
&)

REBREAREN EE B T0E R E
KBRS AT

Group

FEHE
2014 2013
—E—MmFE TE—ZF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFT
Neither past due nor impaired R AT AR E 2,073,804 1,698,118

Past due but not impaired: DA B RRE ¢

Less than 6 months past due BEIT RN EA 109,657 98,727
6 to 12 months past due wmEAARE+—EA 8,499 4,201
Over 12 months past due A+ @A E 275 217
2,192,235 1,801,263

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances.

REHTRARBE ) FEUGRIR T B R &5
B MEHOTHENZEEPEM -

£ 38 BR B RORUE B0 FE U IE T B 2% 2 08
YEFEW BHNEEERTRLEIRE
REH) - ABEBERDEER R 2EIK
O RAREFRBBRERLFEMRIE
TR ERE - REEWERZSERET
BAEMERRERREMEENRE
it
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23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. TAIRRIE « ST & R H b FEU

RECEIVABLES =N

Group

FEE
2014 2013
—E—MFE ZE—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETTT

Prepayments to subcontractors EY>EEk

and suppliers HEE B 169,013 59,351
Deposits HE2 49,934 35,562
Other receivables o fE U RIE 206,678 135,025
425,625 229,938
Less: impairment o ORE (2,093) (400)
423,532 229,538

The movements in provision for impairment of other receivables are as

HitERSRREREEBHIMT

follows:
Group
AEHE
2014 2013
—T—MmE —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT ARETFT
At 1 January TR = 400 400
Impairment loss recognised (note 7) B RERREEE (KizE7) 1,693 -
2,093 400

B 3t = BR[O /9 E fth 8 WK IR HH R
EREARKE2093,00T(ZE—=
F: ARM400,0007T ) B AR
2,093,000 5 » kit B EE AR A B A =X
BB - B ERST HA 3 S B R R 8% Y e KUK
HER -

Impairment provision of RMB2,093,000 (2013: RMB400,000) has
been made on other receivables that have been outstanding for a long
time. Other than the amount of RMB2,093,000, none of the above
assets are either past due or impaired and relate to receivables for
which there was no recent history of default.
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 24. R FIREZEEYLL KT
PLEDGED DEPOSITS =R
Group Company
AEH N
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-mE = CZBT-NFE —T-—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT ARBTR AREBTE

Cash and bank balances He RIRT TR 901,417 894,732 88,244 6,631
Time deposits TEHIFER 500,327 346,522 - 27,035
1,401,744 1,241,254 88,244 33,666

Less: Pledged bank balances for: o ATNEIER

=]

HIRERTT

ik
Project bidding BB - 411 - =
Bank loans (note 28(c)) SRITER

(Hft5E28(c)) - 27,035 = 27,035
Bank overdrafts (note 28(c)) RITEX

(Mi3E28(c)) 20,000 = = =
Letter of credit ERE 13,500 19,750 = =
Bills payable JiARNEEE 466,827 299,326 - =

Sub-total NEt 500,327 346,522 = 27,035

Cash and cash equivalents Be RIREZEY 901,417 894,732 88,244 6,631




ZF-MFEFR FRERAXKGERMZERER AR

153

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
I B R MY et

31 December 2014 —=ZF—NF+=A=+—H

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued)

24. RERBEFR/YLIRIKR
=R (E)

REBR S RIRTTHEERARE BFRUA
THERIE -

The Group’s cash and bank balances and time deposits denominated
in the following currencies:

Group Company
AEE AAT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—EB-NE -—T—=-F CZFB-AFE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT ARBTR AREBTT
RMB equivalent amount: AREEBESE

RMB AREE 1,262,400 659,623 48,333 -
uss ETT 104,449 550,138 36,288 6,609
HK$ BT 21,616 31,359 3,623 27,057
SG$ T 2,145 = - =
MOP BT 11,134 134 - -
1,401,744 1,241,254 88,244 33,666

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

ARBAATERBEAREMER - R
i - AR P B K B ) S B I (R D1 B A
- EERMIEEERE  ~EEEE
BBERELEINEEBNRITEAR
BHBREMEY

RITRERE B RITHERNE 2 )ZEF
RE R - EMIERZEFRHANF—H
E=ER  \AKREZHNESHRSFRM
o WIZARE BT BERA KRR -
RITREBNERERCFALRLET
RIBRE - FEREHRITH
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25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 25. FEFTE SR IE R B SRR
An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the RIEHR - EREEA B ETAS
reporting period, based on the invoice date or issuance date, where (RFFBRME) T EENBE S HIERE
appropriate, is as follows: NEBOIRRTHOT
Group
xEE

2014 2013

—ET—-MNE TE—ZHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREEFIT

Within 3 months =@AR 419,822 700,821

3o 6 months =E=XEA 555,872 557,186

6 to 12 months RE+Z@EA 278,953 14,017

1to 2 years —EWE 14,366 10,330

2 to 3 years ME=F 7,848 4,474

Over 3 years ZFHE 7,471 6,133

1,284,332 1,292,961
The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally ZERMESRELENREAREL

settled on six-month terms. PR NEARRESE -
26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. HithFEFTFRIE R FESTFRIE
Group Company
FEHE AAT]
2014 2013 2014 2013

—ET-E —T—=F ZB-NFE —IT—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRE AREBTT ARBTR ARETT

Advances from customers RPN 32,355 19,376 = =
Tax and surcharge payables ARy SEpIE 41,738 45,247 e =
Accrued expenses FEETRY 18,731 15,931 = 628
Other payables E At T FRIE 221,530 102,017 37,112 15,501
314,354 182,571 37,112 16,129

Other payables and accruals are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and HEMEMNRIEREFIBAEER - &

have no fixed terms of repayment. BRERETEERR -
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27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27. THESRT A
Group
EX T
2014 2013
—E—MFE ZE—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTT ARBTIT
Interest rate swaps ) 5 A 3,042 =

Derivative financial instruments represent fair value losses of interest
rate swap contracts as at 31 December 2014. The Group uses interest
rate swaps to manage its interest rate risk. On 10 January 2014,
the Group entered into interest rate swap contracts with the bank,
covering periods from 27 December 2013 to 28 December 2016 and
27 December 2013 to 27 December 2018, respectively. The interest
rate swap contracts entitle the Group to receive interest at floating
rates on an aggregate notional principal of US$45 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB277 million) and to pay interest at fixed
rates or other floating rates on the same notional amount principal
simultaneously. The Group agreed with the bank to swap the interest
difference between fixed rates and floating rates and between different
floating rates, respectively, on the deemed notional principal amounts
on a six-month basis.

N-ZE—NE+—A=+—H  $T4%
BT EEF RS O AT EERE -
REEFAFEIZHERHEFERR
RZZ—NFE—A+AH - AEBHEETT
FIMFEREBEL  AHNESRAST
—=F+-A=-++tHEZZ—RF
F+ZAZFTNBRZE—=F+=A
Zt+tEREZZT-N\F+ZA=+t
H o BIBEFIXEEEL - "EEA A
A ¢ #8758 545,000,000 7T (FHE B
#) A R # 277,000,000 7T ) 1% % ) FI| &
WECRLS - R R — R E AR IR
EEFMER S —ZEBFEZAFE o &
SEERITHETNEARZEIEERE
RNE IR E EF BT B A R E
BHEOFEZHEURIE TN ZEFRAE
BHOFSERE -
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 28. Mt BRITREMER
LOANS
Group XEE
2014 2013
—F-mE —T-=F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BRFIE %) HE  ARETT  EEAE(%) E ARETT
Current wE
Bank overdrafts RITEX
—secured - BHEA Hong Kong
Interbank
Offered Rate
(“HIBOR") +3
ERRTEERS
(T&F#HT  Ondemand
FI%HFE 1) +3 RERE 3,944 =
Bank loans RITER
- secured - BEA HIBOR + HIBOR +
3.5~4 On demand 16,961 3.5~4 On demand 16,903
EBRT REKEF BBRIT RERK
F%HFE + RERFE +
3.5~4 3.5~4
HIBOR+0.95 2015 959  HIBOR+0.95 2014 945
ERWRIT BRRIT
FI%i75+0.95 FI%478+095
2.27~7.86 2015 578,967 5.88~7.2 2014 653,700
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 28. M BRITRAMERR (E)
LOANS (Continued)
Group XEE
2014 2013
—F-mE —T-=F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BRFIE %) HE  ARETT  EEAE(%) E ARETT
Bank loans RITER
- unsecured* - AR London
Interbank
Offered Rate
(“LIBOR")+2.5
fRBERITRIERE LIBOR+2.5
(T fRBERIT REIRIT
REHFE ] +2.5 2015 144,267 [REHFE+25 2014 98,080
6~7.2 2015 55,000 -
Other loans HER
- secured -5ER 5.04~8.3 2015 185,500 8.20 2014 100,000
Other loans HER

— unsecured** — AR 9.07 2015 1,923 =

987,521 869,628
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (Continued)

. R ERITREMER (B)

Group (Continued) AEE (&)
2014 2013
—E-ME —2-=F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
EREFHIE (%) Y  ARETR  EBEFE®%) |5 ARETTT
Non-current E 1 )|
Bank loans RITER
- secured - FHEH HIBOR+0.95 HIBOR+0.95
EHRRT BRI
FI%#F2+0.95 2016-2020 4,202 FEFE+0.95 2015-2020 5,143
5.04~6.77 2016 87,000 5.04~6.15 2015 65,000
6.72 2016-2022 29,400 504 2016 60,000
7.86 2016-2029 194,000 6.88 2015-2022 33,600
Other loans HiEX LIBOR +4.25~6
- secured -HER WEIRTT
REFE +
5.04 2016 60,000 4.25~6 2015-2018 517,538
Other loans HiER
- unsecured** — BRI 9.07  2016-2034 17,077 =
391,679 681,281
1,379,200 1,550,909

* %

The bank loans of Zhuhai Singyes were solely guaranteed by the
Company for nil consideration.

On 7 November 2014, Singyes Green Investment (HK) Company
Limited (“Singyes Green Investment”) entered into a revenue distribution
agreement regarding 5SMW photovoltaic power station (the “Relevant
Asset”) (note 14(c)), which is one of a assets held by Hunan Singyes,
Singyes Green Investment’s indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary, with
a counterparty, whereby the counterparty prepaid RMB19,000,000
to Singyes Green Investment to exchange the right on annual return
of the Relevant Asset for each fiscal year (the “Annual Return”) for
twenty years. The Annual Return is the electricity annual revenue on the
Relevant Asset minus related PRC tax. If in any fiscal year the Annual
Return is less than RMB2,000,000 (the “Minimum Return”), Singyes
Green Investment shall pay the counterparty the Minimum Return.

* %

WEBEEMRITESAL AR ESE
EFER

R-TB-WFE+—ALR  BEEE
RE(BERB)ERARA(BEEZER
BDE-BHFHROKRIREL
(MEMEE ] REERERANRE
2EMBARMEEXSENEE)
RIS — IR A S BEifak (T 14(c)) -
B - ZEF I REEEERERN
AR 19,000,0007C - AR RIEBE
ER -+ HRESEMRFENFE
B8 ([FEER ) ZER - FEMEB
REBEENFEENRAR LA
BT - AE(B R F R F R B
RAKRH A R % 2,000,000 7T ([ &K 2]
] AIEEGEREARABEFHX
MRERE -
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 28. Mt BMITRAMERR (5)
LOANS (Continued)
Company F4F
2014 2013
—F-mE —T-=F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BEIRFIE (%) BE ARETT  ERAE%) 25 ARETT
Current i)
Bank loans RITER
—secured - BHER HIBOR HIBOR +0.95
ERRT BARRT
GEZ) BES:)
+0.95 2015 959 +0.95 2014 945
Non-current E k]
Bank loans RITER
- secured -BHEA HIBOR HIBOR +0.95
FHBRIT BRI
FI%4R S RZFE
+0.95 2016-2020 4,202 +0.95 2015-2020 5,143
Other loans HiER
- secured - BHE# LIBOR +4.25~6
BB
RS+
- 4.25~6 2015-2018 517,538
4,202 502,681
5,161 523,626
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (Continued)

28. MRRITREMERK ()

Group Company
FEE AATF
2014 2013 2014 2013
—B-NFE —T--F ZB-NF -—T-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBTT ARBTRE AREBTET
Analysed into: DITR
Bank loans repayable: AR T3 BR AR
BEZIBITER

Within one year —FNRQ 800,098 769,628 959 945
In the second year FF 100,170 70,156 970 956

In the third to fifth years, FZFEERF
inclusive (BIEEEMT) 47,578 75,534 2,979 2,934
Beyond five years FFMUE 166,854 18,053 253 1,253
1,114,700 933,371 5,161 6,088

Other loans repayable: RTIRBAEEZ
HME :
Within one year —F R 187,423 100,000 - -
In the second year E_F 61,761 234,515 - 234,515
In the third to fifth years, F-FEFERF

inclusive (BIEERMT) 4,451 283,023 S 283,023
Beyond five years AFUE 10,865 = - =
264,500 617,538 - 517,538
1,379,200 1,550,909 5,161 523,626

Except for those bank loans with interest rates linked with the
HIBOR and LIBOR which are denominated in HK$ and US$, and a
bank loan with annual interest rate of 2.27% which is denominated
in EUR, amounting to RMB26,066,000, RMB144,267,000 and
RMB2,767,000, respectively, all bank and other loans are denominated
in RMB.

PR R BB IRIT R AT B R BUR
TRERSBHONBITERUARSE
FER227%—ERITER(SED
A A A R 260660007« A R
144,267,000 7T & A R ¥ 2,767,000 7T )
ARIABTT « FEITKEUITEHESN - BB
BT REMEFTUAREE -
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (Continued)

Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are secured by:

(a)  mortgages over the Group’s land and buildings, which had an
aggregate carrying amount at the end of the reporting period
of approximately RMB315,170,000 (2013: RMB318,655,000)
(note 14(a));

(b)  mortgages over the Group’s prepaid land lease payments, which
had a carrying amount at the end of the reporting period of
approximately RMB91,555,000 (2013: RMB93,542,000) (note
15); and

(c) the pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposits amounted to
RMB20,000,000 (2013: RMB27,035,000) (note 24).

In addition, the Company’s directors have guaranteed certain of the
Group’s bank and other loans for nil consideration, details of which are
as follows (note 40):

(d)  the Company’s director, Mr. Liu Hongwei, has guaranteed the
Group’s bank and other loans of RMB468,000,000 (2013:
RMB367,000,000);

(e) the Company’s directors, Messrs. Liu Hongwei and Sun Jinli,
have jointly guaranteed the Group’s bank and other loans of
RMB240,000,000 (2013: RMB335,000,000);

()  the Company’s directors, Messrs. Liu Hongwei and Xie
Wen, have jointly guaranteed the Group’s bank loans of
RMB72,500,000 (2013: RMB72,500,000);

28. MBRRITREMERK ()

REEETRITEEMERBATEIR
R

@ ATEBLWREFTHRE KB
BEPREAEGFTOARE

315,170,000t ( — T — = 4 :
A R #318,655,0007¢ ) ( Hf 37
14(a)) :

by AEBEBMNLHBAERBENIL
B RBEPREAEHARE
91,555,000 7L (—Z—=4%: AR
93,542,000 7T) (FizE 15) : &

() AEEEHNETEHTERESHE
A A B #20,000,0007m( = F
—=%: AR®27,0350007T)
(MisE24) »

o - AAREERAEBE TRITR
HEREERMAER - B0 (K
#40) -

d) ARRAESFROHEEERE
EERRTREMERARE
468,000,000 T(ZF—=4F: A
¥ 367,000,0007T) :

(e) ARRAREBFITHTERKFEEE
EEHARERASERTREAM
& % A K #240,000,0007T ( =
T — =% : AR ¥335000,000
oA

) ARARBFBOHLERFE
EHFABRRAEERITERAR
#72,500,000( = F — =
AER#72,500,0007T) :
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (Continued)

(g) the Company’s director, Mr. Sun Jinli, has guaranteed the
Group’s bank loans of RMB50,000,000 (2013: Nil);

(h) the Company’s director, Mr. Liu Hongwei and his spouse,
Ms. Li Wei, have jointly guaranteed the Group’s bank loans of
RMB50,000,000 (2013: Nil); and

28. MRIRITREMERK ()

() ARBEFTHRSELAEEREE
E$R17E A R % 50,000,000 7T

(ZT—=F: @)

(hy HRAREBFRAHELERARSB
FHRELLTHRAERRNEHRT
& A R #50,000,000( =2

—=F )R
()  the Company’s directors, Messrs. Liu Hongwei and Sun () ARAEFIAHLERESE
Jinli, have jointly guaranteed the Group’s bank loans of FEHARERAEFRRITER
HK$28,041,000 (2013: HK$29,243,000). 28,041,000 t( —ZFE — =
29,243,000#7T) °
29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 29. TiRRRIES
Group Company
XEE EAT
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-MUE —T—=F ZT-NFE T=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
M ARETRT ARBTT ARBTRT AREBTE
Convertible bonds, AR ES
liability component &Iy (a) 589,131 = 589,131 =
Fair value of embedded BANDTE
derivatives TEMRATE (b) 227,138 - 227,138 -
816,269 - 816,269 -
On 8 August 2014, the Company issued 9,300,000 5% convertible RZZE—MFENANE » RARETH

bonds due 8 August 2019 (the “2019 Convertible Bonds”) with a
nominal value of RMB930,000,000. There was no movement in the
number of these convertible bonds during the year.

“E-AFNANRISEERARE
930,000,000 7T #99,300,000 {3 5% ] #
BiEs ([ ZF—NEBRESR]) - &
A EARRES A RS
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The salient terms and conditions of the 2019 Convertible Bonds are as

follows:

(i)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate

The Company shall pay an interest on the 2019 Convertible
Bonds at 5.0% per annum.

Conversion price

The 2019 Convertible Bonds will be convertible into the
Company’s ordinary shares at the initial conversion price
of HK$16.11 per share, subject to adjustments. Amongst
others, consolidation, subdivision or reclassification of shares,
capitalisation of profits or reserves, capital distribution, rights
issues of shares or options over shares, rights issues of other
securities, issues at less than the current market price, other
issues at less than the current market price, modification of
rights of conversion etc., other offers to shareholders, change of
control and other usual adjustment events. The conversion price
may not be reduced so that the conversion shares would fall to
be issued at a discount to their par value.

Maturity

Unless previously redeemed, converted, or purchased and
cancelled, the Company will redeem each of the 2019
Convertible Bonds at the US Dollar equivalent of the RMB
principal amount on 8 August 2019.

29. iR fES (8)

ZE-NFAHRRRE S B
T

(i)

(ii)

(i)

Flz=

RARVBIEGF5.0% MR =
E-NFRIBMBESFAFE

BiaE

—E-NFUBREREFEAIZ
MEREFRK16.11E T (A T
B)EBRRARAREBR - Bk
BAR(EHEE)BKhAs
MREHDE  BNHREHEER
£~ BRDIK - AR 8l
RERAE - BITHEMES  RE
RERMMEHET  ERERHE

MEAETT - (EFTERE - Ak
RETHMBE  EHEEHL

HtERREEMRHETHE
HRETFHREE<ERRN
S E{E TR (EREAT o

B HARF

BRIFERZAERD - BB E
Rt BRIAQARBR=-F
—NENANBRBAREERS
BNEEXTEREHN TN
FRRES -
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(iv) Redemption at the option of the Company

The Company may:

(1)

Upon giving not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’
notice to the bondholders, at any time after 8 August
2017 but not less than 14 days prior to the maturity date
redeem the bonds in whole but not in part at a redemption
price at the US Dollar equivalent of the RMB principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest to such date;
provided that no such redemption may be made unless
the closing price of the shares (translated into RMB
at the RMB:HK$ fixed rate as set out in the terms and
conditions of the 2019 convertible bonds) for 20 out of
30 consecutive trading days ending on a date which is no
more than three stock exchange business immediately
prior to the date upon which notice of such redemption is
given, was at least 130%. of the conversion price then in
effect (translated into RMB at the RMB:HK$ fixed rate as
set out in the terms and conditions of the 2019 convertible
bonds); or

Upon giving not less than 30 nor more than 90 days’
notice to the bondholders and the Trustee (which notice
will be irrevocable), the Company may at any time redeem
all, but not some only, of the bonds for the time being
outstanding at the US Dollar equivalent of the RMB
principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest to
such date provided that prior to the date of such notice
at least 90%. in RMB principal amount of the bonds
originally issued have already been converted, redeemed
or purchased and cancelled.

29. TiRAfES (F)
(iv) FAEEEZERED

R-ZE—tFNANRKE
TEREH H AT 14 B AE(A
BH - RESHEAZLT
LIR30 RETEBBE60 HE
BA D MARKEASENE
BEXTINEBEZBEETAR
NHMEMERE - EE 2
BIREOES  ERIFEE
BELBOBEMNE BT =
BMIEEA 2 BIbEE
301822 5 A 7 20 B9 i fn
K E(RZT—AFk
BREFERRAFEFAEAR
BABTHEEERBRES
ARB) 2L RERERS
BERZZF-NFTHER
1B 16N R A P Bl E A
RERBTMEXRAESA
R#)#130% © BAITE
HEITHEE 3k

MEFFEARZFEAZD
DH30 HIE BB 90 H
BAH(GZBAOTEHE)
% ARARIAEARBAS
BEHEEETMEEEZZB
FEETRATEOFIS - BERTAE S
2EH(EFEERD) ERHR
BIEES - WRNZRA A
RIRBITEFNAREERS
BEALIOREE BRI
Bk E Rty o

ZF A

=

id
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Redemption at the option of the holders

The Company will, at the option of the holder of any 2019
Convertible Bonds, redeem all or some only of such holder’s
2019 Convertible Bonds on 8 August 2017 at the US Dollar
equivalent of the RMB principal amount.

Redemption of delisting or change of control

Following the occurrence of a change of control (means
when Mr. Liu Hongwei cease for any reason to be the majority
shareholder of the Company or any other events lead to the
significant change of the ownership structure of that the
Company, “Change of Control”) or delisting of the Company
(including suspension of trading of the Shares on the stock
exchange for a period equal to or more than 20 consecutive
trading days) (the “Relevant Event”), the holder will have the
right to require the Company to redeem all, or but not some
only, of such holder’'s 2019 Convertible Bonds at the US Dollar
equivalent of the RMB principal amount plus accrued and
unpaid interest to the date fixed for redemption.

The fair value of the 2019 Convertible Bonds was determined by an

independent qualified valuer based on the binomial option pricing

model. The carrying amount of the liability component on initial

recognition was measured at the proceeds of the 2019 Convertible

Bonds (net of transaction cost) minus the fair value of the embedded
derivatives of the 2019 Convertible Bonds.

(v)

(vi)

—_ZF—

29. iR fES (8)

FAEANREED

ERBHRER B — N F AR
BESHBEANERE R-F
—tENANBRAREEEHE
MEEXTERZEEANZE
HER D — T NFRHRRES

B R i I B AR

ARBEELEGIEES (BT
HAELERTARANB /A AR
TERRLERARRRFEAER
BHERBREBHEMEMEMT)
(MR ) girig (BERND
REFRGHEREREESNHK
BBEE20EZZE) ([HEEF
H%® BEASEREREAR
ARAREASENEZERTN
tEEETEDR RN ER AR
S BEEZEAANZE (B
) —E-NFABEES -

NEA|BREFN R FHETI B

\*é\ﬁT%ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ:lﬁfﬁﬁﬁém{%@
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

29. iR fES (8)

(a) Liability component (a) BfEHRS
Group Company
FE£E AAT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —ZT—=F CZT-OF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTET AR%®Tr ARETR ARETR
Nominal value of AR ESEE
the Convertible Bonds 930,000 - 930,000 -
Fair value of conversion rights BRERN_Z-MF
as at 8 August 2014 NANBRRFE (342,857) - (342,857) -
Direct transaction costs HEERGEAE
attributable to the liability REREH
component (17,301) - (17,301) -
Liability component RZT—M4F
as at 8 August 2014 NANBREREHS 569,842 = 569,842 =
Effective interest recognised FANERNERFE
for the year (note 6) (FfzEe6) 37,762 - 37,762 -
Interest payable during the year ~ FRER TS (18,473) - (18,473) -
As at 31 December 2014 RZT—MF
+=A=+—H 589,131 = 589,131 =
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 29. TiRBR &S (B)
(b) Conversion rights (b) HEIRME
Group Company
*EE AAT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T=F —F-mE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETE AR®TT AREFTRT ARETR
Fair value of conversion rights EL Bt 3 SIS
at 8 August 2014 NANBRATE 342,857 = 342,857 =
Less: Fair value changes of W R
conversion rights NTEES) 115,719 - 115,719 =
Fair value of conversion BREN_T—F
rights at 31 December 2014 +=ZA=+—H
MATE 227,138 = 227,138 =
The fair value change in the conversion rights for the year BE-_ZT-NEF+-_A=+—HL
ended 31 December 2014 is RMB115,719,000 (2013: Nil), FEELBBONTEEZHAARYE
which is recognised in profit or loss and disclosed separately. 115,719,000 (=T —=F : &) ' &
The related interest expense of the liability component of the CHERNEETRALBYURE - —F
2019 Convertible Bonds for the year ended 31 December 2014 —NEFTHRREFAELINBE-Z
amounted to RMB37,762,000 (2013: Nil), which is calculated —OF+-A=t—HLFENHER
using the effective interest method with an effective interest rate FEMZ A ARY37,762,000T(=F
of 17.53%. —=F:E) ZeBNHERAERAE
EAEBRFE17.53% 8 -
30. BEER

30. SENIOR NOTES

On 21 November 2014, the Company issued 7.875% senior notes with
an aggregate nominal value of RMB560,000,000 (the “2017 Senior
Notes”) at face value. The net proceeds, after deducting the issuance
costs, was amounted to RMB542,327,148. The 2017 Senior Notes will
mature on 21 November 2017 and have been listed on the HKSE (stock

code: 85704).

R S 2SR o) T 2N
1R B % 1T AE E A R 560,000,000
T 7.875% BAEEZR(IZZE—LFE
LR o MIBRBAEITRAE - 15
RIEF R A AR 542.327,14870 ° —
T+t FEAEBER T —tF+—
A=+—HEH BREBHIMLET
(FEHM5% - 85704) »
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30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

The major terms and conditions of the 2017 Senior Notes are as
follows:

(@) Redemption at the option of the Company

Upon giving not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice
to the holders, at any time, the Company may at its option
to redeem the notes at a redemption price equal to 100% of
the principal amount plus the applicable premium as of, and
accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including)
the redemption date. The applicable premiums is the greater
of (1) 1.0% of the principal amount and (2) the excess of
(A) the present value at such redemption date of 100% of
the principal amount, plus all required remaining scheduled
interest payments due on the 2017 Senior Notes through the
maturity date (but excluding accrued and unpaid interest to the
redemption date), computed using a discount rate equal to 2%,
over (B) the principal amount on the redemption date.

Upon giving not less than 30 days’ nor more than 60 days’ notice
to the holder, at any time, the Company may at its option redeem
up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2017
Senior Notes with the net cash proceeds of one or more sales of
common stock of the Company in one or more equity offerings
at a redemption price of 107.875% of the principal amount of
the 2017 Senior Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if
any, to (but not including) the redemption date; provided that at
least 65% of the aggregate principal amount of the Senior Notes
remains outstanding after each such redemption and any such
redemption takes place within 60 days after the closing of the
related equity offering.

30. BEFE®E ()

—E L FERERBNE RGN

LA

(a)

A AEREED

ARRARAFEABELT DR
30H RN EE0 H #Y i &1% -
BERTEZIRE R A2 F100%
TEEBOAREREZEREBE
ZB (BT BEZA) BEHARN T
EMBEONERORE - EREE
RUATRERHREE - (DA2
BH1.0%: &(2)(A)100% A &
BRZEL A HIMEBRE =
Tt FEEZBERIYAFIZ
FFEIRENMMA RS (1B
TEERER B HREANAER)
(RER2% MR KR HE) i
(B) O AR ERHFRD

ARRAREFEABELTIR
30 AR AEER60 A REME - &
BEREENR_ZE—LFEEREED
A& FER107.875% N LB EE
BRH(ENEEZR) HER
RS () 2BEHE - JA—IR
ZRBEEED —RHZRH
EARRAEBENAGERERE
FEE BE T —tFELAER
REREHRS 35% : ERBR
BOREAZBASHRBATD
B 65% MAMEE - BEMIERAE
[0l WA ZR A HE B s A B 5 SE A 1R 60
H AT
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30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(b) Repurchase of the 2017 Senior Notes upon a Change

of Control

Not later than 30 days following a change of control, the

Company will make an offer to purchase all outstanding 2017

Senior Notes (a “Change of Control Offer”) at a purchase price

equal to 101% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued

and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the Change of

Control Offer payment date.

As the estimated fair value of the early redemption right is insignificant

at initial recognition, the embedded derivative is not separately

accounted for. The effective interest rate is approximately 9.33% per

annum after the adjustment for transaction costs.

30. BEFRR (&)

(b) iEHEEESFEE_F—t
FREAER

AREHRIEHIEZ SR 30 A AT
RORO(EHEESHRY])
RENARSFEI0LI% N B =
HIEEBHRON KB (TREZ

BB ARNAE (B WEE
B BEMAREE_T—LF
BEFRE -

R R 5 B O A VI HA e R B ) A (B
1$§+KT%‘ B ARTE L AW EERE

MR B AEL AR - B
7’F'J$,\\’U7/%$ 9.33% °

The 2017 Senior Notes recognised in the consolidated statement of RRE SRR RN T —F
financial position are calculated as follows: BAZBIRA TGS -
Group Company
&R AAT]
2014 2013 2014 2013
—¥-mFE —F-=-F Z¥-0OF -—T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFR AR%®Tr ARSTR ARETRT
Nominal value of —E—+FEB%

2017 Senior Notes SR EE 560,000 - 560,000 -
Issue costs TR (17,673) = (17,673) =
Fair value at date of issuance FTHHMNATE 542,327 = 542,327 =
Effective interest recognised FAERDERFE

for the year (note 6) (fizE6) 5,328 - 5,328 =
Interest payable during the year FAERFE (4,833) . (4,833) =
Carrying amount at RZZTE—HF

31 December 2014 e e = 2]

B EE 542,822 < 542,822 -
Fair value of the 2017 Senior Notes* =T —+FE5%
ZERMAFE" 547,400 4 547,400 x
% The fair values of the 2017 Senior Notes are determined based on the , ZEtHFRAEAEENAFELE

price quoted on the HKSE on 31 December 2014.

REBHMIFN —_ZT—NE+ -4
=t+—HHREET -
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31. DEFERRED TAX

31.

The movements of deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year

are as follows:

EEBIR

REMIEEERGERFANE SN
™

Group FEE
Deferred tax assets BEBIEEE
Discount in
Government retention
Tax loss grants receivables Others Total
Pl
BiEESE BAFEE)  ER&irm Hip st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARE®FR
At 1 January 2013 RZZE—=F—F—H - 18,290 - - 18,290
Deferred tax credited FRIEERT AL
to profit or loss EIERLIE (M52 10)
during the year (note 10) - 1,099 2,109 - 3,208
At 31 December 2013 and RZE—=%F
at 1 January 2014 +ZA=+—HBK
—F—NE—H—AH - 19,389 2,109 - 21,498
Deferred tax credited/ FREBZTA G0R)
(charged) to profit or loss BOIEAERE I (Pf5E 10)
during the year (note 10) 6,070 (707) 3,657 1,990 11,010
At 31 December 2014 NZZE—MF
+=-—A=+—H 6,070 18,682 5,766 1,990 32,508

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of RMB27,075,000
(2013: RMB15,454,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the company in which the losses
arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB38,942,000 (2013: 3,885,000) that will expire in one to five years
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the company in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these tax losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss making and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

AEEBERAEENBEBEAR
#27 075000 T(ZE—=4%F : AR¥K
15,454,000 7T ) A] AR PR ERHE SH A A
BEZABMRKRERBET - A&
ENAEPREAEEENREBEESEAR
#38942,000 L (ZB—=4% : AR
3,885,000 T) ATAREEEEESB A
IR AR RERTRF - BR—ERFE
FIE o MRBLA AT BB T RIRER
BEE  RAREUEBBINFEESSE
BWARIELS - MABAREERRT T
FIFTHE S BRI T REME K o
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31. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 31. iBEHIE

Group (Continued) AEE(E)
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEERE
Withholding
taxes
TEinH
RMB’000
AREF T
At 1 January 2013 R-_EBE—=F—H—H 58,497
Deferred tax charged to FREBZINRA
profit or loss during the year (note 10) IEERTE (M13E 10) 28,363
At 31 December 2013 and RZZE—=F+=ZA=+—8K
at 1 January 2014 —ET—NF—HF—H 86,360
Deferred tax charged to FREBTBRA
profit or loss during the year IR IE =
At 31 December 2014 R-E—NFE+=-_A=+—H 86,360
Under the CIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends BEFREEMSHE AZZTENEF

declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in
the consolidated statement of financial position in respect of temporary
differences attributable to the profits of the PRC subsidiaries during
the year, as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have
not been recognised totalled approximately RMB512,992,000 as at 31
December 2014 (31 December 2013: Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

—A—HE - BRBENER R AT
EAE RS BEMMTEIND - HRAE
B AT E T R - B R
EFEAETERBANT SR - R ET
FREEETEMBARSMNOERE
BUEGE MBI RNGHRIEERIE
R_ZT—NF+_A=+—0 BEE
MRAFENMEARBENEREZE
(CEFEBERAEERIEAR) A HNA
AR¥512,992,000 t(ZE—=F+=
A= e

ARTBEBRIRBE S TEHSE
AFEHYE -
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32. DEFERRED INCOME 32. BN
2014 2013
—ET—ME TE—ZHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREEFIT
Government grants BT B
At 1 January n—AH—H 555,044 230,075
Government grants related to assets ~ FREWEEIEZ
received during the year B8 39,914 378,138
Released to profit or loss (note 5): BE =B (KIEES) -
Over the expected useful lives of LRI EETEE
the related assets Al s A AF ER (24,459) (5,039)
Upon disposal of & B & R
the related assets (131,226) (48,130)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 439,273 555,044
Deferred income represented government grants received by the Group BEWEEASEBFTFAGHE KB
in respect of the construction of roof top solar power stations under the BT TERMETAEANGEEL - A
“Golden Sun Demonstration Project”, and other items of property, plant NEMYZE - BB &FRAEEE Ml E &
and equipment. BTN -
The deferred income is released to profit or loss at the annual BEEWRIEFHHEDEER - RS
instalment to match with the expected useful lives of the relevant AR EMNTERRFEAFH -

assets.
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33. ISSUED CAPITAL 33. B#TIRA
Shares 15
2014 2013
—E—MFE ZE—=F
UsS$’'000 US$'000
FET FErT
Authorised: VERE ¢
1,200,000,000 ordinary shares 1,200,000,000 %
of US$0.01 each FRAEEO0.01 ELA LB 12,000 12,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITREHT :
695,395,996 (2013: 691,824,966) 695,395,996 I (=T — =4 :
ordinary shares of US$0.01 each 691,824,966 % )
B EEOC.0l E AT B 6,954 6,918
Equivalent to RMB’000 e ARETT 46,466 46,247
During the year, the movements in issued capital were as follows: RAFE  BEITRAEHIAT ¢
Number of Issued
shares in issue capital
EETRHEE EETIRA
RMB’000
ARETTT
At 1 January 2013 R-—ZE—=%—H—H 632,861,997 42,606
Issue of shares BT 40,000,000 2,454
Share options exercised BITERERE 18,962,999 1,187
At 31 December 2013 and IR g H = el P
1 January 2014 k_FT—-lE—H—H 691,824,996 46,247
Share options exercised BITERERE (a) 3,571,000 219
At 31 December 2014 e S e e S ] 695,395,996 46,466
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33. ISSUED CAPITAL (Continued)

(a)  The subscription rights attaching to 2,821,000 share options
were exercised at the subscription price of HK$3.58 per share
and 750,000 share options were exercised at the subscription
price of HK$2.78 per share, respectively, resulting in the issue
of 3,571,000 shares for a total cash consideration, before
expenses, of HK$12,184,180 (equivalent to approximately
RMB9,634,000). An amount of RMB4,430,000 was transferred
from the share option reserve to share capital upon the exercise

of the share options.

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include directors and employees of the
Group. The Scheme was approved by the Company’s shareholders on
19 December 2008 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will

remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject

to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders, approval in

advance in a general meeting.

33.

34.

E5TiRAE (8)

(@) 2,821,00017 BEAHEFTHI S 2 R
EDIRREESTR358BTET
1 K 750,000 17 B A% 42 F7 B 75 2
RERCIERBEER278E T
BETE EHAERERECK
5T F 2 AT ) 12,184,180 7t ( 8
ERH AR 9,634,0007T) 21T
3,571,000 BE R 15 - RERRERESTfE
% ©FARME 4,430,000 T
WA R

FRRs#EST &

RABRIBEAEA B ([ZFHED =B
TRHEREENKDEEMEERNE
RS EERHSBMNER - ZFHEINE
ERSEERRESRAKEES - %
HERZBENFTZATHBEEERR
BIRCRALME - BRIEBGEEHIIER] - DR
At BIE B REREF R ©

B A FRBEZ SR BARITERK
BE=HE R/EEN (FFRETEER) A
RAEIPMEFE B2 BTN Z210% °
PMER+ (8 A B A AT R IR A R
BEABEKRSEERTHRSRMNEE
TIRRARBRERBRESHTRN 2
1% (R R RENE - TR EE
PR BRIV BR A& _EHUAE -

BYARAIEE  TRARATIER
R REEABEALTZBEE 5
AELESBILIFNTER ZHE It
SN PMER+ B A BIE AR T AR E
TERRIBUIIFNTES - IWEFHE
A8 A+ 2 EEARE - LBBAR
AIRMEM R E D #HITRM 20.1% 3 H
REREBEARRAREH B A ZBRE
& )38 5,000,000 7T + HERIREAR
G EEERBIRRZAE -
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

31. BElx#EsTEI (8)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
RMB1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after a
vesting period of 0.5 to 2 years and ends on a date which is a period of
10 years from the date of grant.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the HKSE closing price of
the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii)
the average HKSE closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during

KRBz 2HTHARABENR
HEA T N\BARIARBARES
HAREITRER - IROBREZ
THPHESETE  UTREFEMFZ
BEMRFAREARN AHER TF
ZBARBLE -

BREZITEERESET - A
RUATEREE : () ARBRORER
HELHBRREE B2 WTE ()
ARBBMREZRZD AP AERS
BEZBBIM 2 FHRHE : Kii)
Befn 2 EfE -

BRI T T RA AR SRR
RRE LRFHRER o

FRZTEI T RARITERZBRENT

the year:

2014 2013
—E—MNEFE —E—=F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number exercise price Number
g of options hnREFE of options
TEE BRERE IEE BRESE
HK$ '000 HK$ '000
per share per share
BiRET T BRETT T15
At 1 January PR == E 3.25 23,019 3.29 42,330
Forfeited during the year FRERE = — 3.58 (348)
Exercise during the year FRTTEE 3.41 (3,571) 3.34 (18,963)
At 31 December TN [ 3.21 19,448

223 23,019
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 34. RERR#ERHEI (8)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options R EARBRITEBEREITEER
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: TERT

Number of options

fElRERE
2014 2013 Exercise price Exercise period
—F-mE —z-=# 1T frEm
000 '000 HK$ per share
T T BB
2,830 3,523 3.58 23/01/10-22/07/19

—E-TF—AF=-+=H=E

ZE-NFEtAZ+=H

3,389 4,263 3.58 23/07/10-22/07/19
—E—EZF+A-+=HZE

—E-NFEtAZ+=H

5,379 6,633 3.58 23/07/11-22/07/19
—Z——Ft+A-+=BZF

—E-NFtAZ+=H

- 216 2.78 27/05/11-26/05/20
_‘EE**E}_LH —t+t+HZE

—EZEFERA-+XH

116 592 2.78 27/05/12-26/05/20
—?f—iﬁﬂ—+tai

—E-EFERA-+XH

534 592 2.78 27/05/13-26/05/20
_‘EE*_EE}_LH —t+t+HZE

—E-EFRA-+NH

1,440 1,440 2.68 11/10/12-10/10/21
——%t+A+—H=

—==—F+A+H

1,440 1,440 2.68 11/10/13-10/10/21
—=F+A+—HZE

—E=—F+A+H

1,440 1,440 2.68 11/10/14-10/10/21
—T-mFE+A+—RHE

—E=—F+A+H

1,440 1,440 2.68 11/10/15-10/10/21
—E—RFt+A+—RH=E

—E—F+A+H

1,440 1,440 2.68 11/10/16-10/10/21
—EF A T—A=E

= e DSl

19,448 23,019
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34.

35.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 19,448,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 19,448,000 additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share capital of US$194,480
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,508,134) and share premium of
approximately HK$90,506,072 (before issue expenses and after the
amount to be transferred from share option reserve to share premium
upon the exercise of the related share options).

As at the date of approval of the financial statements, the Company
had 18,634,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme, which
represented approximately 2.68% of the Company’s shares in issue as
at that date.

RESERVES
Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 72 to 73 of the financial statements.

(a)  Statutory reserves of the PRC subsidiaries

In accordance with the “Law of the PRC on Joint Ventures Using
Chinese and Foreign Investment” and the respective articles
of association of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China,
appropriations from net profit, as determined in accordance
with PRC generally accepted accounting principles (“PRC
GAAP”) and after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years,
should be made to the statutory reserve fund and the enterprise
expansion fund, and before profit distributions to the investors.
The reserve fund can be used to offset accumulated losses or to
increase capital.

34.

35.

Bt E (&)

RBESR KRR REZTESE
19,448,000 17 AR TIE AR AE 254
RITHEBRIE WD BUEITE - EAQA]
ZHBEAREET  SSEBEINET
19,448,000 & AN 713 1A% [ 2= HEFEHN
& 75 194,480 2% 7T (FHE 7 471,508,134
BIT) R AR D 5 B 49 90,506,072 70 (A
HBRZTH S AT R IR 8 B B AR
EETERRERERBERER DR
BHSERE)

WA BRI AER - RABRBEZET
2175 18,634,000 17 rRIATTEFEAHE - 48
BERARAINZ BB BITRNA2.68% -

fwhte
FEE

AREAEE RBEFR 2 BELER
EREBRAMBERE2EEET3
B2 GaMERnEN -

(@) HEIRE L A2 E R

REB(HEARANMBESINGERL
B FIR) R A B P BAREM
BRANARER - BIeREH
BARGTER([FEARER

2R ]) BEMEHN (RIEHEFR
SEERR - RAKREEDIKE
A B EERBEEE REEER
ES - ZEBESTRAIEHER
AHERIIENEA -
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35. RESERVES (Continued)

Group (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Enterprise expansion fund

The enterprise expansion fund can be used for business
development or to increase capital. The percentages to be
appropriated to the reserve fund and the enterprise expansion
fund in the foreign investment subsidiaries are determined by
the board of directors. In addition, the wholly-foreign-owned
subsidiaries are not required to appropriate the enterprise
expansion fund, and the percentages to be appropriated to the
reserve fund shall be no less than 10%. When the cumulative
reserve fund reaches one-half of the registered capital, the
appropriation is no longer mandatory.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments
in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or be transferred to retained earnings
should the related options expire or be forfeited.

Safety fund surplus reserve

Pursuant to a Notice regarding Safety Production Expenditure
jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Work Safety of the PRC in February 2012, the
Group is required to establish a safety fund surplus reserve. The
safety fund can only be transferred to retained earnings to offset
safety related expenses as and when they are incurred, including
expenses related to safety protection facilities and equipment
improvement and maintenance as well as safety production
inspection, appraisal, consultation and training.

35. it ()

F&RE(F)
(b) DREERED

(c)

(d)

CEERESTAREBERSL
BINER o SR BB D F B
NEREESREEBERESH
BAOLLABEEGETE © I S
BEECEBABENBENED
ERRETD MENEFRGBER
MBS EAETDRI0% - R
BESRAEZEIEMER—F
By AR -

B F S

BRERERFCRHBERKRTT
EHEREN N TE  E—2H
i BTSRRI L 2.4 B B ARD
REMROTOGFEE - %K
BN ERE R ETERERE
Bt s Bk - A AERE A E
MEBORY - RSB RE RN

LB HRER

BREFRET BRI RERE D EE
EEERBRN_E—=-F=H
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BRA ARBARVLEES
BERHEE  REESRARESE
RERZREBIAKEEZE2E
AHY - BIERRREERERE
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35. RESERVES (Continued)

35. fi#fE ()

Company EAT]
The amounts of the Company’s reserves and the movements therein RAFERBEFE  ARRRESRE
for the current and prior year are as follows: Mg EHmT
Share Exchange
Share option fluctuation
premium Contributed reserve reserve  Accumulated
account surplus iR ER losses Total
B iy ih B AR L 9N fitts WENE Rt act
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  AR®TL ARETr ARETT ARETT  ARETR
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=%—F—H 399,615 7,036 48 544 (24,755) (148,421) 282,019
Total comprehensive ~ AFE 2 HEEBESE
loss for the year - - - (12,678) (15,968) (28,646)
Issue of shares BATRRAD (P3E33)
(note 33) 246,051 - - - - 246,051
Exercise of share TR
options 49,870 - - - - 49,870
Transfer to share option T{HERIERELZE
reserve upon the BIRERE
exercise of share
options 22,488 - (22,488) - - -
Transfer to contributed &% ZHAZH
surplus (40,000) 40,000 - - - -
Final 2012 dividend EBER-Z——FKH
declared (note 12) BRE (Mt 12) = (36,847) - = 35,921 (926)
Proposed final 2013~ #tk—E—=FRH]
dividend (note 12) BB (ME12) - - - - (48,954) (48,954)
Equity-seftled share ~ MRANAEE FERRE
option arrangements  &HE (FI3E34)
(note 34) - - 2112 - - 2112
At31 December 2013 R=ZE—=%
S =t 678,024 10,189 28,168 (37,433) (177 422) 501,526
At 1 January 2014 R-_ZT—MF—F—H 678,024 10,189 28,168 (37,433) (177,422) 501,526
Total comprehensive ~ AFE2EEBESE
loss for the year - - - 2:13ls (19,924) (17,793)
Exercise of share TR
options 9,415 - - - - 9,415
Transfer to share option 1T{PEERIEREBE
reserve upon the BRERE
exercise of share
options 4,430 - (4,430) - - -
Transfer to contributed EHZH AR
surplus (50,000) 50,000 - - - -
Final 2013 dividend BER-ZE—=%
declared (note 1) REIRE (M 12) - (49,714) - - 48,954 (760)
Proposed final 2014~ ¥tk =Z—04F
dividend (note 12)  REIRE (K13t 12) - - - - (49,374) (49,374)
Equity-settled share ~ BRANGEH kgL b
option arrangements  (Ff#£34)
(note 34) - - 1,109 - - 1,109
At 31 December 2014 RZ=Z—F
= i) 641,869 10,475 24,847 (35,302) (197,766) 444,123
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36. AREE

(@) *5KE

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(@) Group

RZE—NFE+=—_A=+—H"
AEBITEEAKABRE -

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.
(b) Company (b) FAT

R-_E-—OFE+-_HA=+—H8"
W BRI IMRAE L BEORA

As at 31 December 2014, contingent liabilities not provided for
in the financial statements were as follows:

BENAT
2014 2013
—F—ME —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT
Guarantees given to banks RIBEFUATARNER
and entity in connection MERIT R B RS IEH AR -
with loans granted to:
Zhuhai Singyes /9IS 945,267 757,580
Singyes Renewable Energy FEEFNBEIR 68,000 25,000
Hunan Singyes NEIE e 19,000 =
Singyes Engineering FZETE 16,961 16,961
Macao Singyes SRPT I 6,712 =
1,055,940 799,541
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37.

38.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS - THE
GROUP AS LESSEE

The Group leases certain of its office premises under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms of one or
two years. At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

37. EEHERH - *REEH

RN

AEBRBELHOLPFERETHA
EYE - ZEFWEROBERMA -
M - RIBEHR - ARERER TS
FHBMH T A B LRI RE SR

falling due as follows: EEMASEENT -
2014 2013
—E—MFE T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARET T
Within one year —F R 1,235 876
In the second to fifth years, inclusive $E_ZFRF (BIEHEMT) 461 557
1,696 1,433

COMMITMENTS 38. HKiE

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 37 BR _E SR 5E 37 sl 2 4 & TR A AIESD -

above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
the reporting period:

RBER - REBEA THIEAHRIE

2014 2013
—E—MFE TE—ZF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Contracted, but not provided for: BETAMBAR B -

Construction of buildings and BREFR
photovoltaic power station FAREB UL 847,466 2,623
Purchase of machinery 08 B R 1 5,033 1,608
852,499 4231
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

(a)

Related party transactions

As at 31 December 2014, details of bank and other loans
guarantees provided by related parties of the Group for nil

consideration are as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

the Group’s bank and other loans of RMB468,000,000
(2013: RMB367,000,000) were guaranteed by Mr. Liu
Hongwei;

the Group’s bank and other loans of RMB240,000,000
(2013: RMB335,000,000) were jointly guaranteed by
Messrs. Liu Hongwei and Sun Jinli;

the Group’s bank loans of RMB72,500,000 (2013:
RMB72,500,000) were jointly guaranteed by Messrs. Liu
Hongwei and Xie Wen;

the Group’s bank loans of RMB50,000,000 (2013: Nil)
were guaranteed by Mr. Sun Jinli;

the Group’s bank loans of RMB50,000,000 (2013: Nil)
were jointly guaranteed by Mr. Liu Hongwei and his
spouse, Ms. Li Wei; and

the Group’s bank loans of HK$28,041,000 (2013:
HK$29,243,000) were jointly guaranteed by Messrs. Liu
Hongwei and Sun Jinli.

39. FAEAX B REER

(a)

FAER RS

W=

T-mE+=A=+—8 -

AEBERETERERTZIRITR
HAERERET

(M

(ii)

(iii)

AEBZROREME
;A R #468,000,000
T(ZE—ZF: AR
367,000,000t ) £ 24T 4
SRR

REBZROTREME
3 A R % 240,000,0007C
ZE—Z=ZF: AR%
335,000,000 7T.) BH ZIAT # %
ERERETERRER

REBZRITERARE
72,500,000t ( = & — =
F: AR¥72,500,0007T)
B RIATHE S A RIS e R
LR

AEBEBZETERARE
50,000,000C(=F—=F :
)RR SRR

AEBZETEFRARE
50,000,0007L(=F—=% :
TR ERAER
FHEZTHARAER R

AREBZRITER
28,041,000 L(=ZF—=
£ 129,243,000 7T ) B ZI
A RIE SR LR
IR o
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. FEARR SR (E)
BALANCES (Continued)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the (b) FEEFEEEBASHEFN
Group
2014 2013
—ET—QE —F—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREF T
Salaries, allowances and e ERLREYAE
benefits in kind 7,685 5,006
Pension scheme contributions  :RIREFTEI 3K 136 112
7,821 5,118
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments BRESRITRAHME M —
are included in note 8 to the financial statements. FRBEH NI ISIRARKIFES ©
40. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 40. £RIEEEZR
Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in AEEXUIEIVNEEREME
their entirety =
2014 2013
—E—MFE TE—ZF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARETT AREET T
Carrying amount of assets that BERANEEREA
continued to be recognised:
Discounted Bills BRIR =4 (a) 186,300 =
Endorsed Bills BEEZR (b) 34,849 -

221,149 5
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40. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in
their entirety (Continued)

(a)  Discounted Bills

At 31 December 2014, the Group discounted certain bills
receivable (the “Discounted Bills”) with a total carrying amount
of RMB186,300,000 to certain local banks in the PRC. The
Discounted Bills have a maturity from two to eleven months at
31 December 2014. In accordance with the law of Negotiable
Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the Discounted Bills
have a right of resource against the Group if the PRC banks
default. In the opinion of the directors, the Group has retained
the substantial risks and rewards, which include default risks
relating to the Discounted Bills, and accordingly, it continued
to recognise the carrying amounts of the Discounted Bills
and the respective bank loans (the carrying amounts of the
Discounted Bills deduct the discount interest). Subsequent to
the discounting, the Group did not retain any rights on the use
of the Discounted Bills, including sale, transfer or pledge of
the Discounted Bills to any other third parties. The aggregate
carrying amount of the bank loans recognised due to the
Discounted Bills was RMB184,378,000 as at 31 December
2014.

40. ERIEEER (H)

AREXRIEINESREME
E(E)

@ HMEZEE

RZE—ME+A=+—
H A5EBREEHEARE
186,300,000 7T K & T FE Ut 3%
(THREEDUBEFTHEET
EHRIT - RZTE—WF+ZA
=+—H - WWREERATERR
AME+—@EA - BREFBERE
IR ERITIEL - BAIREE
REANBRERAAEEER -EF
RE - NEBRBKRESRR R
Bk (B IEMBERENRR) -
A I A 4B TSR AR IR R IR AR B AR
TERNEDE (RREENERET
EMRREGAFIE)  BiRE - A&
B I AR AR R R A
R BEREMEME =TS
& EEoE RN IR ER - HAL
BERMERNRITERIN =S
—FE+ZA=+—HAMNRKR
EA AR 184,378,000 7T °
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40. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in
their entirety (Continued)

(b)  Endorsed Bills

At 31 December 2014, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by certain local banks in the PRC
(the “Endorsed Bills”) with a total carrying amount of
RMB34,849,000 to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the
trade and other payables due to those suppliers. The Endorsed
Bills had a maturity of one to six months at 31 December 2014.
In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the
PRC, the holders of the Endorsed Bills have a right of recourse
against the Group if the PRC banks default. In the opinion of
the directors, the Group has retained the substantial risks and
rewards, which include default risks relating to the Endorsed
Bills, and accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying
amounts of the Endorsed Bills and the associated trade and
other payables settled. Subsequent to the endorsement, the
Group did not retain any rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills,
including sale, transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Bills to any
other third parties. The aggregate carrying amount of the trade
and other payables settled by the Endorsed Bills during the year
to which the suppliers have recourse was RMB34,849,000 as at
31 December 2014.

40. EREEER (F)

AEEXIHEIVNCEEREME
E(E)

b) EHEZEE

RZZ2—NE+ZA=+—H"
REBEBHEETEMRITES
K42 AR B A R % 34,849,000 7T
METREKZEBE(TEERZRRED
BEETETHER UEEEN
ZEHRERNE S REAMEAK
He AZE—WF+=ZA=+—
B BZ2ZENIEREA—=
NER o BREBEFEREE - R
BRITIERN BERBFBEEAAER
BRAALSEHER - EFERR
RAEEERB RIS AR KB
WEREERREANRR) B
IHEERREERRIIEEE &
HE S RHEMBERNFIENHZ MR
HE - 5FE5%  AEETERE
FERABEZENTMAERN 24
MEMEAME =T HE - EE
KFEEERE - FRNHRERE
BRENSEZRBREENEIR
Hih B RIER T —F+=
A=+—AmEERERARE
34,849,000 7T °
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40. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Continued)

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their
entirety

As at 31 December 2014, the Group discounted certain bills
receivable accepted by certain reputable banks in the PRC, with
a carrying amount in aggregate of RMB573,714,000 (referred
to as the “Derecognised Bills”, 2013: RMB672,340,000). The
Derecognised Bills had a maturity from one to six months at the end
of the reporting period. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable
Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have
a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default (the
“Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors, the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating to the
Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying
amount of the Derecognised Bills. The maximum exposure to loss from
the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the
undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Derecognised Bills is
equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair
values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills
are not significant.

During the year, the Group has recognised interest expense of
RMB36,508,000 (2013: RMB24,800,000) (note 6) on discounted bills
receivable. No gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing
Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively.

40. eMEEEZR(E)

EX2XIL#EINCERSME

it

RZE—WF+ZA=+—H0 &%
ERIEFEE FTARRITEIHNER
B4 A R ¥ 573,714,000 T fE W Z 4E
(TRUEREE | —T—=F: AR
¥ 672,340,000 7T) ° AREHIR - #R1E
ERZEMISEMA—ZXMEA - R
BREZERE P RERITEL - KRIE
ﬁMTWhﬁAﬁ%mﬁﬁgkﬁﬂﬁ
B2 EFERA AEECEE
BRIFEREREEOBRILSD m&@
e Flt  AEEBRIEERKIEER
ZENEHEAE - AEEHEL2ER
IHERER RBEZ SR I ERERR
*gﬁiﬁfﬁﬁlllbgﬁmumflﬂ%E giﬂ, e
REBRHEE - EE2RE - A5ERES
B FEREBRNAFELTERK °

FAN - AEEERERERERHFE

FIx AR#36,508,00070(— T — =4 :
AR #24,800,0007T) (MIzE6) o I £
EiFELHMRF Ak RETHERTAK
oA -
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

41. BEMEI ST A

EHEERIANKEHRNERER

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: T
Group AEE
2014 —E—mE
Financial assets TEEE
Available-
Loans and for-sale
receivables  financial assets Total
BRR o[t &
FEIFRIE SREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Available-for-sale investments AMHHERE = 12,258 12,258
Trade receivables fEUWE 55878 2,192,235 S 2,192,235
Financial assets included in FTATERFOE -
prepayment, deposits and Al @ R H eI
other receivables FENEEE 121,957 = 121,957
Pledged deposits EHREHR 500,327 - 500,327
Cash and cash equivalents Be RIREZEEY 901,417 s 901,417
3,715,936 12,258 3,728,194
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41. HERHEISHSMT A (E)
(Continued)
Group (Continued) AEE (&)
2014 —E—mE
Financial liabilities THEE

Financial liabilities

at fair value Financial

through profit or liabilities at

loss upon initial amortised
recognition cost Total

AR

BRAFE TR

T ZHY R AT RREY
LRIEE SRERE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRT AREFT AREFT

Trade and bills payables ENESFENENFE - 1,284,332 1,284,332
Financial liabilities included T AE b ER FRIB R

in other payables and EETFIER 2R A G

accruals (note 26) (FfizE26) S 221,530 221,530
Derivative financial instruments TR TE 3,042 = 3,042
Convertible bonds (note 29) AR fE S (MR 29) 227,138 589,131 816,269
Senior notes (note 30) BEER (FFE30) - 542,822 542,822
Interest-bearing bank and M ERITREMER

other loans - 1,379,200 1,379,200

230,180 4,017,015 4,247,195
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41. HEEIPHNEMTI R (&)
(Continued)
Group (Continued) XEE (&)
2013 —E—=4F
Financial assets THEE
Available-
Loans and for-sale
receivables financial assets Total
BER Kk At E
FEW IR TREE BEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMET T AREET T ARMETTT

Available-for-sale investments AP ERE = 29,418 29,418
Trade receivables EIE 5508 1,801,263 = 1,801,263
Financial assets included in FFAFERFE -
prepayment, deposits and e REME
other receivables FENEGMEE 102,510 = 102,510
Pledged deposits HEIRTFI 346,522 = 346,522
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRESEEY 894,732 = 894,732
3,145,027 29,418 3,174,445
Financial liabilities THEE

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

1RESHRAR DR

ks =K

RMB’000

ARETT

Trade and bills payables B E S R EN T 1,292,961
Financial liabilities included in other payables sEAE A B FRIE &

and accruals (note 26) JEEF AN A E (B 26) 102,017

Interest-bearing bank and other loans M B ERIT R EMETR 1,550,909

2,945,887




190

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2014 —Z—MF+=A=+—H

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41. RER SIS TR (58)
(Continued)
Company AAT

RZE—NER_FT—=F+=A8
=+—H  XRFRFAEEREEHEBR
Bk eI R -

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, all financial assets of the
Company are under the loans and receivables category.

RZB—NER-_E—=F+_7
=—t+—B  ARFEfMEEREEHER
REHEN AT RN S BB EER -

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, all financial liabilities of the
Company are under the financial liabilities at amortised costs category.

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 42. € TANAFERAFEE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS =34

AEESRTA(ARIHEREEE -
FEHEEATFESEREERIN O

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably

approximate to fair values due to short term to maturity, are as follows: HERAFEOT :
Carrying amounts Fair values
BRE(E ATE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—T-mE —T—=F ZT-NOE =—T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETRT ARBTR AREBTEX
Financial liabilities SRIBE
Derivative financial instruments PTHESBTA 3,042 = 3,042 =
Convertible bonds AR ES 816,269 = 933,986 =
Senior notes BEER 542,822 = 550,323 =
Interest-bearing bank and other loans, Hf8R1TMEMER -
non-current portion: IERBES
Bank loans RITEK 314,602 163,743 316,084 162,341
Other loans HiER 77,077 517,538 76,681 517,538
1,753,812 681,281 1,880,116 679,879
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables, trade and
bills payables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, and financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The Group has entered into derivative financial instruments, such as
interest rate swaps, with the bank. The fair value of the interest rate
swaps was estimated by the independent professional valuer using
the discounted cash flow method and the estimation included some
assumptions not supported by observable market rates such as credit
risk, discount rate and expected future cash flows. The carrying
amounts of interest rate swaps are the same as their fair values.

The fair value of the 2019 Convertible Bonds was valued by estimating
the value of the whole bond with and without the embedded derivatives
using the binomial option pricing model. The model incorporates inputs
including market price, discount rates and share price volatility. Value
used for significant unobservable input: volatility at 52.85%. If the
volatility rate had been 3% higher/lower than management’s estimates
at 31 December 2014, the fair value of conversion rights would have
increased/decreased by RMB19,967,000 and RMB17,402,000
respectively.

The fair values of the 2017 Senior Notes are based on quoted market

prices.

42. ERMTAMAFERAFE

H4R(E)

REEENE R MReFEY - K
RER BRUREZFAREBRER -
N E ZFIAR BN R - 5T ATAR K
B Al MEMERGRIEN S RE E A
K Et AR A R FOR K AT IR £/l
BREHREERS  TEEHRNER
TANRHRREIE -

TMEENBENAFERERESZ
ME AR Z (&b B ERIN) P %
TARZBEERTIER

THARBRAR G ATE

AEBCEFTAIVITESRTA - 10
Mg - MEm N A FERBLE
EEEMERMRRSITVEMGR - A
BEYEABRTSERIE RGN
BABR(MEERR - BRXREH
ARBERE) R FETEEN -
R m R AREE R E N FEMER -

ZE-NFARRESH LT EEBE
AR A ERE AR B ESRM
BERAMERARSTETARNEER
BT o ARG ATE  BRRERRR
BIKIESE AL - RERT AT
BABBFEROEE: KIE52.85% °
MR —_F—NMFEF+-_A=+—HHHK
HERREEE M m /K3% - AER
BHANFEGD BN/ R ARE
19,967,000 7T & AR ¥ 17,402,000 7T °

—E L ERERBNATEERTS
HE -
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair values of the non-current portion of the Group’s interest-
bearing bank and other loans have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities,
adjusted by the Group’s own non-performance risk where appropriate.
Value used for significant unobservable input: discount rate from 5.4%
t0 9.07% based on individual loan.

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of
the Group’s financial instruments:

Fair value hierarchy
Liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2014

42. £ TRAMNAFERAFHE
E4R(E)

REEMERITREMEROAFEAET
FRFERTH  EERK RGBT EH
BRI SR T AR Al S F R
(MAEEEFENRRIEL AR (E
FA))REIRBHAR RN REMTH - 5t
BATABREABBREANEE : &
REAERBEIRE5.4% £9.07% °

TRHAREEMLBTANATE B

EM
AFEEFR
B FEFENRIE -

R-¥—mE+=-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

EANTREGEAFE

Quoted prices

Significant Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EXTHE EXTUHE
ENER AR
(E=E) (B=E) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETRT AREBTR

in active

markets

(Level 1)

EIE

TiGR{E

(%5—E)

RMB’000

ARETR

Derivative financial instruments PTHEEMIA -
Convertible bonds: AR ES

Conversion rights (note 29) st (MI5E29) -

3,042 - 3,042

227,138 227,138

3,042 227,138 230,180

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value
as at 31 December 2013.

In 2014, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between
Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both
financial assets and financial liabilities.

R-ZT—=F+-"A=+—H  K£EE
WA IR AT EENSBHAE -

R-ZF-—NF SREERTEAEN
F-ERF_ERAYENFEFES
% MEEEARBHE=E -
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

42. £ TAMNAFERAFHE

FH(E)
AFEEH (R

WELFEMEE

Fair value measurement using

ERAUTEEBATE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EE EXUHE EXTUHZE
TIBERE LN 6 EABU®
(E5—1E) (B=B) (B=RE) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARBTRT ARBTT ARBTET
As at 31 December 2014 R-E—MNE
+=-A=+—H
Convertible bonds AR RS
— Liability component (note 29) - BE# (MizE29) = = 706,848 706,848
Senior notes (note 30) BEERE (PI7E30) 550,323 - - 550,323
Interest-bearing bank and M B ERIT R
other loans, non-current portion HEMER
SEmMEE D - - 392,765 392,765
550,323 - 1,099,613 1,649,936
As at 31 December 2013 NR-E—=%
+=-A=+—H
Interest-bearing bank and BT B ERTT R
other loans — non-current portion HMER
- FERBE S = - 679,879 679,879
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

43. M3 E P EE H B BB R

FEENTZEMTABREMERITR
HMER - AlaiES BERBUAK
REPRASEEY - ZFEBITANE
ERZRR/AKENKZERES - K
SEERRRHEMEREEREE - f
mEERRETEEELNERE S KA
REWEE - ANFOR - il REME
WoR - BRNBSFARENRE - H
b FE S ERIE K JE AT FIR A K B R RIB IR
TTER »

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank and other loans, convertible bonds, senior notes and cash and
cash equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, trade and bills payables,
other payables and accruals, and bank advances for discounted bills,
which arise directly from its operations.

AEBSRTAMELZ T ERARAH
TR SNERR - FERRMREBE

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each SRR EEEZLEREESER
of these risks and they are summarised below. SEBCR - BRABCRBEMT -

Interest rate risk

The interest rates and terms of repayment of interest-bearing bank
and other loans are disclosed in note 28. The Group does not have
any significant exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
as the Group does not have any significant long term receivables and

loans which are subject to floating interest rate.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s principle businesses are located in the PRC and most of
the transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of the Group’s assets
and liabilities are denominated in RMB, except for that of the overseas
subsidiaries which functional currencies are currencies other than
the RMB and certain items of cash and cash equivalents that are

denominated in HK$, US$ and other currencies.

The Group does not consider that it has any significant exposure to the
risk of fluctuation in the exchange rate between HK$, US$ and RMB
as a reasonable possible change of 5% in RMB against US$ would

have no significant financial impact to the Group’s profit.

FI=ERR

B SERTT R EME R X REERR
TR EE 28 4 FR - RN AN B S f)i%
FEMEFBNEARAERKRERE
R R SR B 4 O T 35 ) R B i
XENER

IMES LR

AEBIREBUNPE  KBHRH
AARKETT - XEBARFDEERA
BEAAREEHE - EREINTE R RRT)
BREBYIFARBRETRERAESE
EBYAET - R REMERE -

BN AR ETHERHTHA DS
B5% T8 WA E B RIS R EAH B
Y8 HARERAETEERT %
T T A M 2 e 5 5 B 7 T
R -
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits,
trade and other receivables, and other financial assets represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. Substantially all of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are
held in major financial institutions located in Mainland China, which
management believes are of high credit quality.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties.
It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 12.8% and 42.9% (2013: 22.6% and
41.4%) of the Group’s trade and bills receivables were due from the
Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers, respectively.
All of these customers have good credit quality by taking into
account of their credit history, and a long-term business relationship
has been established by both parties. The Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits and monitoring
procedures to ensure that there will be follow-up action to recover
overdue debts

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and
projected cash flows from operations.

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the settlement from customers and the payment to vendors.

43. ﬂﬂ‘%ﬂll"'“ﬂ B8 RBIR
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. B EPEETE BB R B

AND POLICIES (Continued) &)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELEME (E)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of REEBR - ZRERTLERERAH
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, P AREzeREERBHEROT
is as follows:
Group XEE
3 toless
than 12
Less than months 1to5 Beyond
On demand 3 months =EDR years 5 years Total
REKE  PR=EA +=f@R —-ERE EENE &t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETT  ARBTT ARBTRT ARRTR  ARETE

As at 31 December RZF—ME

2014 +=A=+-B
Convertible bonds * AR (S * 18,473 4,968 41,532 1,097,655 - 1,162,628
Senior notes BERE 4,833 = 44,100 643,367 = 692,300
Interest-bearing bank ~ FTE83RTT R EME R

and other loans 23,673 290,174 729,572 281,273 269,075 1,593,767
Derivative financial ~ #TESBITE

instruments 3,042 - - - - 3,042
Trade and bills ENESHER

payables ANES 257,992 499,740 526,600 - - 1,284,332
Other payables HipENFIER

and accruals JESTFIE 221,530 = = = S 221,530

529,543 794,882 1,341,804 2,022,295 269,075 4,957,599

Asat 31 December HMZF—=%F

2013 +=BA=+-H
Interest-bearing bank ~ Mii BER1T REMER

and other loans 16,904 123,873 795,187 761,012 20,662 1,717,638
Trade and bills ENESFTIEAR

payables ERRE 285,728 510,910 496,323 - - 1,292,961
Other payables HibEIFER

and accruals JEETFUR 102,017 & = 5 = 102,017

404,649 634,783 1,291,510 761,012 20,662 3,112,616
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. B EEERE BN REBUER

AND POLICIES (Continued) &)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REELEM (E)
Company EAT]
3 toless
than 12
Less than months 1to5 Beyond
On demand 3 months =EDR years 5 years Total
REKE  PR=EA +={@R —EhE AENE it
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETr ARETr ARETr ARETT ARETR
As at 31 December RZF—MF
2014 +=A=+-H
Convertible bonds *  AI#RfES * 18,473 4,968 41,532 1,097,655 - 1,162,628
Senior notes BEEE 4,833 - 44,100 643,367 - 692,300
Interest-bearing bank  Mif B8R1T R E A ER
and other loans - 253 760 4,055 253 5,321
Other payables HitENIER
and accruals JEEH 3R 37,112 = = = = 37,112
Guarantees givento  FIERITRERIENE
banks and BBRETHE
entities in NRIERAER
connection with
loans granted to
subsidiaries 1,055,940 - - - - 1,055,940
1,116,358 5,221 86,392 1,745,077 253 2,953,301
As at 31 December HRZF—=F
2013 +=HA=+-H
Interest-bearing bank ~ FTESRITE R
and other loans - 253 28,668 605,074 1,263 635,258
Other payables HA R FER
and accruals JEst IR 16,129 = = = = 16,129
Guarantees givento  [MIRTTIEHAY
banks in BRETHE
connection with AEETHER
loans granted to
subsidiaries 799,541 - - - - 799,541
815,670 253 28,668 605,074 1,263 1,450,928
i Conversion rights of the convertible bonds are not included in the table 2 AIAMRE S SR et A B

above as they will be settled through issuance of own shares.

REREGERRITEIRMMAS -
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. A EEEE B KRB

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management

The Group’s objectives of its capital management are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for the shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and to provide an adequate return to shareholders by
pricing services and products commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group
manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debts.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total equity plus net debt. Net debt comprises trade and
bills payables, bank advances for discounted bills, interest-bearing
bank and other loans, other payables and accruals, senior notes and
tax payable, less cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits.
Capital includes convertible bonds and equity attributable to owners of
the Company.

The Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a healthy capital
level in order to support its businesses. The principal strategies adopted
by the Group include, but are not limited to, reviewing future cash
flow requirements and the ability to meet debt repayment schedules
when they fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available banking
facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing plans, if
necessary, to ensure that the Group has a reasonable level of capital to
support its business. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

&)
BEXER

AEBENEAEE BRERREAKER
BISERRE ) - ABH AT RARER
HE R S E AL M SRR E R AR -
I BB SRR KR E M RS R E G A
FEBRBIREH SR -

AEBZEERLLOIFIEALHE - NE
BEEEENEELRFEER N E
MEEEENRBREHINARE - BT
MR ABEANGRE  AEETHED
MR E SR  MBRREREEN
BTSN E B EARIE

REBNEREREZEER  ZLEXA
TFHEBG AR INREET FEBE
RENESRARENRRE  MRRE
RITER - MERITREMER - Hit
RN FIAR R IA - BAERBREN
BE - BERE MRS EEBYRERE
R BARBEARRESRARREE
ARE(L R o

AEBERRIEERFERL ZERED
BAKYE - ASTRFE R - AREIRR
BT ERBERIFETRNEMAKRES
MEBERMI B BEBREES - REF
ARARITREER KT RARRE
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BAEREKFHEAXIFEER - N
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

43. M3 E P EE B BB

AND POLICIES (Continued) &)
Capital management (Continued) BEXEE(E)
Group AEE
2014 2013
—E—MFE ZE—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETTT
Trade and bills payables FERTE 5 F0E KRN IR 1,284,332 1,292,961
Bank advances for discounted bills ~ BRIREZIEIRITER 184,378 =
Interest-bearing bank and other loans Ff 2 8R1T M E A EFK 1,379,200 1,550,909
Other payables and accruals Eoh FE S FE M R FOE 314,354 182,571
Senior notes BREE 542,822 =
Tax payable FETERIR 17,628 33,276
Less: Cash and cash equivalents IR RIBEEEY (901,417) (894,732)
Less: Pledged deposits B IR (500,327) (346,522)
Net debt FE 2,320,970 1,818,463
Convertible bonds, the liability AMRES - aEHS
component 589,131 -
Equity attributable to owners NAREA AEGER
of the Company 3,140,592 2,599,112
Adjusted capital ERBEA 3,729,723 2,599,112
Capital and net debt BARRFE 6,050,693 4,417 575
Gearing ratio TEARLE 2 38% 41%
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44.

45.

46.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 30 January 2015, the Company has entered into a placing
agreement in connection with the issue and placing of the 7.75%
senior notes with an aggregate principle amount of HK$250,000,000
which will mature in February 2018 (the “2018 Senior Notes”). The
2018 Senior Notes will only be offered outside the United States in
compliance with Regulation S under the United States Securities Act
of 1933, as amended. None of the 2018 Senior Notes will be offered
to the public in Hong Kong and none of the 2018 Senior Notes will be
placed to any connected persons of the Company.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The presentation of certain items in the financial statements has been
revised to comply with the current year’s presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 30 March 2015.

44,

45.

46.

HEHHREIR

REZ—HF—A=+H KARAFRHHE
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